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We have audited the Ind AS financial statements of Bhagwati Limestone Company Private Limited ("the 
Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019, and the Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow 
Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a 
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory infonnation (herein after referred to as 
" Ind AS financial statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the infonnation required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the 
Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2019, its profit (including 
other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS financial Statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements 
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of 
our audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in fonning our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
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Other Information 

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the infonnation included in the Company's annual report, but does not include the 
financial statements and our auditors' report thereon. 

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any fonn of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
infonnation and, in doing so, consider whether the other infonnation is materially inconsistent with the Ind 
AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If. based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements 

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and 
fair view of the state of affairs, profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of 
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
i1Tegularities; selection and application of appropriate accow,ting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give 
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for 
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS 

. financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
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that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the ove1Tide of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's rep011 to 
the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, lo modify 
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 
repo11. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were 
of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period and are therefore 
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably 
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the Central 
Government in terms of Section 143 ( 11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the 
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

(A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 
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b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those books; 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the books of account; 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified 
under Section 133 of the Act; 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 201 9 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 
March 2019 from being appointed as a director in tenns of Section 164(2) of the Act; 

t) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to ow· 
separate Report in "Annexure B"; and 

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2019 on its 
financial position in its Ind AS financial statements. 

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting 
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-tenn contracts including derivative 
contracts- Refer Note 47 to the Ind AS financial statements; 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transfe1Ted, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company; and 

For G.P Kapadia & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration No: 104768W 

~ · 
Atul B. Desai 
Partner 
Membership No: 030850 

Mumbai 

1 6 APR 2019 
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

[Referred to in paragraph I under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in the 
Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Bhagwati Limestone Company 
Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 201 9] 

1) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets; 

(b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management in a phased 
manner, designed to cover all the items over a period of three years, which in our 
opinion, is reasonable having regard to lhe size of the company and nature of its 
business. Pursuant to the program, a portion of lhe fixed asset has been physically 
verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies between the 
books records and the physical fixed assets have been noticed. 

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company. 

2) (a) The management has conducted the physical verification of inventory at reasonable 
intervals . 

(b) The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of the inventory as compared to 
books records which has been properly dealt with in the books of account were not 
material. 

3) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, 
Limited Liability partnerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained under 
section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iii) (a) to (C) of the Order 
are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 

4) ) Jn our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 
2013 In respect of Joans, investments, guarantees, and security. 

5) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives 
issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other 
relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 
with regard to the deposits accepted from the public arc not applicable. 

6) We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company as prescribed by 
the Central Government under Sub Section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 
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2013, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made 
and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records 
with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete. 

7) (a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the books of account, and records, the Company has been generally 
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees 
State Insurance, Income~Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, 

Value added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. 
According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts 
payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31, 2019 for a period of more 
than six months from the date on when they become payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of income 
tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax outstanding on 
account of any dispute. 

8) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to financial institutions, banks, 

government and debenture holders. 

9) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given 

by the management, the company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or 
further public offer including debt instruments and term Loans. Accordingly, the 

provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not 
commented upon. 

10) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given 

by the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company by its 
officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year. 

11) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given 
by the management, the managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in 

accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read 
with Schedule V to the Companies Act; 

12) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of 

clause 4 (xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 
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13) In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 
and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial 
Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

14)Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given 
by the management, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private 

placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under 
review. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xiv) of the Order are not applicable to 

the Company and hence not commented upon. 

15) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given 

by the management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with 
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of 

the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 

16) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the 

Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 

For G. P. KAPADIA & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.104768W 

fr<f::~ 
Partner 
Membership No. : 030850 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: ~~ I I b 1\1 'LO l9 
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

[Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in the 
Independent Auditor's Repo11 of even date to the members of Bhagwati Limestone Company 
Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019] 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of 
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Bhagwati Limestone 
Company Private Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit 
of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by The Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") 
and the Standards on Auditing, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, 
both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating etlectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding 
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
Reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;(2)provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations 
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject 
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at March 31 , 2019, based on the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over .Financial Reporting 
issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (!CAI). 

For G. P. KAPADIA & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. I 04 768W 

Atul D. Desai 
Partner 

~ I 

Membership No.: 030850 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: .ltpYl 1 \~ U) 19 



Btlagwi\t.i Lime Stone Company Private Limited 

Balance Sheet As At Mar 31, 2019 

ASSm 
Non-Current Assets 

capital Work-in-Progress 

Intangible Assets 

financial Assets: 

Investments. 
~ns 
Other Financia, As.sets 

Income Tax Assets (Net) 

Total Non-Current AS$ets 

Current Assets 

Inventories 

Financial ASselS 
Investments 
Ttade Receivables 

Bank Balances 0th..- tl>an Cash and cash €quivalents 

l.Dans 

Other Current Assets 
Assets hetd for Disposal 

Total C\ir.-ent Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 
EQUnY AND UABIUT1ES 

aiunv 
E<juity Share capital 

Other EQuitv 

UAIIIUTIES 
Non-Cumant Uabllttfes 

fin~ne1al uabil,ues 
Borrowings 

Other Financial Liabilities 

Provision~ 

Other Non-Curreot liabilities 
Total Non-Current Llabllllfes 

Current Liabill~es 
Financial Liabilities 

Borrowings 

Trade Payables 

Totat Outstanding Dues of Micro Enteq>rises and Smatl el'llerp,ises 

Total Outstanding Oue:s of Creditors other th.an Micro fnterprises and Small Enterprises 

Other Current liabilities 

Provisions 

CufTent Tax LiabiliUes (Nel) 
Total Current Liabilities 

TOTAL EQUnY AND UABILfflES 

Significant A«ou,,Ung Policies 

The acoompanying Notes form an inlegl'ill P<lrt of the flnancial Statements. 

In terms of our report attached. 

For G.P. Kapadia & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 
Firm Re~istration No: I04768W 

A~~ 
Partner 
Membership No: 308SO 
Mumbai, April 16th 2019 

Note Ho. 

181.61 

3 0.23 

4 4.23 

5 3.69 

6 9.30 

7 1.19 
17S.76 

8 

12.41 

9 15.70 

For and on behalf of tile Board 

1 
Directors 
OIN·034162S4 

8hagwa1i lime Stofle Comp.any Private Limited 

AS~t 
Mar31,2019 

187,61 

0.23 

7.92 

9.30 

17.22 
205.06 

176.!IS 

28.12 

28,12 

20S.06 

Atul Daga 
Directors 
D!N-06416619 

inf Lees 

Asat 
Mar 31, 2018 

187.51 

187.Sl 

0.23 

187.74 

3 .67 

3.18 

6 .85 

194.58 

1.19 

176.18 
177.37 

0.33 

16.89 

17.22 

!9'1.58 
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Bhagwati Lime Stone Company Private Limited 

Statement Of Profit and Loss For the Year Ended Mar 31, 2019 

Particul,1rs 

R.e.venue from Oper1tion$ 

Otl\er Income 

TOTAl INCOME (I) 

EXPfNSES 

Fteight Exoenses 

TOTAi. EXPENSES (II) 

Pront bero,a hceplional and Tax E•pense,; (1}·(11) 

Profit before Tax E.:penses 

I.ax ExDenses: 
Cur,ent Tax 

MATCrtdit 

Excess Tax Provision charged related to Prior Years 

Deferred Tax 

Total Tax E:ii:oenise 

Profit for the Year (111) 

Other Comprehensive Income 

A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit & Loss 

a (1J 11ems that"'"' be ~,~nto to p,ont & Loss 
lii) Income Tax Relating to Items that wiJI be recl.)SSil'itd to 1>1or1t & Loss 

Otfu!lr Comi,rehensJve Income for the Year (IV) 

Total Compreh..,,ive Income/(los.s) for the Yf!.llr 

Eamlngs Per EqultyShart1 (Face Value , 10 e.ich) 

8a•ic (in~) 

DIiuted (Inf) 

Significant Accounting Policies 

111e b<Xompanying Nolle$ rorm an inb!<Jral part of lhe Financial Statements. 

For G.P. Kapadia & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Reqistration No: 104768W 

[~ · 
Partner 
Membership No: 30850 

Mumbai, April 16th 2019 

Note No. 

10 

11 

12 

13 
14 

"!"'" """"'" 
M~ 
Directors 
DIN·034l62S4 

8hagY1ati Lime S1one Company P,ivate limited 

Vur ended 
Merll, 1019 

18.69 

18.69 

0.00 

2.15 

16.95 

19.11 

(Q.42) 

(G.42) 

(0.42) 

(0.42) 

(3.54) 

(3.54) 

Atul Daga 
Directors 
DIN-06416619 

inf Lacs 

Year ended 
Mar JI. 2018 

o.oo 
0.00 

4.39 

1 .39 

(1.39) 

(1.39) 

(1.39) 

(1.39) 

(36,&SJ 

(36.8S) 



Bhagwati Limestone Company Private Limited 

Cash flow Statement For The Year Ended Mar 3 1, 2019 

Particulars 

(A} Cash Flow from Operating Activities: 
Profit/(Loss) Before tax 
Adjustments for: 

Depreciation 
Sundry Advances written off 
Operating Profit/{Loss) before Working Capital Changes 
Movements in working capital: 
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade payable and other Liabilities 
Decrease/{Increase) in Loan & Advances 
Cash Used in Operations 
Direct Taxes Paid (net off Refund) 
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (A) 

(B) Cash flow from Investing Activities: 
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment 
Net Cash generated from/ (used in) Investing Activities (B) 

{B) Cash Flow from financing Activities: 
Proceeds from Issue of Share Cc,pital 
Interest Paid 
Net Cash Generated from Financing Activities (B) 

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+ B) 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year 

Notes: 

in, Lacs 

Asat Asat 
Mar 31, 2019 Mar 31, 2018 

{0.42) (4.39) 

o.oo 0.00 
0.50 

{0.42) (3.89) 

10.90 6.99 

(10.22) (3.00) 

0,26 0.11 

(0.13) (0.12) 

0.13 (0,01) 

(0,11) 
(0.11) 

0.02 (0.01) 

3.67 3.68 
3.69 J.67 

1. Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect methoo as set out in Ind AS - 7 specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

2. Cash and cash equivalents represent cash and bank balances. 

Significant Accounting Policies 
The Accompanying Notes are an integral part of the financial Statements. 

In terms of our report attached. 

For G.P. KAPADIA & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 104768W 

~~· 
Atul 8. Desai 
(Partner) 
Membership No: 30850 
Place: Mumbai 
DATE: April 16th 2019 

Fo~nd on ~half of the~ 

M~ al Atul Daga 
Directors Directors 
DIN-03416254 DIN-06416619 



Bhagwati Lime Stone Company Private Limited 
Statement Of Changes in Equity For The Year Ended Mar 31,2019 

A • Equity Share Caott•I 

For the Year ended Mar 31, 2019 

Balance as at April 01, 2018 

For tfle Year ended Mar ll, 2018 

BalanC<I aoat AprOl,2017 

B. Other Equity 

For the Year ended Mar 31, 2019 

1.19 

1.19 

Changes In equll.y sllare u.plUI during 
the Year 

Changes in equity shaNI capital during 
the Year 

•n, t.ac~ 

S.lance as at Mar 31, 2019 

1,19 

11.ilance as at Mar 31, 1018 

1,19 

R=rves t. Surplus 

Capital Ruuve Securities Premium Deffnture General Share option Par11culars 
Redemplion Rese .. e outstanding 

R.ese.rve reserve# 

11.ilance as al April 01, 2018 207.86 

Profit ror Ille Year ( LJ 

Remeasurement gain/ loss on defined l>eflclll 
1)4an 121 
Other Comprehensive Income/ (loss) for the 
Year {3l 
Totll Comprehensi,e lnoome / (lou) tor 207.86 the Year(1+2+ 3·) 

Oillidends (Includes Di•idend Distribution Tax) 

Empkl\1ees Stock Opt.ons exercised 

Employees Stock Opl.iOns granted 

Balance as at Mar 31, 2019 207.86 . . 

fOr tile Year ended Mar 31, 2018 

Re~rves & Surplus 

Particulars capital Reserve Securities Premium Debenture General Sflareoptlon 
Redemption Reserve outstanding 

Rese,.e re!lf!rve# 

Balance as 41t Apr 01,2017 207.86 

Profit ror the Year (I) 

Remeasuremenl gain/ loss on detlned benefit 
lllan (2) 
Other Comprehensive Income/ (loss) for the 
Year l3l 
Total Comprehensi•e Income/ (loss) for 207.86 
the Yu rC1+2+3 l 

Dividends (includes Di•idend Disl,ibution Tax) 

Employees Stock Options exercised 

Employees Stock Options g,anted 

11.ilance as at Mar 31, 2018 207.86 

Significilnt Accounting Policies Note 1 

ne accompanying Note.storm an lnte9ral part or the financial Statll!ments, 

Retained Ear11ings 

(l!.6B) 

(0.42) 

{32.10) 

(32,10) 

Retained Earnln91 

(27.JO) 

(4.J9) 

(Jl.68) 

(31.68) 

ln terms of our report attached. 

For G.P. Kapadia & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

For and on behalf of the Boara 

Firm Registration No: 104768W 

ATUtt:J~ ' 
Partner 
Membership No: 30850 
Mumbai, April 16th 2019 

6hagwa1i lime:uone Company Pvl lid 

El'fecti•e 
p<1rtlon of Casio 

Flow Hedges 

Effective 
portion or Cash 
flow ffedges 

Atul Daqa 
Directors 
D!N-06416619 

inf Lee;$ 

Total Equity 

176.18 

(M2) 

175.76 

175.76 

Totll Equity 

180.56 

(4.39) 

. 

176.18 

176.18 



Bhagwati Lime Stone Co. Pvt. Limited 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies 

i. Statement of Compliance 

These standalone financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 
2013 ("the Act"), and amendments thereto other relevant provisions of the Act and guidelines issued by the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), as applicable. 

The financial statements are authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held 
on April 16, 2019. 

ii. Basis of Preparation & Presentation: 

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. 

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. 

The statement of financial position presents Assets and Liabilities as current and non-current. For this purpose, an 
asset is classified as current if: 
It is expected to be realized, or is intended to be sold or consumed, in the normal operating cycle; or 
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or It is expected to realize the asset within 12 months after the 
reporting period; or 
The asset is a cash or equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 
12 months after the reporting period. 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

Similarly, a liability is classified as current if: 

It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; or It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or 
It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; or 
The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months 
after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments 
at the option of the counterparty does not affect this classification. 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 

iii. Use of Estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires estimates and assumptions to be 
made that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial statements, the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period and the disclosures relating to contingent liabilities 
as of the date of the financial statements. Although these estimates are based on the management's best 
knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in 
outcomes different from the estimates. Difference between actual results and estimates are recognized in the 
period in which the results are known or materialize. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is 
recognized prospectively in the current and future periods. 

iv. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE): 

The initial cost of PPE comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, 
and any directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to working condition and location for its intended use, 
including relevant borrowing costs and any expected costs of decommissioning, less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Expenditure incurred after the PPE have been put into operation, such as 
repairs and maintenance, are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the costs are 
incurred. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

If significant parts of an item of PPE have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items 
(major components) of PPE. 

Material items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and service equipment are classified as PPE when they 
meet the definition of PPE as specified in Ind AS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment. 

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss. 

v. Depreciation: 

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of property, plant & equipment over its useful 
life and is provided on a straight-line basis over the useful lives as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 
2013 

Depreciable amount for property, plant & equipment is the cost of property, plant & equipment less its estimated 
residual value. The useful life of property, plant & equipment is the period over which property, plant & equipment 
is expected to be available for use by an entity, or the number of production or similar units expected to be 
obtained from the asset by the entity. 

vi. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets: 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be required to settle such 
an obligation. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future 
cash flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments 
of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Unwinding of the discount is 
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date 
and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. 

A present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will 
be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a contingent liability. 
Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence 
of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not 
wholly within the control of the Company. 

Claims against the Company where the possibility of any outflow ot resources in settlement is remote, are not 
disclosed as contingent liabilities. 

Contingent assets are not recognized or disclosed in financial statements since this may result in the recognition 
of income that may never be realized. However, when the realization of income is virtually certain, then the related 
asset is not a contingent asset and is recognized. 

vii. Revenue Recognition: 

Revenue is recognized on the basis of approved contracts regarding the transfer of goods or services to a customer 
for an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods 
or services. 

• Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable taking into account the 
amount of discounts, volume rebates, outgoing taxes on sales. Any amount receivable from the 
customer and are recognized after the control of the goods sold are transferred. 

• Dividend income is accounted for when the right to receive the income is established. 

• Difference between the sale price and carrying value of investment is recognized as profit or loss on 
sale/ redemption on investment on trade date of transaction. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

viii. Income Taxes: 

Income Tax expenses comprise current tax and deferred tax charge or credit. 

Current Tax is measured on the basis of estimated taxable income for the current accounting period in accordance 
with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 and other applicable tax laws. 

Deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet method, on all temporary differences at the reporting date 
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred 
tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences 
when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted by the reporting date. Tax relating to items 
recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the statement of profit and loss account. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and 
assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority, but they intend to settle current tax 
liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously. 

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the 
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis. Deferred tax assets 
and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against 
current tax liabilities; and the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by 
the same taxation authority. 

A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available 
against which the temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date 
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable. 

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT): 
MAT is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay 
normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be 
recognized as an asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in the Guidance Note issued by !CAI, 
the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and is shown as MAT Credit 
Entitlement. The Company reviews the same at each reporting date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT 
Credit Entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Company will pay normal 
Income Tax during the specified period. 

ix. Earnings Per Share: 

The basic Earnings Per Share ("EPS") is computed by dividing the net profit/ {loss) after tax for the year attributable 
to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit/(loss) after tax for the year attributable to the 
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year are adjusted 
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

x. Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise cash at bank and in hand, short-term 
deposits with banks and short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into cash which are subject 
to insignificant risk of changes in value and are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments. 
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Bhagwati Lime Stone Company Private Limited 
Note 2 
Property Plant and Equi_e_me11_t_ 
Particulars 

Asat 
April 01, 2018 

_® Tan.gible Assets * 
Land: 

Freehold Land 187.51 

Leasehold Land 

Office Equipment 

Total Tangible Assets 187.51 

(B) Capital Work-in-Progress 

Total Tangible Assets 

Total Assets (A+B+C+D) 187.51 

\ 

Gross Block 

Additions Deductions/ As at 
Adjustments Mar 31, 2019 

- . 187.51 

- . -
0.11 - 0.11 

0.11 . 187.62 

0.11 187.62 

Bhagwati Limestone Company Pvt Ltd 

Depreciation and Amortisation 
As at For the Deductions/ 

April 01, 2018 year Adjustments 

. - -
- -
,_ o.oo 

- - 0.00 

0.00 

Asat 
Mar 31, 2019 

-
-

(0.00) 

(0.00) 

(0.00) 

Year ended 
Mar 31, 2019 

in~ Lacs 

Net Block 
As at 

Mar 31, 2019 

187.Sl 

-
0.10 

187.61 

-
187.61 

187.61 
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Bhagwati Lime Stone Company Private Limited 
Note 2 

Property Plant and Equipment 

Particulars Gross Block 
Asat Additions Deductions/ As at Asat 

April 01, 2017 Adjustments Mar 31, 2018 April 01, 2017 

(Al Tangible Assets* 
Land: 

Freehold Land 187.Sl - - 187.51 -
Leasehold Land - - -

Total Tangible Assets 187.51 - - 187.51 -
(B) Capital Work•in•Progress 

Total Tangible Assets 

Total Assets (A+B+C+D) 187.51 187.51 

~ 

Bhagwati Limestone Company Pvt Ltd 

Depreciation and Amortisation 
For the Deductions/ 

year Adjustments 

- -
- -
-· -

Asat 
Mar 31, 2018 

-
-
-

Year ended 
Mar 31, 2018 

int Lacs 

Net Block 
As at 

Mar 31, 2018 

187.51 

-
187.51 

-
187.51 

187.51 
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in? Lacs 

Aut As at 
Mar 31, 2019 Mar 31, 2018 

NOTE3 

OTHEll NON• CtlRIIENT ASSETS: 

Se.c.t.1,ity oeoosits 0,23 0.23 
0,23 0.2J 

NOTE4 

TRADE ~ECEIVAtll.ES 

Secured. Considered good 4.23 
4.2] 

NOTl:S 

~SH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

ealance will! banks (Cuuent ~l) 3.69 J.67 

3.69 3.67 

NOTE6 

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 

Allvance Royalty 6,24 J.00 
Other Receivables- TCS 0,28 O.IS 
Other Re<ie•iables· GST 2.78 O.o3 

9.]0 3,18 
NOTE7 No. of Shanes M1oun1 No. or Shares Amount 
EQURV SHARE CAPrTAL 

A\ltlloriud 
Equity Shares oH 10 each 50r000,00 s.oo S0.000 s.oo 

IS!ued, Sub$erl~ and Fullv Pald·UP 

11,900.00 1.19 11,900 1.19 

{a) Re,conclll•tlon or tflo Shares Outsu,ndlng at the btglnnlng and at the end of tile Year 

Outstanding at the beginnirtg of the Year 11,900,00 1,19 11,900 J ,19 

Add: Shares issued under Employees Stock Options Scheme (ESOS) 

Outstanding at the end of the Year ll,900,00 1.19 11,900 1.19 

(b) ShaN!S held by Holding Company 

ULTRATECH CEMENT LTD U ,900.00 1.19 U ,900 1.19 

(c l List of shareholder,; holding mon, than 5% of Pald·up Equity Shore capital No, of Shares 0/e Hotdin9 No. of Shares %Holdino 

UL TRATECH CEMEITT LTD 11,900.00 UJQO/g 11,900 100% 

NOTES 
TAADf PAYA8LfS 

Non·Current Current 

Aaat Asal As«l Asat 

Mar ll, 2019 Mar JI, 2018 Mar 31, 2019 !~r 31, 2018 

Trade Payables (other t!lan Micro, ~man and Medium Enterpnses) 2.27 0.33 

10.15 
12,41 0.33 

NOTE9 

OTHER CURRENT UASlUilfS 
Security and other deposits 0.24 10.24 
Due to Related Party ·UTCI. 15,3!; 6.65 

Others (including PrDYision for Expenses, Statutory lla:bllltles)~ TOS Payable 0.12 
15.70 16.89 

NOTE 10 

RtVENUf fROM OPfRAllONS 

Sale of limestone 18,69 
18.69 

OTHER INCOME 

Other.; - Jnte,e:st on Income tax Refund o.oo 
0.00 

NOTE 12 
DEPRECIATION ANO AMORTISATION EXl'ENSE 

Depredation 0.00 

0.00 
NOTEll 

FREIGlf1' AND FORWAR.DING EXPENU 
On Finished Products 2.15 

2.1S 

NOTE 14 

OTHER EXPENSES 

Overburden Removal C~ar9es 2.24 
Tree Plantaion Cha,rges 1.27 
Rent (includin~ lease Rent) 0.18 0.19 

Limestone Extraction/Mining charges 4,89 
Rates and Taxes 7,31 3.53 
Audit Fees 0.15 0.15 

Sundry Balance; Wrltttn off 0,50 

0.87 

Mlsce11ineo.s Expenses 0.03 0.02 

16.95 4.39 

V 
&h•tw~tl Limr.· SMm: Company Priwte limited 



Note 15 - Disclosure of Related Parties / Refated Party as required by Ind AS 24 "Related Party Disclosures": 

(A) list of Related Parties: (in, Lacs) 
Name of Related Party Country of % Shareholding and Voting 
Incorporation power 

{I) Holding Company: Asat I Asat 
Mar 31, 2019 Mar 31, 2018 

UltraTech Cement Limited 100% 

(B)The following transactions were carried out withthe related parties in the ordinary course of business:(in, Lacs) 
Year Ended Year Ended 

Nature of Transaction/Relationship Marll,2019 Mar 31, 2018 

Receiving of Services: 

Holding Company: 

UltraTech Cement Limited 10.15 0.21 

Total 10.15 0.21 

(C) Outstanding Balances: (in, Lacs) 
Asat Asat 

Nature of Transaction/Relationship Mar 31, 2019 Mar 31, 2018 

Trade payables: 

Holdina Company: 

UltraTech Cement Limited 10.15 -
Other Current liabilities: 

Holding Company: 
Ultra Tech Cement Limited 15.34 6.64 

Total 25.49 6.64 

Terms and Conditions of transactions with Related Parties: 

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. 

Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no 

guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. 

Note 16 - Earning per Share (EPS): (in, Lacs) 

Particurars Year Ended Year Ended 
Mar 31, 2019 Mar 31, 2018 

(A) Basic EPS: 

(i) Net Profit/(loss) attributable to Equity Shareholders {0.42) (4.39) 

(ii) Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding (Nos.) 11,900 11,900 

Basic EPS (Rs.) (i)/(ii) {3.54} (36.85) 
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NOTES 

Note 17 -Auditors' remuneration (excluding service tax) and expenses 

Particulars 

(A) Statutory Auditors: 

Audit fees 

Total 

Signatures to Note '1' to '17' 

In terms of our reports attached. 
For G.P. Kapadia & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 104768W 

ATUL B. DESAI 

Partner 
Membership No: 30850 

Mumbai, April 16th 2019 

For and on behalf of the Board 

l 
~al 

Directors 
DIN·03416254 

Year Ended 
Mar 31, 2019 

Atul Daga 

Directors 
DIN-06416619 

0.15 

0.15 

Cin, Lacs) 

Year Ended 
Mar 31, 2018 

0.15 

0.15 































G. P. KAPADIA & CO. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Tel. : 2265 4239, 2265 4313 
E-mail : gpkco@yahoo.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
To the Members of 
Gotan Limestone Khanji Udyog Private Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

~na,m~J 

~alal~~·~J 

~-q00001. 

We have audited the Ind AS financial statements of Gotan Limestone Khanji Udyog Private Limited 
("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019, and the Statement of Profit and 
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow 
Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a 
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as 
" Ind AS financial statements") . 

In our opinion and to the best of our info1mation and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the 
Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2019, its profit (including 
other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are fm1her described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS financial Statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chattered Accountants of 
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements 
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of 
our audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in fanning our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
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Other Information 

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Company's annual report, but does not include the 
financial statements and our auditors' repo1t thereon. 

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
info1mation and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Ind 
AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have noth_ing to report in this regard. 

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements 

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and 
fair view of the state of affairs, profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of 
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the fnd AS financial statements that give 
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for 
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS 
financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those ri.sks, and obtain audit evidence 
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that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intemal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to 
the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were 
of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period and are therefore 
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we detennine that a matter 
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably 
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the Central 
Government in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the 
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

(A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 
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b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those books; 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the books of account; 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified 
under Section 133 of the Act; 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2019 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 
March 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act; 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate Report in "Annexure B"; and 

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2019 on its 
financial position in its Ind AS financial statements. 

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting 
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts- Refer Note 47 to the Ind AS financial statements; 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transfen-ed, to the investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company; and 

For G.P Kapadia & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Finn's Registration No: 104768W 

Atul B. Desai 
Partner 
Membership No: 030850 

Mumbai 

1 6 APR 2019 
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in the 
Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of GOTAN LIMESTONE KHANIJ 
UDYOG PRIVATE LIMITED on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019] 

1) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets; 

(b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management in a phased 
manner, designed to cover all the items over a period of three years, which in our 

opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature of its 
business. Pursuant to the program, a portion of the fixed asset has been physically 
verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies between the 

books records and the physical fixed assets have been noticed. 

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company. 

2) (a) The management has conducted the physical verification of inventory at reasonable 

intervals. 

(b) The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of the inventory as compared to 
books records which has been properly dealt with in the books of account were not 

material. 

3) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, 

Limited Liability partnerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained under 
section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iii) (a) to (C) of the Order 

are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 

4) ) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 
2013 In respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security. 

5) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives 
issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other 
relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 

with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not applicable. 

6) We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company as prescribed by 

the Central Government under Sub Section ( l) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 
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2013, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made 
and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records 
with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete. 

7) (a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the books of account, and records, the Company has been generally 
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees 

State Insurance, Income· Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, 
Value added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. 
According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts 

payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31, 2019 for a period of more 
than six months from the date on when they become payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of income 
tax, sales tax, scrv!ce tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax outstanding on 
account of any dispute. 

8) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to financial institutions, banks, 

government and debenture holders. 

9) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given 

by the management, the company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or 
fmther public offer including debt instruments and term Loans. Accordingly, the 
provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not 
commented upon. 

10) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given 

by the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company by its 
otlicers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year. 

11) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given 
by the management, the managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in 

accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read 
with Schedule V to the Companies Act; 

12) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of 

clause 4 (xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 
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13)ln our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 
and 18 8 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial 
Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

14)Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given 
by the management, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under 
review. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xiv) of the Order are not applicable to 
the Company and hence not commented upon. 

15) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given 
by the management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with 
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of 
the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 

16) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the 
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 

For G. P. KAPADIA & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.104768W 

Atul B. Desai 
Partner 
Membership No. : 030850 
Place: Mumbai 
Date : ~,ri \ t t ~ l-0 l ~ 
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

[Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in the 
Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of GOT AN LIMESTONE KHANIJ 
UDYOG PRIVATE LIMITED on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019] 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of 
Sub.section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of GOTAN 
LIMESTONE KHANIJ UDYOG PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company>') as of March 31, 2019 
in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on 
that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by The Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditorst Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") 
and the Standards on Auditing, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, 
both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding 
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
Reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that (I) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;(2)provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations 
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods arc subject 
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repotting 
issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). 

For G. P. KAPADIA & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN.104768\iV 

Atul B. Desai 
Partner 
Membership No.: 030850 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: /\~-n\ t 6fl,> 2.1) ( q 
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31,2019 

Particulars Note No. 

ASSETS 

Non<11rrent ;assets 

Property, Plant and Equipment 2 1,754.82 

Other Intangible aS,Sets 2 71.69 

Fi1>ancial Assets 

Others 4 146.97 146.91 

Other non-current assets 5 0,1S 

c.irtt.nt ar.sets 

Inventories 6 56,89 

Financial Assets 

Cash and cash equ..,atems 7 3.73 

Loans 3 0.06 
Bank Balance• other than Cash and Cash l;quivalents 8 28.60 

Others 4 21.25 Sl.64 

Current Ta< As-sets (Net) 9 10.54 

otner current assets 10 50.18 

Total AS.sets 

EQUnY AND llABILmES 

l:~ulty 

Equity Share Capital 11 232.73 

Other Equity 1.324.31 

weiunES 

Non-.:vrrent Habilities 

financial liabilities 

Provisions 12 1.30 

Deterred tax liabilities (Net) 13 27.94 

Current liabilities 

Financial Liabilities 

Trade payaores 14 0.49 

Diner current liabilities 15 58.11 

Total Equity and Liabilities 

Sl9nit1cant Accounting Policies 1 

The accompanying Notes referred to above furm an integral part of t,te Financial Sllltements. 

In term~ of our report attached. 

For G.P. Kapadia & Co. 

Ch~rtered Ac<:ountonts 
Firm Registration No: 104768W 

~/fJ ~-~~ ;_ 
ATUL B, l)ESAI 

P.:,,tner 

Membership No: 30850 

Mumbai, April 16, 2019 

For and on behalr or the Boa<d 

l, 
~ 
Director 

DIN · 03416254 

Go/3n limestone Kn.,nij lklyog Priv/3/e Umiteo 

Asat 

March 31, 2019 

ATUL DAGA 

Director 

1,973.63 

171.lS 

2,144.88 

2,057.04 

29.24 

S8.60 

2,144.88 

DIN - 064t66L9 

, in lacs 

Asat 

March 31, 2018 

1,794.96 

es.so 

140.57 

0.15 

2,021.48 

56.89 

40..31 

0.06 

ID.40 

9.33 

so.ea 
167.86 

2,189.34 

232.73 

1,867.0~ 

2,099.80 

I.JO 

27.91 

29.24 

2.15 

58.15 

60.lO 

2,L89,34 



Part!culars 

Revenue rrom Oi,e,atlons 

Otller Income 

Total Income (I) 

Expenses 
Changes in ln•entories of Finished Goods, Work·ln·Progres5 
and Stock-intrrade 

Finance Costs 

Depre::iation an<I Amortisation Expense 

Power and Fuel 

Other Expenses 

Total Exiienses (U) 

Profit before Tax £xpneses. (!}-(JI} 

Tax Expenses: 

Profit for the Y<1ar (Jll) 

Earning• Per Equity Shara (Face Value, 10 uoh) 

Ba•i• (In 'I 
Diluted (In ?J 

Note NC>. 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

Significant Aocountlng Policies 1 

Tlle accompanyiny NOtes 11?1'ened to abo-.e form an Integral part of the Financial Statements. 

In terms of our report attached. 
For G.P. Kapadia & Co. 

Chartered AccountanlS 

Firm Registra~on No: 104768W 

Al\JL B. DESAI 
Partner 
Membership Ko: 30650 

Mumbai, April 16, 2019 

For and on behalf cl' tne Board 

t. 
~ I 

Director 
DIN • 03416254 

Go1a11 limestone Khanij Udyog Private Umited 

Ysr endi!d 
March 31, 2019 

ATUL DAGA 
Director 

0,36 

ll.33 

12.69 

S4,24 

0.48 

0.73 

55.46 

(42.76) 

(42.76) 

(1.83) 

(1.83) 

O!N • 06416619 

f ii\ t.GCS. 

Period ended 
March 31, 2018 

0.39 

13.43 

13.82 

0.03 

55.24 

0.55 

L.37 

57.19 

(43.37) 

(43.37) 

( 1.85) 

{l.85) 



Gotan Limestone Khanii Udvoa Private Limited 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 

Particulars 

(A) Cash Flow from Operating Activities: 
Profit 8efore tax 
Adjustments for: 
Depreciation and Amortisation 
Excess Provision written back (net) 
Interest and Dividend Income 
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 
Movements in working capital; 
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade payables and other Liabilities 
Decrease/(lncrease) in Inventories 
Oecrease/{lncrease) in Financial ancl Other Current Assets 
Cash Generated from Operations 
Direct Taxes aid 
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities (A) 

(8) Cash Flow from Investing Activities: 
(Investment)/ Redemption in Bank deposits (hav:ng original maturity of more than three months) 
Interest/ Dividend Received (Incl. Short excess Provision W/B) 
Net Cash used in Investing Activities (B) 

(C} C11sh Flow from Financing Activities: 
Net Cash used in Financing Activities {C) 

Net Increase/(Oecrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A + B + C) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the Year 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the Year 

Cash a11d Bank balance as per Note 

Notes; 
I. Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out i11 IndAS - 7 specified under Section 133 
of the Companies Act, 2013. 

2. Purchase of fixed assets includes movements of capital work-in-progress (including Capital Advances) during the year. 

Significant Accounting Policies Note 1 

The accompanying Notes referred to above form an integral part of the Financial Statements. 

Rs. in Lees 

Year Ended Year Ended 

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 

(42,76) (43.37) 

S4.24 55.24 

(0.36) (0.39) 
{12.06) (13.43) 

(0.94) {1.95) 

(1.70} (50.78) 

(11.36) 62.11 
(14.00) 9.39 

{14.00) 9.39 

{6,40) (21.98) 

12.42 13.82 

6.02 (8.16) 

(7.98) 1.23 

40.31 39.07 

32.33 40.31 

32.33 40.31 

In terms of our report attachecl, For and on behalf of the Board 

For G.P. Kapadia ll, Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No: 104768W 

ATUl 8. DESAI 
Partner 
Membership No: 30850 

Mumbai, April !6th 2019 

1- , 
M~al 
Director 
DIN - 03416254 

ATUL OAGA 
Director 
DIN · 06416619 



A . Equity Share Capital 

For the Yei,r e"ded March 31,2019 

Balance as at April 01,2018 

U2.7J 

f<lr the Yearended March 31,2018 

Balance as at April 01, 2017 

232,73 

e. Other Equity 

For the year e"ded March 31,2019 

Particulars Capltal 
Reset"Ve 

llalance as at April 01,2018 

Profit ror tile vear (1) 

Remeasurement gain/ loss on defined 
benefit plan (2) 

Total Comprehensive lnoome / . 
(loss) for lfle year(1+2) 

Balance as at March 31,2019 . 

For the Year ended March 31,2018 

Particulars Capital 
Reserve 

Balance as at Aprll 01, 2017 

ProHt for tile vcar ( t) 

Remeasurem"'1t gain / loss 011 denned 
benefit plan 12) 
Total Comprehensl~e Income/ 
(loss) for die year(1+2) 

. 
Balance a, at March 31,2018 . 

fin Lacs 

Changes in equity share capital Balance as at March 31,2019 
during the year 

232.73 

Changes in equity •hare capital Balance as at March 31,2018 
during the year 

232,73 

Reserves & Surplus 

Securities Debenture General Share option 
Premium Redemption Re.serve outstanding 

R,u:er11e reserve# 

2,749.15 . 

. . 

2,749.15 . 

Reserves a. Surplus 

Securities Debenture General Share option 
Premium Redomption Re,erve outstanding 

Reserve resel'l/e# 

2,749.15 . -
. 

. . . . 

2,749.15 . . . 

The Description of the nature and purJ)ose of eac:11 rese,ve willlin equity is as follows: 

, in Laos 

Effective Total Equity 
portion of 

Rebllned Cash Flow 
Earnings Hedges 

(882.08) i.1167.07 

(4276) (42.76) 

. 

(42.76) (42.76) 

(924.84) 1,824.31 

Effective Total Equity 

Retained 
portion of 
Cash Flow 

E;irnlngs Hedges 

(838.71) 1,910.45 

(4J.J7) (43.37) 

. . 

(43.37) . (43.37) 

(882,08) 1,867.07 

a} Capital Reserve: Capital Reserves are mainly the res,,rves created during business comt>inatlon for lhe gain un bargain purchase. Company's c.apital reserve is mainly on account of 
acquisition or cement business of Larsen & Toubro Ltd .. Gujarat IJnits of Jaypee Cement Corporation ltd (JCCLJ and cement capacities of 21.2 MTPA of Jaiprakash Associates ltd (JAL). 

bJ Securltte, Premium: Secunties premium reserve is credited when shares are Issued at premium. It is utilised in accordance with the provisions of tile Act, to issue bonus shares, oo 
provide for premium on redemption of shares or debentures, wrlte•off equity related expenses like unde,writing costs. etc. 

c) Debenture Redemption Re.serve {DRR}: The Company has ISSIN!d redeemable non-convertible deoentur,;is. Aci:ordingly, tile Companies (Share capital and Debentures) Rules, 
20H (as amended). requires lhe company to create ORR out of pro~ts of the company available for payment of dividend. ORR Is required to be cr~ted for an amount which Is equ•I to 
25% of tile value of debentures issued. 

d) Ge"eral reserve: The general resenre is used from time to ~me to transfer profits from retained eamings for appropriation purposes. 

e) Shares Options Outstanding Reserve: The Company has two share option schemes under which options to subscribe for !tie Company's shares have been granted to certain 
exe,utlves and senior employees. The share-based payment reserve is used to recognise ltle value or equity-settled share-based payments provided to employe<:s. inclvding l(ey 
management personnel, as p,art of their remuneraljon. 

f} Effective Portion of Ca•hllow liedges: The company has designated its hedging instruments obtained after April 01. 2015 as cash now hedges and any effective portion of 
cashflow hedge is maintained in the said reserve. In case the hedging becomes Ineffective the amount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and loss. 

Signlffcant Ac«luntlng Policies Note l 

TIie aoc:ompanying Nob!s fonn an Integral part or the financial Statements. 

In terms or our report attached. 

For G.P. Kapadia&. Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registrabon No: 104768W 

~~· 
Partner 
Membership rio: 30850 

Mumbai, April L6. 2019 

loo~,-~~-•-
~ 
Director 
DIN • 034l6254 

ATUL OAGA 

Oirector 
DIN · 06416619 



Gotan lime Stone Khanij Udyog Private Limited 

Notes 

Note 1 (A) Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policies: 

Company Overview 

Gotan Lime Stone Khanij Udyog Private limited (the Company) is a Private Limited Company 
incorporated in India having its registered office at Jodhpur, Rajasthan, India. The Company is 
exclusively engaged in the business of Mining of Lime Stone. 

Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) Statement of Compliance 

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 
AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)(Amendrnent} Rules, 2016, the relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (SEBI), as applicable. 

The financial statements are authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company at their 
meeting held on April 16, 2019. 

(b} Basis of Preparation and Presentation: 

Basis of Preparation 

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally 
based on the fair value on the consideration given in exchange for goods and service. 

The Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of Current / 
Non-Current classification of its Assets and liabilities. 

For the purpose of Balance Sheet, an asset is classified as current if: 

(i) It is expected to be realized, or is intended to be sold or consumed, in the normal 
operating cycle; or 

(ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or 

(iii) It is expected to realize the asset within twelve months after the reporting period; or 

(iv) The asset is a cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used 
to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

Similarly, a liability is classified as current if: 

(i} It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; or 

{ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or 

(iii) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 

(iv) The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability 
for at least twelve months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could result 
in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments at the option of the counterparty does 
not affect this classification. 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 

{c) Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE}: 

The initial cost of PPE comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable 
purchase taxes, and any directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to working condition and 
location for its intended use, including relevant borrowing costs and any expected costs of 
decommissioning, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 
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Notes 

Subsequent costs are included in the assets's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, 
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will 
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and 
maintenance cost are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which they 
were incurred. 

If significant parts of an item of PPE have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as 

separate items (major components) of PPE. 

Material items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and service equipment are classified as PPE 
when they meet the definition of PPE as specified in Ind AS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment. 

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the 

Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(d) Depreciation: 

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of PPE over its useful life and is 
provided on a straight-line basis over the useful lives as prescribed in Schedule II to the Act or as 
per technical assessment. 

Depreciable amount for PPE is the cost of PPE less its estimated residual value. The useful life of 
PPE is the period over which PPE is expected to be available for use by the Company, or the 
number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the Company. 

The Company has componentized its PPE and has separately assessed the life of major 
components. 

In case of certain classes of PPE, the Company uses different useful lives than those prescribed in 
Schedule II to the Act. The useful lives have been assessed based on technical advice, taking into 
account the nature of the PPE and the estimated usage of the asset on the basis of management's 
best estimation of obtaining economic benefits from those classes of assets. 

Depreciation on additions is provided on a pro-rata basis from the month of installation or 
acquisition and in case of Projects from the date of commencement of commercial production. 
Depreciation on deductions/disposals is provided on a pro-rata basis up to the month preceding the 
month of deduction/disposal. 

(e) Intangible Assets and Amortisation: 

• Intangible Assets acquired separately: 

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less 
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment, if any. The Company determines the 
amortization period as the period over which the future economic benefits will flow to the Company 
after taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances. The estimated useful life and 
amortization method are reviewed periodically, with the effect of any changes in estimate being 
accounted for on a prospective basis. 

• Class of intangible assets and their estimated useful lives are as under: 

No Nature Useful life 

1 Mining Rights 
Over the period of the respective mining 
agreement 

(f) Inventories: 

Inventories are valued as follows: 
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Notes 

• Raw materials, fuel, stores & spare parts and packing materials: 

Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV). However, these items are considered to 
be realisable at cost, if the finished products, in which they will be used, are expected to be 
sold at or above cost. Cost is determined on weighted average basis. 

• Work-in- progress (WIP), finished goods, stock-in-trade and trial run inventories: 

Valued at lower of cost and NRV. Cost of Finished goods and WIP includes cost of raw 
materials, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their 
present location and condition. Cost of inventories is computed on weighted average basis. 

• Waste / Scrap: 

Waste/ Scrap inventory is valued at NRV. 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the 
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

(g) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets: 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a 
result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably estimated, 
will be required to settle such an obligation. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the 
expected future cash flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that 
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks 
specific to the liability. Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the 
current best estimate. 

A present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of 
resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is 
disclosed as a contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible 
obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence 
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 
Company. 

Claims against the Company where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is 
remote, are not disclosed as contingent liabilities. 

Contingent assets are not recognised in financial statements since this may result in the recognition 
of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, 
then the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised. 

(h) Mines Restoration Provision: 

An obligation for restoration, rehabilitation and environmental costs arises when environmental 
disturbance is caused by the development or ongoing extraction from mines. Costs arising from 
restoration at closure of the mines and other site preparation work are provided for based on their 
discounted net present value, with a corresponding amount being capitalised at the start of each 
project. The amount provided for is recognised, as soon as the obligation to incur such costs arises. 
These costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss over the life of the operation through 
the depreciation of the asset and the unwinding of the discount on the provision. The cost are 
reviewed periodically and are adjusted to reflect known developments which may have an impact 
on the cost or life of operations. The cost of the related asset is adjusted for changes in the 
provision due to factors such as updated cost estimates, new disturbance and revisions to discount 
rates. The adjusted cost of the asset is depreciated prospectively over the lives of the assets to 
which they relate. The unwinding of the discount is shown as a finance cost in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 
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Notes 

(i) Revenue Recognition: 

Revenue is recognized on the basis of approved contracts regarding the transfer of goods or 
services to a customer for an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to 
be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. 

• Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivahle taking into 
account the amount of discounts, volume rebates, outgoing taxes on sales. Any amount 
receivable from the customer and are recognised of the goods sold are transferred. 

• Dtvidend income is accounted for when the right to receive the income is established. 

• Difference between the sale price and carrying value of investment is recognised as profit or 
loss on sale/ redemption on investment on trade date of transaction. 

(j) Income Taxes: 

Income Tax expenses comprise current tax and deferred tax charge or credit. 

Current Tax is measured on the basis of estimated taxable income for the current accounting 
period in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 
and other applicable tax laws. 

Deferred tax is provided, on all temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax base of 
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax 
assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary 
differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted 
at the reporting date. Tax relating to items recognised directly in equity or OCI is recognised in 
equity or OCI and not in the Statement Profit and Loss. MAT Credits are in the form of unused tax 
credits that are carried forward by the Company for a specified period of time, hence it is grouped 
with Deferred Tax Asset. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current 
tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority, but they 
intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will 
be realized simultaneously. 

A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be 
available against which the temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed 
at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable. 

(k) Earnings Per Share: 

The basic Earnings Per Share ("EPS") is computed by dividing the net profit/ (loss) after tax for the 
year attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the year. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit/(loss) after tax for the year 
attributable to the equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

(I) Cash and cash equivalents: 

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term 
deposits with banks that are readily convertible into cash which are subject to insignificant risk of 
changes in value and are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments. 



Notes to Financial Statements 
Note 2 

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Fixed Assets 
Particulars 

As at 
April 01, 2018 

(A) Ta!!gible Assets 
Land : -

Freehold Land 1,427.70 
·-----

Leasehold Land 178.09 -- -
Buildings 65.60 
- - - --- --------

Plant and Equipment 

Own 251.00 ----·---------
Given on Lease 

-----
Furniture and Fixtures 0.00 

Total Tangible Assets 1,922.38 

(B) Intangible Assets 

Mining Rights 128.11 

Total Intangible Assets 128.11 

Total Assets (A+B) 2,050.49 

< 

~ in Lacs 
Gross Block Depreciation and Amortisation Net Block 

Additions Deductions/ As at As at For the Deductions/ As at As at 
Adjustments March 31, 2019 April 01, 2018 year Adjustments March 31, 2019 March 31, 2019 

- -- ·-
~·------- .------

- 1,427.70 -
·--- ---

- - - 1,427.70 

- - 178.09 58.82 19.61 - 78.42 99.66 --·---- --
- - 65.60 6.70 2.23 - 8.94 56.67 -- -~------ - - --·-- --

- ---c-- - -

- - 251.00 61.90 18.30 - 80.20 170.79 -- - -
- - -- - - ------

- - o.oo - - - - o.oo 
- - 1,922.38 127.42 40.14 - 167.56 1,754.82 

- - 128.11 42.31 14.10 - 56.41 71.69 

- - 128.11 42.31 14,10 - 56.41 71.69 

- - 2,050.49 169.73 54.24 -· 223.98 1,826.51 

Gotan Limestone Khanij Udyog Private Limited 



Notes to Financial Statements 
Note2 

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Fixed Assets 

Particulars 

As at 
April 01, 2017 

{A) Tangible Assets _________ _ 
Land: 
- - -

Freehold Land 1,427.70 
--· 

Leasehold Land 178.09 

Gross Block 
Additions Deductions/ As at 

Adjustments March 31, 2018 

·-
- - 1,427.70 

--
- - 178.09 -- ·----------------

Buildings 65.60 - - 65.60 
- ---------
Plant and Equipment -

---- --
Own 251.00 - - 251.00 

--- -
Given on Lease -

------ - ---
Furniture and Fixtures 0.00 - - o.oo 
Total Tangible Assets 1,922.38 - - 1,922.38 

(B) Intangible Assets 

Mining Rights 128.11 - . - 128.11 

Total Intangible Assets 128.11 - - 128.11 

Total Assets {A+B) 2,050.49 - - 2,050.49 

~ 

Depreciation and Amortisation 
As at For the Deductions/ As at 

April 01, 2017 year Adjustments March 31, 2018 

----
- - - -

39.21 19.61 - 58.82 

4.47 2.23 -· 6.70 

- -
-

42.60 19.30 ·- 61.90 - - - --
---

- - - -
86.28 41.14 - 127.42 

28.21 14.10 - 42.31 

28.21 14.10 - 42.31 

114.49 S5.24 - 169.73 

Gotan Umestone Kl7anij Udyog Private Umited 

~ in Lacs 

Net Block 
As at 

March 31, 2018 

1,427.70 

119.27 

58.90 

--
189.09 

- -
-

0.00 

1,794.96 

85.80 

85.80 

1,880.76 
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NOTI! 3 

CURRENTLOANS 

Pal'licufil,.. 

Secured Considered goods: 

Secunty Deposits 

NOTE4 

OTHER FJNANC[AL ASSETS 

No~·curr~nt 

Partlcufars Asat Asat 

Mardi 31, 2019 ·-larch 31, 2018 

Interest AA;c,ueo on Deposits 

Fixe<i De;,osits with Sank 1vith maturity > 12 months 146.97 140.51 

146.97 140.S7 

Partic .. lars 

NOTES 

OTHER NON • CURRENT ASSETS 

Balance with Government Auttior;ties 

N()n6 

INVENTORIES: {Valued at low" or Cost and net Alafi~ble value, unless otherwi~ stilted) 

Finished Goods 

Stores & Spares 

NOTE7 

CASH AND CASH EQOIVAlENTS 

Cash and cash Equlvalenis 

Balaoce with banks (Curre<it Account) 

Cash on hand 

NaTE8 

BANK BALANCES ontER THAN CASH AND CASH IEQUIVA1ENTS 

Fixed Deposits with Banks (Mat,,rity more than 3 monllls and upto 12 months) 

NOTE9 

CURRENT TAX ASSETS 

Advance Tax 

NOTE 10 

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS: 

Balance With Government Authorities 

Advances to suppliers 

Golan Limestone Khanij VdJ'O!J Private Umiteo 

Asat 

Marc~ 31, 2019 

0.06 

0.06 

AS at 

March 31, 2019 

Asat 

March 31, 2019 

0.1S 

0.15 

S2,80 

4,09 

56,8~ 

3.71 

0.02 

J,73 

28,60 

28,60 

10.54 

10.54 

50,14 

0,04 

50,18 

21.25 

21.25 

fin Lees 

AS at 

~1arch 31, 2018 

0.06 

0.06 

Curl'4!nt 

Asat 

March JI, 2018 

10.40 

lo.40 

Asat 

March 31, 2018 

Q.1S 

0.15 

52.80 

4.09 

S6.89 

40,29 

0.02 

40.Jl 

9.33 

9.)) 

50.00 

0.88 

SO.BB 
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t' in Le~s 

Asat Asat 
Particulars Marci! 31, 2019 Mar<:h 31, 2018 

NOTE 11 
No.of 

Sltares 
Amount (f in Lacs) No. or Shares Amount (f in Lac,) 

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 

AuthoriS<!d 
Equily Share• off 10 oath 25,00,000 250,00 25,00,000 250.00 

Issued, Sullscril!ed ~net Fully Pald·up 

Equity Share• or, 10 each 23,15,780 231.58 23.LS,780 231.58 

Issued, Subscribed and Partly P<1id0 up 
Equily Share• off 10 each (f 5 Paid,up) 23,000 1.15 23,000 !.LS 

23,38.780,00 232.73 23,38,780 232.73 

(a) Re.:onclllalion of the Shar<!:J Outstanding at ttle t,eginnin9 and at the end of the year 

No.or J,mount (f in loo•) No. of Shares Amount(~ in Lscs) 
Shares 

Outsl<lndlng at !he beginning of the year 23,38,780.00 232.73 23,38,780 2)2.7J 

Md: Shares issued during the year 

Outstanding at the end or ltle year 23,38,780 232.73 23,38,780 232.73 

(b) stiares held by Holding Companv 
23,38,780 232,73 23,38,780 232.73 

No.at %Holding No. of Sllares % tfold,ng 
Shares (cl List or shaN!holden; holdin~ matt ll!an !;% ol Paid-up equity Share capital 

Ullrarech Cement um·,ted 23,38,780 100% 23,38,780 100% 

NOTE12 

NON CUURENT PROVJSIONS 
Particulars Asat Asat 

Man:h 31, 2019 Mar<:h 31. 2016 

For Mines Restoration Expenditure 1,30 uo 
L30 1,30 

'H()TI;:U 
DfFERREO TAX UA8lllTI' (NET) 

Particulars Asat Asat 

Mar<:h 31, 2019 March JI. 2018 

Deferred Tax Assets: 

Prov•sion allowed under tax on payment basis 17.95 17.9S 

17.95 17.95 

oeterred TaK Liabilities: 

Olhers (l\ccumulated Depreciat,onJ 4S.89 45.89 

4S,89 45.89 

Net OeferN!d Tax Liability 27.94 )7.94 

NOTE 14 

TRADE PAYABlES 

Due to Others 0.49 2.15 

Total 0.49 2.15 

NOT£ 15 

OTHER CURRENT LIABILffiES 

Others (Sta1utorv Liat>ilitv Disouted· Env,ronmen1 ccsi) 58,11 58 15 

S8,11 S8 15 

Gctan Um~stone Kt,,Jnij (Jdyog Priv;,fe Limited 
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NOT£ 16 

OTHER OPERATING REVENUES 

ProvisiOn no longer reQo!red 

NOT£ 17 

OlliER INCOME 

Interest Income on 

Sank and Other Accounts 

Others (Other Misce <eceipts non-0perat1ng) 

NOTE 18 

CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK•IN•PROGRESS ANDSTOCK·IN·T'RADE 

Closlng Inventories 
Finished Goods 

Opening Inventories 

Finished Goods 

NOTE 19 

FINANCE COSTS 

Interest Expense: 

Olhe,s 

NOTE20 

DEPflECIAllON AND AMOflllSATION EKPENSE 

Depreciation 

Amortisation 

NOlf 21 

OTMER ElCPENSES 

Rates and Taxes 

Miscellaneous Expenses 

NOTI: 22 

12.06 

Yearendl!d 

March 31, 2019 

0.36 

0,36 

12,06 

0.27 

12.33 

52.80 

s:u,o 

52.80 

40,14 

14,10 

54,24 

0.04 

0.69 

0.73 

l in l.8<:$ 

Year ended 

March 31, 2018 

0.39 

0.39 

13.43 

13,43 

13,43 

52.80 

52.80 

S2.80 

52.80 

0.03 

O.Q3 

41.14 

14.10 

55.24 

1.37 

I 37 

The Supreme Court of Indi11 has allowed an appeal filed bf tlte State of Rajasthan in a matter relating to transfer of mining lease in the name of the Company and has dire<itecl the 
State of Rajasthan to frame and notil'y its policy relating to transfer of mining lease within one month of receipt of the order and thereafter pass appropriate order In respect of 
the mining lea5e otthe company. Till ou<ll a d«ision is taken, status quo is to be mahitained. 

Gota11 limes1one Khilnij 1/dyoq Private Umited 



Note 23 • Earning per Share (EPS): 

Asat 
Particulars March 31, 2019 

(A) Basic; EPS: 

(i) Net Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders (42.76) 

(ii) Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding (Nos.) 23,38,780 

Basic EPS (') (i)/(ii) (1.83) 

Note 24 -Auditors' remuneration (excluding service tax) and expenses: 

Particulars 

Statutory Auditors: 

Audit fees 

Signatures to Notes ·1· to '24 · 
In terms of our report attached. 

For G.P. Kapadia & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 104768W 

ATUL B. DESAI 
Partner 
Membership No: 30850 

Mumbai, April 16, 2019 

Asat 
March 31, 2019 

0.40 

Fi on .. ehalf of the Boa,d of the o;,e~ 

~ARWAL ATUL DAGA 
Director Director 
DIN - 03416254 DIN - 06416619 

· in Lacs 
As at 

March 31, 2018 

(43.37) 

23,38,780 

(1.85) 

· in Lacs 

As at 
March 31, 2018 

0.47 



G. P. KAPADIA & CO. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Tel. : 2265 4239, 2265 4313 
E-mail : gpkco@yahoo.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
To the Members of 
Harish Cement Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

~~J 

~~Odhi~J 
~-q,00001. 

We have audited the Ind AS financial statements of Harish Cement Limited ("the Company"}, which 
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement for the 
year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of the 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as " Ind AS 
financial statements") . 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the 
Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2019, its profit (including 
other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS financial Statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements 
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the cun-ent year. These matters were addressed in the context of 
our audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in fonning our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
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Other Information 

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Company's annual report, but does not include the 
financial statements and our auditors' report thereon. 

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any fonn of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Ind 
AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information, we are required to repoit that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements 

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and 
fair view of the state of affairs, profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of 
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give 
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for 
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS 
financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the lnd AS financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perfonn audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
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that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from en-or, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section l 43(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Ifwe 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's repo1t to 
the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were 
of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period and are therefore 
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we dete1mine that a matter 
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably 
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

I. As required by the Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the Central 
Government in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the 
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

(A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we repo1t that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 
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b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those books; 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the books of account; 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified 
under Section 133 of the Act; 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2019 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 
March 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act; 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate Rep01t in "Annexure B"; and 

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 

1. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2019 on its 
financial position in its Ind AS financial statements. 

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting 
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts- Refer Note 47 to the Ind AS financial statements; 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transfel1'ed, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company; and 

For G.P Kapadia & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration No: 104768W 

Atul B. Desai 
Pa1'tner 
Membership No: 030850 

Mumbai 

1 6 APR 2019 
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in the 
Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of HARJSH CEMENT LIMITED on 
the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019] 

1} (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets; 

(b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management in a phased 
manner, designed to cover all the items over a period of three years, which in our 
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature of its 
business. Pursuant to the program, a portion of the fixed asset has been physically 
verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies between the 
books records and the physical fixed assets have been noticed. 

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company. 

2) (a) The management has conducted the physical verification of inventory at reasonable 
intervals. 

(b) The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of the inventory as compared to 
hooks records which has been properly dealt with in the books of account were not 
material. 

3) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, 
Limited Liability partnerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained under 
section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iii) (a) to (C) of the Order 
are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 

4) ) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 
2013 In respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security. 

5) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives 
issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other 
relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 
with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not applicable. 

6) We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company as prescribed by 

the Central Government under Sub Section (l) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 
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2013, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made 
and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records 
with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete. 

7) (a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the books of account, and records, the Company has been generally 
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees 
State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, 
Value added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. 
According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts 
payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31, 2019 for a period of more 
than six months from the date on when they become payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of income 
tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax outstanding on 
account of any dispute. 

8) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to financial institutions, banks, 
government and debenture holders. 

9) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given 
by the management, the company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or 
further public offer including debt instruments and term Loans. Accordingly, the 
provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not 
commented upon. 

10)Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given 
by the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company by its 
officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year. 

11) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given 
by the management, the managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in 
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read 
with Schedule V to the Companies Act; 

12) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of 
clause 4 (xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 
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13) In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 
and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial 

Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

14} Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given 

by the management, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private 

placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under 

review. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xiv) of the Order are not applicable to 

the Company and hence not commented upon. 

15) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given 

by the management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with 

directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of 

the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 

16) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the 

Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the 

Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 

For G. P. KAPADIA & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.104768W 

Atul B. Desai 
Partner 
Membership No.: 030850 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: At>il l \6 ~ LO l 9 
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

[Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in the 
Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of HARISH CEMENT LIMITED on 
the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 20 l 9] 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of 
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of HARISH CEMENT 
LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of [nternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by The Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") 
and the Standards on Auditing, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, 
both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding 
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
Reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that ( l) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;(2)provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations 
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject 
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). 

For G. P. KAPADIA & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN.104768W 

~ · 
Atul B. Desai 
Partner 
Membership No. : 030850 
Place: Mumbai ~ 
Date: ltp-rll lb lO 1 L'f 
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ALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2019 

Partict1Jars Not<,No, 

ASSETS 

Non-current assets 

Property, Plant and Equipment 2 
Capital work-in-progress 2 

Intangible assets under development 

Financial Assets 

Others 3 
Other non-current assets 4 

Curre.nt assets 

Fln.ancial Assets 

cash and cash eQulvalen1s s 
Bank balanoes Olhe, than above 6 
Others 3 

Current Tax Assets (Net) 7 

Other current assets 8 

Total As.sets 

EQUnY AND UA82LmES 

Equity 

) Eciu1ty Share Capital 9 
Other Equity 

LIABILmES 

Curn!nt liabilities 

Financial Uabilities 

Trade payables 10 
Other financial liabilities 11 

Total Equity and Li~bilities 

Significant Accounting Policies 

The accompanyin~ Notes n!l'erred to above fonn an Integral part oftfte Financial Statements. 

In terms of our report attached, 

For G,P. Kapadia & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No: 104768W 

Atul 8. Desai 

Membership No: 030850 
Partner 

Place : Mumbai 

Date :•April 16, 2019 

I l1Jrish Cement limited 

9361,52 

2869.67 

0,:30 0,30 

3318,Sl 

4.03 

0,00 

0.18 4.21 

1.47 

83,88 

24.74 

15377,98 

3.94 

2~2.!12 236.86 

AS at 

March 31, 2019 

15,550.02 

89.56 

15,639.58 

15,402.12 

236.86 

15,639.58 

for and on behalf of the Board 

f in 

Asat 

Mam:h 31, 2018 

9,362.17 

2,855.15 

0.30 

3,318.SJ 

15,536.15 

O,S6 

3.00 

0.44 

1.12 

83.24 

15,624.51 

24.72 

15,363.03 

15,387.75 

).8<1 

232.92 

236.76 

15,624.51 



Harish Cement Limited 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 

Particulars Note No. 

Revenue r,om Operations 

Other Income 12 
Total Income (I) 

Expenses 

Other Expenses 13 

Total expenses (Ill 

Profit berore tax 
Tax Expenses: 

Current Tax 

Deferred Tax Charge 

Total 

Profit for the Year 

Earnings Per Equity Share (Face Value· 10 e.adl} 
Basic (in') 
Dlluted(!n ') 

The accompanying Notes rererred to above rorm an integral part of the Financial Statements. 

ln terms of our report attached. 

· r G.P. Kapadia lit Co. 

Chartered Aocountants 

Firm Registration No: 104768W 

~~' 
Atul B. Desai 

Membership No: 030850 

Partner 

Place : Mumbai 

Date :-April 16, l019 

) 

Haris!! Cement limited 

~ in Lakhs 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 

0,25 0.26 
0.25 0.26 

0.26 0.26 

0,26 0.26 

(0.01) (0.00) 

(0,01) (0,00) 

(0.00} (0.00) 

(0,00} (0.00) 

For and on behalf of tile Board 

.. 



Notes to Financial Statements 

NOTE3 

O™ER FINANCIAL ASSETS 

Particulars 

Interest Accrued on Deposits 

Fixed Deposits with eank with maturity > 12 months 

Particulars 

NOTE4 

OTHER NON - CURRENT ASSETS 

capital Mvances 

Balance with Governme,1t Authorities 

NOTES 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Balance with banks (Current Account) 

NOT£6 
0 ANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

'Olhet Bank Balances 

Fixed Deposits with Banks • (Maturity more than .3 months and upto 12 months} 

NOTE7 

CURRENT TAX ASSETS 

MvanceTa< 

NOTES 

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS: 

Balance with Government Authorities 

Prepaid Expenses 

) 

f in Lakhs 

Non-current Cur~nt 

Asat AS at As~t AS at 

March 31, 2019 Marrch 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 Marrch 31. 2018 

0,18 0.44 

0.30 O.JO 
0.30 0.30 0.18 0.44 

Asat Asat 

March Jl, l019 Marrch 31, 2018 

775.95 775.95 

l,542.58 2,542.58 

3,318,53 3,318.53 

4.03 0.56 

4.03 0.56 

J.00 

3.00 

1.47 1.12 

1.47 1.12 

71,75 71.75 

12,13 11.49 

83.88 83.24 

ffansh cement limited 



Notes to Financial Statements 

Particufars 
Asat 

March 31, 2019 

NOTE9 No. of Shares , in Lakh• No. of Shares 

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 

Authorised 

Equfty Shares of , 10 each 50,00,000 500,00 50,00,000 
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Pald·up 

Equity Shares of '-10 each fully paid-up 147217 24.72 247217 
issued, Subscribed and Partly Pald·up 

384 0.02 Equity Shares of U.D each partly pald·up ( f 5 each pa= rtl=y~p;:.al:::d..:u,:P;,.) ______________________ ....;:;.:,..:. ______ =:.::.. 
247601 24,74 247217 

(a) Reconciliation of the Shares Outstanding at the beginning and at the end of ttte ye.ir 
No. or shares f in lakhs No, or Shares 

247217 24.72 Outstanding at the beginning of lhe yea= r------------------------------== :.:_ _____ ..;..:.=cc...- - 2;47025 

Add: Shares Issued to Ultratech Cement 
Outstanding at the end of the year 

(b) Shares held by Holding Company 
UltraTech Cement Limited 

(c) List or shareholders holding more than 50/o or Pald·up Equity Share capital 
UltraTech Cement Limited 

NOTI: 10 
TRADE PAYABtES 

P~rticulars 

Due to Others 

NOTE 1l 

OTHER FINANCIAL UABILJTIES 

Liability for Capital Goods 

384 
247601· 

247601 

No. of Shares 
147601 

Non•current 

Asat Asat 
March 31 2019 Marrch 31 2018 

Haris/I Cement limite(I 

0.02 192 
24.74 247217 

24,74 2,47 217 

0/o Holding No. of Shares 
100.000/o 2,47 217 

Current 
Asat 

March 31 2019 
3.94 
3.94 

:Z32,!l2 

232.~2 

t in Lakhs 

Asat 

Marn:h 31, 2018 

f in Lekhs 

500.00 

24.72 

24.72 

f In Lakhs 
24,70 

0.02 
24.72 

24.72 

% Holding 
100.00% 

f in Lakhs 

Asat 
Marn:h 31 2018 

3.84 
3.84 

232.92 

232.92 



Notes to r1nanrn1l Statr.mr.nts 

, in Lal<h• 

Particulars Yur ended Year ended 

March 31, 2019 Milrrth 31, 2018 
NOTl:12 

OTHER INCOME 

Interest Income on 
Interest Received on Others 0,25 0.26 

0.25 0.26 

NOTE13 

OTHER EXPENSES 

MIS(ellaneous Expenses 0,26 0.26 
0,26 0.26 

Hilnsll Cement Uml/'ed 



'.\oft~ to l'inandal Stakintnl,~ 

Note 2 

Propcr h ', rlant & Equipment 

Particulars Gross Block 

As at l\dditions Deductions/ 

April OI, 20111 Adjustments 

(A) Tangihle Assets 

Land: 

Freehold Land 9,36Ll I - ~ 

Office Equipment (L49 -
Furniture and 1-'ixturc 3.02 - -
Vehicles 0.00 - -
Total Tangible Asse 9.364.62 - -
(B) Intangible Assets 

Sullwarc 0.00 - -
Total Intangible As~ - - -
Total Assets (A+B) 9,364.62 - -
ADD: CAPlTAI, WORK-1'.\'-PROGRESS 

GRANO TOTAi,: 

Particulars Gross Block 

As al Additions Deducliuns/ 

ApriJOJ,2017 Adjustments 

(A) Tangihle As~ers 

I.and: 

freehohl Land 9,361.11 -
Office Equipment 0.49 -
Furniture and Fixture 3.02 -
Vehicles 0.00 -
Total Tangible Asse 9,364.62 -
(B) Intangible Assets 

Software 0.00 -
Total Intangible As! 0.00 -
Total Assets (A+B) 9,364.62 -
ADD: CAPITAL WOKK-IN·PROGRF.SS 

GRAND TOTAL : 

Drprcciation For The Year 

Le.\s: Derreciatior1 Transfer·ed to Pre-operative Exp 
Depreciation as per Profit & Loss Account 

Add: Capital Work in Progress includes: 

Pre-operative expenscs pending allocation : 

Misel'llancous Expenses 

Depreciation 

Total Pre-operative cxpcnscs 

Add: 8/f from previous year 

Ralante included in Capital work in Progress 

-
-
-
-
-

-
. 

. 

Asal As at 

Mar 31, 2019 ~pril 01, 2018 

9.36LI 1 -
0.49 0.27 
3.02 2.18 
0.00 

9,364.62 2.45 

0.00 -
- -

9.364.62 :us 

As at As at 

Mar JI, 20111 ~ pril O I, 20 I 7 

9,361.1 l -
0.49 0.27 

3.02 1.50 

0.00 -
9,364.62 1.77 

0.00 -, 

0.00 -
9,364.62 1.77 

Harish Cement limited 

Depreciation and Amortisation 

For the Deductions/ J\s at 
year A<!i ustments Mar 31, 2019 

- - -
- - 0.27 

0 .65 2.84 
-

0.65 - 3.10 

- - -
- - -

0.6S - 3.IO 

Ocprcciation and Amortisation 

1-'or the Deductions/ 

year Adjustments 

- . 

- -
0.68 
-

0.68 

- -
- -

0.68 . 

As at 

Mar 31. 2018 

-
0.27 

2.18 

-
2.45 

-
-

2.45 

MarJl.2019 

0.65 

0.6S 

f'or the year 
eueded March 

31.2019 

13.87 

0.65 

14.52 

2,855.15 

2.869.67 I 

f in Lakhs 
Net Block 

/\sat 

Mar 31, 2019 

9,361.11 

0.22 
0.18 

0.00 

9.361.S2 

0.00 

-
9,361.52 

2,869.67 

12,231.19 

f in Lakhs 
Net Block 

As at 

Mar 31. 2018 

9.361.11 
0.22 

0.84 
0.00 

9,362.17 

0.00 

0.00 

9,362.17 

2,855.15 
12,217.33 

Mar 31, 2018 

0.68 

0.68 

l•or Che year 
eneded March 

31,2018 

13.90 

0.68 

14.58 

2,840.58 

2,855.15 



Harlsh Cement limited 
Statement of Changes in Equity for year ended March 31,2019 

A, Equity Shire Captt.11 

For th• year endtd Mlrd'I 31, 2019 fin Lakh1 

Ba1.lrK11!SM.at Chang.,. In 8.ll,an«.Ha..t Mlr 
April 01, 2018 equity •har• ll.,2010 

<:1ptul during 
theyur 

14,72 0.02 24,74 

Far t~e yur ended M1rd1 31, 2018 

&al.1nc•Mat Ch1ng .. tn eat.anc• • at Mat 
April 01, 2017 equity ,h.at• 31,201.8 

coplt.lldurlng 
they .. , 

14,70 0.02 24.72 

II. Ot!Mlf Equity 

For the year ended March ll, 2019 tin Ldhr; 

Ruuves Ii Surolu, Effe<:tlve Otherltemc of Other Total Equity 
Capital Se<:urities Det1erm1re Gene111 Shire aptron lndAS R•tarned portion ol Comprehen1h,o Income 

Partlcut1r1 R~erve Premium Re.serve Redemption Reterve outnandlng T,.an111fatlon Eaming• CuhFlow (Reme.aaur11ment 
Re1e:rve r«tHrve# Rmerve He<lge, galno/(1 .... ) on doflnod 

benefit plan 

Bafance a, at Apdl 01, 2018 
1Sl63.20 ( 0,11) 15363.03 

Pront • ( t.oss) fo.r the yur 
(0.011 (0.01\ 

(UI.MlofShlrff 

14.96 14.96 
Rernea•urement galn/fas,s 
on definai benefit otan 
Other Compre.hcn1Jvc 
' como/(loH) ror the yea, 

Total Comprehen1hre 
J"comie/(1056) ro, the year 

. 
Balance•• ot Mu 31,2019 

15.378 •. 16 . . t0.18l . 15377.99 

Statement of Changes in Equity for year ended March 31,2018 

Reserwu a su,-afu• Eft'e«lve Other Item, ofOlher Total Equity 
Particurata Cloplblt s«urrtics Debenture Gener•I Share option Ind AS Retained portion of Comprehen1twe fncom1 

Reserve Premium Re,ern 11-mptlon Resc:rvo outatandlng Tr.aMlatfon Earninga CHhflow (R•me1,ur11ment 
Rtterve re.•rve# 11 ......... Hldg,N g1IM/(h>SIM) on defined 

blnent JilaA 

Balancea•at April 01, 2017 
l.Sl41. 2.5 (0,17) 15348.09 

P,ont • tots tor the re•r 
0.00 o.oo 

I.HUB o f Shara 

14.96 14.96 
Recmeuurciment gain/ Ion on 
defin.ed benefit plan 

ou,er Comprehen1twe 
lncome/(IC>M) for the ye,ar 

Tot.ii Comprehen11we 
tnccime/(lou) ror the year 

Bif1nce., at Mir 32,2018 
15363.20 . (0.17) 15363.0l 

Harish Ceme,it Lit11irer:/ 



Harish Cement Limited 

Notes to Financial Statements (Contd.) 

Note-1: Accounting Policies 

(i) Statement of Compliance 

These standalone financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act"), 
other relevant provisions of the Act and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), as 
applicable. 

The financial statements are authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on April 
16, 2019. 

(ii) Basis of Preparation & Presentation: 

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. 

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for 
goods and services. 

The statement of financial position presents Assets and Liabilities as current and non-current . 
For this purpose, an asset is classified as current if: 

{a) It is expected to be realised, or is intended to be sold or consumed, in the normal 
operating cycle; or 

(b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or It is expected to realise the asset 
within 12 months after the reporting period; or 

(c) The asset is a cash or equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or 
used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

Similarly, a liability is classified as current if: 

(a) It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; or It is held primarily for 
the purpose of trading; or 

(b) It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; or 

(c) The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the 
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could result 
in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments at the option of the counterparty does 
not affect this classification. 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 

(iii) Use of Estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires estimates and 
assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities on the date of 
the financial statements, the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period and the disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as of the date of the financial 
statements. Although these estimates are based on the management's best knowledge of 
current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in 
outcomes different from the estimates. Difference between actual results and estimates are 
recognized in the period in which the results are known or materialise. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to 
accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in the current and future periods. 

V 
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Harish Cement Limited 

Notes to Financial Statements (Contd.) 

(iv) Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE): 

The initial cost of PPE comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase 
taxes, and any directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to working condition and location for its 
intended use, including relevant borrowing costs and any expected costs of decommissioning, less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Expenditure incurred after the PPE 
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, are charged to the Statement of Profit 
and Loss in the period in which the costs are incurred. 

If significant parts of an item of PPE have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate 
items (major components) of PPE. 

Material items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and service equipment are classified as PPE when 
they meet the definition of PPE as specified in Ind AS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment. 

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss. 

(v) Depreciation: 

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of property, plant & 
equipment over its useful life and is provided on a straight-line basis over the useful lives as 
prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act. 2013 

Depreciable amount for property, plant & equipment is the cost of property, plant & equipment 
less its estimated residual value. The useful life of property, plant & equipment is the period 
over which property, plant & equipment is expected to be available for use by an entity, or the 
number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the entity. 

(vi) Provisions and contingent liabilities: 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result c 
past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be requirec 
settle such an obligation. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expec 
future cash flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current mar 
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Unwind 
of the discount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewec 
each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. 

A present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resour 
will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a canting 
liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past ever 
the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncer1 
future events not wholly within the control of the Company. 

Claims against the Company where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote, 
not disclosed as contingent liabilities. 

Contingent assets are not recognised or disclosed in financial statements since this may result in 
recognition of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually cert; 
then the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised. 

~ i) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise cash at bank and in hand 
short-term deposits with banks and short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible 



Harish Cement Limited 

Notes to Financial Statements (Contd.) 

into cash which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value and are held for the purpose of 
meeting short-term cash commitments. 
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Harish Cement Limited 

Notes to Financial Statements {Contd.) 

Note 14- Capital and other Commitments: 

I. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account, not provided for (net of advances) 
Rs.5965.65 Lacs (Previous Year'Rs.5965.65 Lacs). 

II. Certain land owners filed writ petitions challenging (1) acquisition of private lands by the State of Himachal 
Pradesh for setting up of cement plant and (2) environmental clearance granted to the project, before the High 
Court of Himachal Pradesh. The High Court of Himachal Pradesh quashed the notifications issued under Section 
6 and 7 of the Land Acquisition Act, 1894 and also the environmental clearance granted for the project on 
procedural grounds. The Company had filed Special Leave Petitions before the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India 
challenging the order of the High court of Himachal Pradesh. The Special leave Petitions filed by the Company 
has been admitted and converted to Civil appeals Nos. 1636 - 1641 of 2013.The matter is now pending with 
supreme court. 

Note 15 • Related party disclosures: 

{A) List of Related Parties where control exists: 

0/o Shareholding and 

Principal Place of Voting Power 
Name of the Related Party 

Business Asat 
Asat 

March 31, 2019 
March 31, 

2018 
{I) Holding Company: 

India 100% UltraTech Cement Limited 

Disclosure of related party transactions: 

, in Lakhs 

As at 31st As at 31st 
Nature of Transactions Mar' 2019 Mar' 2018 
Loans and advances received/(Repaid to Ultra Tech Cement Ltd) 0.00 0.00 

Share Application money received from UTCL 14.98 14.98 

Interest provided/Paid to UTCL 0.00 0 .00 

Shares issued to UTCL('Including premium amount) 14.98 14.98 

Total 14.98 14.98 

Note 16 -Auditors' remuneration (excluding service tax) and expenses: , in Lakhs 
Amount in, 

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended 
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 

(a} Statutory Auditors: 

Audit fees (including quarterly Limited Review) 0.10 0.10 

Tax audit fees o.oo o.oo 
Fees for other services o.oo o.oo 
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Harish Cement Limited 

Notes to Financial Statements (Contd.) 

Note 17 

Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year 
classification / disclosure. 

Signatures to Notes '1' to 17 

In terms of our reports attached. 

For G.P. Kapadia & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN No:• 104768W 

Atul B. Desai 
Membership No: 030850 
Partner 
Mumbai, April 16,2019 

for and on behalf of the Board 
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HARISH CEMENT LIMITED 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 

A CllSh Flow from Operating Activities: 

Profit&. (Loss) Before tax 

Adjustments f-or: 
Depreciation &. Amortisation 
Increase in Loans & Advances & other current Assets 
Decrease in Trade Payable and other llabllltles 
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities (A) 

B Cash Flow from Investing Activities: 
Purchase of Fixed Assets 
Sale of Fixed Assets 
Re<l'emption of Bank FD 
CWIP(Advances & project Dev.Expes) 
Net Cash used in Investing Activities (B) 

C Cash Flow from Financing Activities: 
Repayment of Short Term 8ortowings 
Borrowings taken/(Repald of Holding Co.) 
Shares Issued Amount (Including Premium) 
Net Cash Generated / (Used) from Financing Activities (C) 

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+ B + C) 
cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year 

Notes: 

, in Lakhs , in Lakhs 
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 

{0.01) {0.00) 

(0.73) 
0.10 

(0.64) 

3.00 
(13.87) 
(10.87) 

14.98 
14,98 

3.47 
0.56 
4.03 

(1.16) 
0.24 

(G.92) 

(13.90) 
(13.90) 

14.98 
14.98 

0.16 
0.40 
0.56 

1. c.asll now statement has lM!en prepared under the indirect method as set out In Ind~· 7 specified under Sec:1ion 133 of the Companies Act,2013, 

Significnt Accounting Policies Note l 

The Accompanying notes are an intesiral part of Financial Statements 

In terms of our report attached. 

For G.P.Kapadia & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regiatration No: 104768W 

Atul Desai 
Membership No:030850 

Partner 
Mumbai, April 16 ,2019 

For and on behalf of the Soard 

! 
Di~ 

~~ 
Direct~~ " 
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KPMG 
(Chartered Accountants) 
32A, Sir Mohamed Macan Markar Mawatha, 
P. 0. Box 186, 
Colombo 00300, Sri Lanka. 

Tel 
Fax 

Internet 

+94 • 11 542 6426 
+94 • 11 244 5872 
+94 • 11 244 6058 
www.kpmg.com/lk 

AUDITORS'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR GROUP REPORTING 
PURPOSES 

TO THg BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF ULTRATECR CEMENT LANKA (PVT) LTMfTED 

Year end : 31 March 2019 

Currency : lNR 

We have aud ited, for the purpose of the audit of the group financial statements of U ltra Tech Cement I .imited 

the general purpose financial statements of Ultra Tech Cement Lanka (Pvt) Limited as of 3 1 M arch 2019 and 

for the year then ended. 

Board's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Board of D irectors ("Board") is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the financial 

statements in accordance with policies and instructions contained in the Group Accounting Policies and 

principles followed by UltraTech Cement Limited. This responsibility includes the preparation of these 

financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Group Accounting Policies, and for 

such internal control as Board determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is lo express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conduct~d 

our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. International Standards ·on A uditing 

requi re that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform lhe audit to obtain reasonable 

assurance whether the special purpose financ ial information is free from material misstatement. 

An aud it involves performing procedures to obtain aud it evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 

financia l statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of 

the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In mak ing those 

risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity' s preparation o f the financial 

statements that g ive a true and fair view in order to design aud it procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 

control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 

reasonableness of accounting estimates made by Board, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 

financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate lo provide a basis for our 

audit opinion. 

Opin ion 

Tn our opinion, the accompany ing financial statements of UltraTech Cement Lanka (Private) L imited fl S of 

3 1 March 2019, and for the year then ended has been prepared, in al I material respects. in 11ccordance with 

the Group Accounting Policies and principles followed by the U lt rnTech Cement Limited. 
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Restriction on use and distribution 

These financial statements has been prepared for purpose of providing information to UltraTech Cement 

Limited to enable i t to prepare the consolidated financial statements of the Group. This report is intended 

solely for your information and use in conjunction with the audit of the Group financial statements of 

Ultra Tech Cement Limited and shou ld not be used by anyone for any other pmposc. 

Cl 1/\RTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Colombo 

9 April 2019 

-
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ULTRATECH CEMENT LANKA (PVT) LTD. 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2019 

Particulars 

ASSETS 

Non-Current Assets 

Property, Plant and Equipments 
capital Work·in·Progress 

Total Non-Current Assets 

Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 

Current Assets 
Inventories 
Financial Assets 

Investment others 
Trade Receivable 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Other Current Assets 

Tota l Current Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND UABILITTES 
EQUITY 
Shareholders' Funds 

Share Capital 

Other Equity 

UABILITIES 

Non-current l iabilities 
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 

Non-Current Provisions 
Total Non-Current Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 
Financial Liabilities 

Trade Payables 
Other Current Llabilllles 
Short-term Provisions 

Current Tax Liabilities 
Total Current Llablfltles 

TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITTES 

Significant Accounting Policies 

Note No. 

2 
2 

10 

3 

4 
5 
6 
7 
8 

9 

10 
11 

12 
13 
11 

1 
The accompanying Notes referred to integral part of the Financial Statements 

In terms of our report attached. 

For 

Partner 

Chartered Accountants 

Date: 09.04.2019 

Director 

219,379,548 

55,418,43S 

16,363,636 
792,794,278 

63,888,479 

413,922,246 

197,628,458 
407,519,552 

15,218,043 

785,205,637 
154,064,270 

1,812,411 
9,908,985 

INR 
Asat 

March 311 2019 

219,379,548 

9,590,734 

1,342,387,074 

115711357,356 

605,148,010 

15,218,043 

950,991,303 

1,571,357,356 

~ .............•. 
/J , Director 

~ . 

INF 
Asa· 

Marcil 31, 201! 

248,853,391 
13,732,94( 

262,586,33! 

172,081,69( 

4,105,811 
600, 111,32€ 

71,283,844 
64,398,50£ 

314,362,77l: 

1,226,343,95€ 

1,488,930,293 

209,205,021 

588,993,866 
798,198,887 

49,'170,361 
13,440,589 

62,910,950 

'182,174,188 

125,034,996 
1,792,538 

18,818,733 

627,820,455 

l,488,930,293 
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ULTRATECH CEMENT LANKA (PVT) LTD. 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 2019 . · . 

Revenue 
Sale of Products & Services {Gross) 
Operating Income 
Revenue from Operations (Net) 
Other Income 
Total Revenue {I ) 

Expenses 

Notes 

14 
15 

16 

Cost of Raw Materials Consumed 17 
Change in Inventories of Finished Goods,Work-in-Progress and Stock-in -Trad 18 
Employee Benefits Expenses 19 
Power and Fuel Consumed 
Freight & Forwarding Expenses 20 
Other Expenses 21 
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 22 
Total Expenses 
(Loss)/Proflt before Tax Expenses 
I ncome Tax Expenses 

Provision for Current Tax 
Deferred Tax (Reversal)/Expenses 

{Loss)/Profit for the Year 

Other Comprehensive Income 
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

(ii) Income Tax Relating to Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

Other Comprehensive Incottte for the year 

Tota l Comprehensive Income for the year 

Earnings Per Equity Share (Face Value · 10 each) 
Basic (In ' ) 

Diluted (in ' ) 

Significant Accounting Policies 
Accompanying Notes are integral part of Financial Statements 

In terms of our report attached. 

For 

Partner 

Chartered Accountants 

Date: 09.04.2019 

1 

!L 
Director 

6,561,620,420 
24,932,300 

INR INR 
APril 18 - March 19 April 17 - March 18 

5,633,890,334 
58,130,763 

6,586,552,720 5,692,021,097 
2,479,565 21,495,520 

6,589,032,285 5,713,516,618 

6,148,287,727 5,037,211,238 
9,378,538 11,664,676 

90,651,280 87,809,325 
16,051,478 14,791,663 

134,272,891 85,034,615 
361,440,409 268,756,096 

44,600,446 43,332,908 
6,804,682,769 5,548,600,521 
{215,650,483) 164,916,097 

44,428,920 
(59,191,776) 6,201,971 

(156,458,708) 114,285,206 

227,415 48,639 

(63,676) {13,6W 

163,739 35,020 

(156,294,969) 114,320,226 

{3.13} 2.29 
{3.13) 2.29 

n , Director 

~ -
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Ultratech Cement Limited 
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31,2019 
A . Equity Share Capital 

For the Period ended March 31, 2019 INR 

Balance as at Changes in equity Balance as at March 
April 01, 2018 share capital during 31,2019 

.. a._ .. - ..... 

209,205,021 (11,576,562) 197,628,458 

For the year ended March 31, 2018 

Balance as at Changes in equity Balance as at March 
April 01, 2017 share capital during 31,2018 

the vear 
212,765,957 (3,560,937) 209,205,021 

B. Other Equity 

For the Period ended March 31, 2019 INR 

Exchange Variation Total Equi ty 
Reserve Reserves & Surplus 

Particulars Retained Earnings 

Balance as at Apri l 01, 2018 (19,213,168) 608,207,033 588,993,866 
Profit for the year (25,179,346) (156,458,708) (181,638,053) 
Remeasurement ga in/loss on defined benefit plan 

- 163,739 163,739 
Total Comprehensive Income/(loss) for the year 

(25,179,346) (156,294,969) (181,474,314) 
Balance as at March 31,2019 (44,392,513) 451,912,064 407,519,552 

For the year ended March 31, 2018 INR 

Particulars Exchange Variation Total Equity 
Reserve Reserves & Surplus 

Retained Earnings 

Ba~nceasatAprilOl,2017 (8,501,610) 661,954,033 653,452,424 

Profit for the year (10,711,558) 114,285,206 103,573,649 

Remeasurement gain/loss on defined benefit plan 
- 35,020 35,020 

Total Comprehensive lncome/(loss) for the year (10,711,558) 114,320,227 103,608,669 

Dividends - (168,067,227) (168,067,227) 
Balance as at March 31,2018 (19.213,168) 608,207,033 588,993,866 

The Description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity is as follows: 

Retained Earnings 

a) Retained Earnings : The profit after tax after Dividend payment transfers to retained earnings for appropriation purposes. 

b) Exchange Variation Reserve : Foreign Exchange Translation Reserve has been created for Exchange variation in Opening Equity 
Share Capital and Reserves and Surplus 

Partner 
Chartered Accountants 
Date: 09.04.2019 

Director 
~ .... .. ..... .... .. 

CM Director 



ULTRATECH CEMENT LANKA (PVT) LTD. 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 

A Cash Flow from Operating Activities: 

Profit Before tax 
Adjustments for: 
Depreciation and Obsolescence 
Provision for Retirement Benefits 
Interest and Dividend Income 
Impairment on trade receivable 
Unrealised Foreign Exchange (Gain)/Loss 
(Profit)/Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 
Adjustments for: 
(Increase)/decrease in Inventories 
(Increase)/decrease in Sundry Debtors 
(Increase)/decrease in Loans and Advances 
Increase/(decrease} in Trade Payables and Other Liabilities 
Cash Generated from Operations 
Taxes paid 
Retiring gratuity paid 
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities (A) 

B Cash Flow from Investing Activities: 
Purchase of Fixed Assets 
(Increc1se)/decrease in Current Investments 
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 
Interest and Dividend Received 
Net Cash used in Investing Activities (B) 

C Cash Flow from Financing Activities: 
Dividend Paid 
Net Cash Generated / (Used) from Financing Activities (C) 

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+ B + C) 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year 

Notes: 
1. Purchase of fixed assets includes movements of capital work-in-progress during the year. 

2. Cash and cash equivalents represent cash and bank balances. 

Accounting Policies and Notes on Accounts 1 

Schedule referred above form an integral part of the Accounts. 

In terms of our report attached. 

For 

INR 
March 31, 2019 

(215,650,484) 

44,600,446 
3,245,199 

(2,479,565) 
2,291,044 

(23,292,873) 
270£050 

(191,016,183) 

116,663,255 
(194,973,996) 

(99,559,467) 
323,150,974 
(45,735,417) 

(246,051) 
(4S,981A68) 

(18,710,380) 
52,140,682 

2,676,236 
21479,565 

38,586,103 

(7,395,365) 
71,283,844 
63,888,479 

v!_ ........... . 
Partner 
Chartered Accountants 
Date: 09.04.2019 

Director ~ Director 

;: . 

INR 

March 31, 2018 
164,916,097 

43,332,908 
3,220,765 

(21,495,520) 

(10,390,428) 
179,622 

179,763,443 

(59,606,840) 
(128,527,664) 
(190,176,392) 
287,840,648 
89,293,196 

(62,933,790) 
{2,564,450) 
23,794,955 

(29,490,556} 
201,924,830 

3,277,311 
21,495,520 

197,207,105 

(168,067,227} 
(168,067,227) 

52,934,833 
18,349,011 
71,283,844 



UltraTech Cement Lanka (Private) Limited 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note l{A) Company Overview & Significant Accounting Policies: 

Company Overview 

UltraTech Cement Lanka (Pvt) Limited ("Company") is a Private Limited Liability Company 
incorporated and domiciled in Sri Lanka. The Company was incorporated under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007. The registered office and the principal place of business are situated at No 
81/11/1, New Nuge Road, Peliyagoda, Kelaniya. The Company is engaged in the importing naked 
cement and marketing the same in 50kg bags and in bulk form. 

Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) Statement of Compliance 

These accounting policies adapted by the Group have been adopted consistently by the Group 
entities for Group reporting purposes. 

(b) Basis of Preparation & Presentation: 

Basis of Preparation 

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following 
assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value: 
a. Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding 

financial instruments) 
b. Plan Assets of Employee's Defined Benefit Plan; and 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market 
conditions, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another 
valuation technique. In determining the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into 
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those 
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. 

Functional and Presentation Currency 

The Financial statements are prepared in Sri Lankan Rupees which is the functional currency of the 
Company and converted to Indian Rupees for consolidation purposes. 

Classification of Assets and Liabilities into Current/Non-Current: 

The Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of Current/ 
Non-Current classification of its Assets and Liabilities. 

For the purpose of Balance Sheet, an asset is classified as current if: 

(i) It is expected to be realised, or is intended to be sold or consumed, in the normal 
operating cycle; or 

(ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or 

(iii) It is expected to realise the asset within twelve months after the reporting period; or 

(iv) The asset is a cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used 
to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

Similarly, a liability is classified as current if: 

(i) It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; or 

(ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or 

(iii) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 



UltraTech Cement Lanka (Private) Limited 
- - -

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

( iv) The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability 
for at least twelve months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could result 
in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments at the option of the counterparty does 
not affect this classifica tion. 

All other liabilit ies are classified as non-current. 

{c) Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE): 

The initial cost of PPE comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable 
purchase taxes, and any directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to working condition and 
location for its intended use, including relevant borrowing costs and any expected costs of 
decommissioning, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

Subsequent costs are included in the assets's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, 
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will 
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and 
maintenance cost are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which they 
were incurred. 

If significant parts of an item of PPE have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of PPE. 

Material items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and service equipment are classified as PPE 
when they meet the definition of PPE as specified in Ind AS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment. 

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(d} Expenditure during construction period: 

Expenditure/ Income during construction period (including financing cost related to borrowed funds 
for construction or acquisition of qualifying PPE) is included under Capital Work-in-Progress and the 
same is allocated to the respective PPE on the completion of their construction . Advances given 
towards acquisition or construction of PPE outstanding at each reporting date are disclosed as 
Capital Advances under "Other non-current Assets". 

(e} Depreciation: 

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of PPE over its useful life and is 
provided on a straight-line basis over the useful lives as prescribed in Schedule II to the Act or as 
per technical assessment. Land with indefinite life is not depreciated. 

Depreciable amount for PPE is the cost of PPE less its estimated residual value. The useful life of 
PPE is the period over which PPE is expected to be available for use by the Company, or the 
number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the Company. 

In case of certain classes of PPE, the Company uses different useful lives than those prescribed in 
Schedule II to the Act. The useful lives have been assessed based on technical advice, taking into 
account the nature of the PPE and the estimated usage of the asset on the basis of management's 
best estimation of obtaining economic benefits from those classes of assets. 

Such classes of assets and their estimated useful lives are as under: 



UltraTech Cement Lanka (Private) Limited 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

No Nature of property, plant & equipment Useful life of the property, plant & 
equipment 

1 Building 25 Years 

2 Plant & machinery 18 Years 

3 Lab Equipment 06 Years 

4 Electronic Installation 18 Years 

5 Office Equipment 04 Years 

6 Motor Cars 05 Years 

7 Motor Cycles 05 Years 

8 HT Power line 18 Years 

9 Computers 04 Years 

10 Furniture and Fixtures 06 Years 

Depreciation on addit ions is provided on a pro-rata basis from the month of installation or 
acquisition and in case of Projects from the date of commencement of commercial production. 
Depreciation on deductions/disposals is provided on a pro-rata basis up to the month preceding the 
month of deduction/disposal. 

The depreciation period for the building, plant and machinery, HT Power line and Electronic 
Installat ion asset categories will be as given above or the remaining Lease period of the land, 
whichever is lower. 

(f) Intangible Assets and Amortisation: 

• Internally generated Intangible Assets: (Research and Development expenditure) 

Expenditure pertaining to research is expensed as Incurred. Expenditure incurred on 
development is capitalised if such expenditure leads to creation of an asset, otherwise such 
expenditure is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

No 

1 

Intangible Assets acquired separately: 

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment, if any. The Company determines the 
amortisation period as the period over which the future economic benefits will flow to t11e 
Company after taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances. The estimated useful 
life and amortisation method are reviewed periodically, with the effect of any changes in 
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. 

Class of intangible assets and their estimated useful lives are as under : 

Nature of property, plant & Useful life of the property, plant & 
equipment equipment 

Software 3 Years 

(g) Non-current assets (or disposa l groups) classified as held for disposal: 

Assets are classified as held for disposal and stated at the lower of carrying amount and fa ir value 
less costs to sell. 

To classify any Asset as "Asset held for disposal" the asset must be available for immediate sale 
and its sale must be highly probable. Such assets or group of assets are presented separately in the 
Balance Sheet, in the line "Assets held for disposal". Once classified as held for disposal, intangible 
assets and property, plant and equipment are no longer amortised or depreciated 
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UltraTech Cement Lanka (Private) Limited 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(h) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets 

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of non-financial 
assets to determine whether there Is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment 
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to 
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the 
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the 
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of 
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, 
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest Company of cash-generating units for which a 
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified. 

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are 
tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be 
impaired. 

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing 
value in use, the estimated fu ture cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. 

I f the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its 
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its 
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the 
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, In which case the impairment loss is treated as a 
revaluation decrease. 

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash­
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the 
Increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined 
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A 
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset 
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a 
revaluation Increase. 

(i) Inventories: 

Inventories are valued as follows: 

Ra w materials, fuel, stores & spare parts and packing materials: 

Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV). However, these items are considered to 
be realisable at cost, if the finished products, in which they will be used, are expected to be 
sold at or above cost. Cost is determined on weighted average basis. 

Work-in- progress (WIP), finished goods, stock-in-trade and trial run inventories: 

Valued at lower of cost and NRV. Cost of Finished goods and WIP includes cost of raw 
materials, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their 
present location and condition. Cost of inventories is computed on weighted average basis. 

Waste / Scrap: 

Waste / Scrap inventory is valued at NRV. 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the 
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

(j) Borrowing Costs: 
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UltraTech Cement Lanka (Private) Limited 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

asset t hat necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other 
borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

Borrowing cost includes interest expense, amortization of discounts, hedge related cost incurred in 
connection with foreign currency borrowings, ancillary costs incurred in connection with borrowing 
of funds and exchange difference arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are 
regarded as an adjustment to the Interest cost. 

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their 
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. 

(k) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets: 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation ( legal or constructive) as a 
result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably estimated, 
will be required to settle such an obligation. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the 
expected future cash flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that 
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks 
specific to the liability. Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the 
current best estimate. 

A present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable t hat an outflow of 
resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is 
disclosed as a contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible 
obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence 
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 
Company. 

Claims against the Company where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is 
remote, are not disclosed as contingent liabilities. 

Contingent assets are not recognised in financial statements since this may result in the recognition 
of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, 
then the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised. 
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(I) Revenue Recognition: 

Revenue is recognized on the basis of approved contracts regarding the transfer of goods or 
services to a customer for an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to 
be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. 

• Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable taking into 
account the amount of discounts, volume rebates, outgoing taxes on sales. Any amount 
receivable from the customer and are recognised after the control of tl1e goods sold are 
transferred. 

• Difference between the sale price and carrying value of investment is recognised as profit or 
loss on sale / redemption on investment on trade date of transaction. 

(m) Lease: 
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all 
the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as Operating 
Leases. 

Operating Lease: Lease rentals are charged or recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on 
a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where the payment are structured to increase in 
line with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increase. 

Finance Lease: Assets held under finance lease are recognised as assets of the Company at their 
fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease 
payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the Balance Sheet as a finance 
lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the 
lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the 
liability. Finance charges are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless they are directly 
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance with the 
Company's policy on borrowing costs. 

(n) Employee benefits 

Defined benefit plan 

For defined benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit 
credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting 
period. Re-measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the 
asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected 
immediately in the Balance Sheet with a charge or credit recognised in Other Comprehensive 
Income (OCI) in the period in which they occur. Re-measurement recognised in OCI is reflected 
immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss. Past 
service cost is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period of a plan amendment. 
Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at t he beginning of the period to the net 
defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows: 

service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on 
curtailments and settlements); 

• net interest expense or income; and 
re-measurement 

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is 
determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. 
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The defined benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the actual deficit or 
surplus in the Company's defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation Is limited 
to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or 
reductions in future contributions to the plans. 

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the entity can no longer 
withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when the entity recognises any related 
restructuring costs. 

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits 

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual 
leave and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered. 

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted 
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service. 

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present 
value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in respect of 

services provided by employees up to the reporting date. 

( o) Income Taxes: 

Income Tax expenses comprise current tax and deferred tax charge or credit. 

Current Tax is measured on t he basis of estimated taxable income for the current accounting 
period in accordance with the applicable tax rates and t he provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 
and other applicable tax laws. 

Deferred tax is provided, on all temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases 
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax 
assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates t hat are expected to be applied to the temporary 
differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted 
at the reporting date. Tax relating to items recognised directly in equity or OCI is recognised in 
equity or OCI and not in the Statement Profit and Loss. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset 
if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilit ies and assets, and they relate to 
income taxes levied by the same tax authority, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and 
assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously. 

A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be 
available against which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed 
at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable. 

(p) Earnings Per Share: 

Basic Earnings Per Share ("EPS") is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) after tax for the 
year attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the year. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit/(loss) after tax for the year 
attributable to the equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 
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(q) Foreign Currency transactions: 

In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the 
Company's functional currency (i.e. foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange 
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items 
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary 
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates 
prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured 
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate as at the 
date of initial transactions. 

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
account in the period in which they arise except for: 

• exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for 
future productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded 
as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings; 

• exchange differences relating to qualifying effective cash flow hedges and qualifying net 
investment hedges in foreign operations. 

Translation to the presentation currency 

The results and financial position of an entity whose functional currency is different from presentational 
currency is translated as follow: 

• assets, liabilities and components of equity, other than in respect of current year's income and 
expenses for each statement of financial position presented shall be translated at closing rate 
as at the reporting date. 

• income and expense for each statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income shall 
be translated at exchange rate at the date of the transaction. 

(r) Financial Instruments: 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instruments. 

Initial Recognition: 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that 
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other 
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and ancillary costs 
related to borrowings) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or 
financial liabili ties, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to 
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are 
recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Al l regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade 
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within 
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace. 

Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Financial Assets 

The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value 
through other comprehensive income ("FVOCI'') or fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL") on 
the basis of following: 

• the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and 
the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. 
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Amortised Cost: 

A financial asset shall be classified and measured at amortised cost if both · of the following 
conditions are met: 

• the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in 
order to collect contractual cash flows and 

• the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Fair Value through OCI: 

A financial asset shall be classified and measured at fair value through OCI if both of the following 

conditions are met: 

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both 
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and 

• the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on t he principal amount outstanding. 

Fair Value through Profit or Loss: 

A financial asset shall be classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is 
measured at amortised cost or at fair value through OCI. 

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost 
or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets. 

Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or 'other financial liabilit ies'. 

Financial Liabilities at FVTPL: 

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or are 
designated upon initial recognition as FVTPL. 

Gains or Losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Other Financial Liabilities: 

Other financial liabilities ( including borrowings and trade and other payables) are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability 
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate 
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or 
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other 
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a 
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. 
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Impairment of financial assets: 

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of 
each reporting period. The Company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on 
financial asset. In case of trade receivables, the Company follows the simplified approach permitted 
by Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments for recognition of impairment loss allowance. The application 
of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. The Company 
calculates the expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix on the basis of 
its historical credit loss experience. 

Derecognition of financial assets: 

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to t he cash flows from the 
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially 
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company 
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to 
pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred 
financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises an 
associated liability. 

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset 's carrying amount and the 
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been 
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss 

(s) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand, which are 
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value and are held for the purpose of meeting short-term 
cash commitments. Short term deposits with banks that are readily convertible into cash have been 
classified under Investments - Others. 

(t) Financial liabilities and equity instruments: 

• Classification as debt or equity 

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities 
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the 
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. 

Equity instruments 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity 
after deducting all of its liabilit ies. Equity instruments issued by a Company are recognised at 
the proceeds received. 
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Note 1: Approval of Financial Statements: 

The statutory financi91 statements prepared in Sri Lankan Rupees were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 09th 
April, 2019. These financial statement have been prepared and authorized on 09t11 April 2019 for consolidation purposes. 

Note 1.1 -Employee Benefits: (Ind AS 19) 

(A) Defined Benefit Plans: 

Gratuity: 

The gratuity payable to employees is based on the employee's service and last drawn salary at the time of leaving the services of the Company and is 
in accordance with the Rules of the Company for payment of gratuity. 

Inherent Risk 

The plan is defined benefit in nature which is sponsored by the Company and hence it underwrites all the risks pertaining to the plan. In particular, this 
exposes the Company to actuarial risk such as adverse salary growth, change in demographic experience, inadequate return on underlying plan assets. 
This may result in an increase in cost of providing these benefits to employees in future. Since the benefits are lump sum in nature, the plan is not 
subject to any longevity risks. 

Defined Benefit Plans as per Actuarial Valuation as follows 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

. in INR 

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 

Change in defined benefit obligation 
Opening Balance of Present value of Defined-~. 

--------- -····-·----·----·-----·-- ··- ---·---
15,233,127 14,876,981 Benefit Obligation 

-------·"-·--·-----·""'"'"-'"'""--· .. -------··-·-····-·------···-·-·-····-·-·--------1-·"·-·----·--------------... -----
Adjustment of: 

Current Service Cost 1,658,994 1,531,478 
---------- ··· .. ·----.. ·-·--·"""·----·-----···-·-··----·---··-·-·---··--·-·-------1--------------.. ----·-----
__ In_tere.st c_o_st __ ·--·-·-- - ----------·- ·-·-··-- - -·--·-·---·--···-·-·-···-·-·--· ___ _!,_5_8_6~~~~-'-----·---------·- 1,689,287 

Re measurements due to: 
Actuarial loss/ (gain) arising from change in - _..__ (708,641) 817,213 

Financial Assumptions ________ -----·- ·-··-·· ___ , ................. -----·------·- -·-·--·--------·--·-~ ----·-·-·-·-·····-··---------
Actuarial loss/ (gain) arising on account of 481,226 (865,852) 

Ex~ience Changes .... -·-·-···-··---·-----·-····-·-··· ··- ·-----·---·----···---··--·····-···········-·-·······-·-·-·-·1-----------··-·---·-·-····-·····------·----· 
Benefits Paid / Payable / Other 

Closing Balance of Present value of 
Defined Benefit Obligation 

Change in Fair Value of Assets 

(1,220,456) (2,81S,980) 

17,030,455 15,233,127 

Opening Balance of Fair Value·- of_ P_l_a_n--····--· ... -· .. ---·-·------·-----.. ·--................. -... _____ ,, ............. ---·-····-·---.. ·-·-·-··-·-·-·-·-·-······-·-··· .. ··-·-··········-·--··-·-···-· 

Assets----------- ·-·-····-·-·-····-··-··-·--------·······-····-··-----·-·----·-·-·-·-----··-·--·-·-·-·-·--·--·-·-·---·-·-·······-·-··- ·----·-·-·-·--·--····-· .. ·--·· .. ····-.......................... ·-······---···· 
Contribution / Paid by the employer 

---·-··--··"······-----······--···-·-·-····-·---·-·-----·-----···-·····-· ·--··---·--··----···-·-······-··-·-····-·-·--··-·-·--·-·-····-·-·- -·--·- ·····-····-·---·-·--·-·-·--·-·---····-·-·-····- ····- -·-·-····--···-· 
Benefits Paid 
Closing Balance of Fair Value of Plan 
Assets 

Net Asset/ (Liability) recognised in the 
Balance Sheet 

Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation 

Net Asset/ (liability) in the Balance Sheet 

Expenses re cognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss 

Current Service Cost 

Interest Cost 

Total Expense 

Total expenses charged to the Statement 
of Profit and Loss 

(17,030,455) 

(17,030,455) 

1,658,994 

1,586,205 

3,245,199 

3,245,199 .#.'o MG~ 

(15,233,127) 

(15,233,127) 

1,531,478 

1,689,287 

3,220,765 

3,220,765 
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. (v) 

(vi) 

' in INR 

Particulars 
As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 

Re-measurements recognised in Other 
_Come!:_ehensive Income (O_f!L __ ....... _ ,_ ____________________ .... ____ __ -·-----· .. ·-··-----.. ·- ............... - ... ·-··--
Changes in Financial Assumptions 

Experience Adjustments 

Gain recognised in Other Comprehensive 
Income (OCI): 
Maturity profile of defined benefit 

(708,641) 

481,226 

(227,415) 

817,213 

(865,852) 

(48,639) 

_ oblt911tion: ..... --.. -·------···---·------··· .. ···-.. ····--····--.. ·--·-············--·----....... _______ .......... _ . ........................................... --.. ··-____ _ 

Within the next 12 months 1,879,150 2,344,805 

Between 2 and 5 years 
6,970,168 ,__ 7,174,717 

--·---·-----·----.. ·······--------··---·--·--· -----··-···------·-··------ - ----.. ·······---····---------------------l 
Between 6 and 9 years 15,696,417 16,114,421 

10 Years and above 

Quantitative sensitivity analysis for 
(vii) JjJIBificant assu.!!!Ptions as below: __________ _ 

Increase/(Decrease) on present value of 
defined benefits obligation at the end of 

------- -~~ear ___ ________ _ 
One percentage point increase in discount rate (786,172) (813,793) 

-·--·-·-·-··"""'!,,-...-- - ·---···-·-·-·-·-·-·- --................... ----·-·--·---· .. ··-·-- ··-·-·-----·-·-·-----.. ·---·- ·----·- ·····--.. ·---------····-·-··-·-- ·--·----·-·--·-·--
One percentage point decrease in discount rate 

ane· percentage point increase in salary 
escalation rate 

876,180 910,027 

~~~2 -888,329 
'-one percentage point decrease in salary ··--········ .... ___ ____ ·-··--··················r7- 8-5-,9-0_2_) . __ .......... __ ............ ___________ .. , __ _ 

escalation rate (809,69?) ·····--·-·-·-·-·-···------· ... _,,,, ............ _ .. _,_ .. ,. __ ._ .... ________ _ 
One percentage point increase in employee (176,320) (215,472) 
turnover rate 

-- One percentage point decrease in employee 
turnover rate 

167,701 200,805 

(viii) 
Actuarial Assumptions: 

Discount Rate (p.a.) 11.28% 10.5% .. _ ... _ .............. _ .......... - ...... ---------------Age:· 20 2s 30··· -·-·3.s'-· 40 45 so --

Turnover Rate Turnover: 10.0% 10.0% 10.0% 7.5% 5.0% 2.5% 1.0% 
·-·--··-, .. , ........................ ____ ····-·-· ... _ .......... __ ,_ ----·--- --- --- . ··----- - ·-------·-------·---, .. ,, ... , .. , _____ .. ,, .. ---------·---... .. 

GA 1983 Mortality Table 
Selected Age 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 Mortality tables Rate for Male 0.0377% 0.0464% 0.0607% 
Rate for Female 0.0189% 0.0253% 0.0342% 

0.0860% 0.1238% 0.2183% 0.3909% 0.6131% 
0.0476% 0.0665% 0.101% 0. 1647% 0.2541 % 

Salary Escalation Rate (p.a.) 100/o 10% 
·---·---·-·-·-· .. ·-··"·"-·"·-·-·-·-·--,,,, __ ,, .. ,,_,., ______ , .. _ _ ,,, .. ,-- 1-----·--·-·--··-----·-·"·-"'-'""''""' ____ ........... ----·-··- "·-·--····-·-··----···-.. --, ··-···- .............. _ , __ 

Retirement age : 
Management - 55 
Non-Manaaement- 55 

* The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 5.5 years (March 18: 6.4 years) 

55 
55 

** These Sensitivities have been calculated to show the movement in defined benefit obligation in isolation and assuming there are no other changes 
in market conditions at the accounting date. There have been no changes from the previous periods in the methods and assumptions used in preparing 
the sensitivity analyses. 

Discount Rate: 

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market rates of sri lanka government securities for the estimated term of obligations. 

Salary Escalation Rate: 

The estimates of future salary increases are considered taking into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors. 

The company's expected contribution during next year is 0.36 Crores (March 31, 2019 0.32 Crores). 
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(B) Defined Contribution Plans: 

Amount recognized as an expense and included in Note 19 under the head "Contribution to Provident and other Funds" of Statement of Profit and 

Loss · 0.30 Crores (Previous Year ' 0.32 Crores). 

Note 1.2 - Segment Reporting: 

The Company is exclusively engaged in t11e business of cement. Accordingly, as per Ind AS 108 'Operating Segments', no disclosures related to segments 
are presented in these standalone financial statements. 

Note 1.3 - Related party disclosures (Ind AS 24) 

{A) List of Related Parties: 

Name of the Related Party 

(I) Holding Company: 
UltraTech Cement Limited 

Country of 
Incorporation 

India 

0/o Shareholding and 
Votina Power 

As at March 31, As at March 31, 
2019 2018 

800/o 80% 

{a) The following transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of business: 
' in INR 

Nature of Transaction/Relationship 
Year Ended March Year Ended March 

31 2019 31, 2018 

Purchase of Goods: 
--··"'""'-'"" -----·---·---------.. ·----·-·· .. ·--------·-·-·--·--·-·--· ·---·--·-·- ····-·- ··-·-···-··-·-··- ·--- ... ,.,_ ···---·---

Holding Company: _,,,_, __ ,,, __ , ___ , _________ . _______ , _________ -1--- ········""·- ----, ...... ,.,-------··-------1 
UltraTech Cement Limited 3,175,615,992 3,114,691,595 

Total 3,175,615,992 3,114,691,595 

...... Receivil}j!_ of Services: ....... -,.---·············---······--·····-··----··-···------·-······-·····---·----+-----·---···-- .... - ..... ___ , __ ,, _______ 1 

Holding Company: 

UltraTech Cement Limited 653,316,925 387,338,980 

Total 653,316,925 387,338,980 

Dividend Paid 
·---·-··----·- ·····"""""" .... --.. -······-··--·······--·······-- ....... ,,.,---······"""'·-····-·----· ··-·······--·--·----··--.. ··-··" 

Holding Company: 
-·-·------------·--···-··---·---····-·-·----·------·····-------------·-···""""""""-'"""'"'"'"'"'"'"'"'"'"'"'"'" """•'••••··---- ----··-.. ·-----··---··--·"···· 

UltraTech Cement Limited 

Total 

(b) Outstanding balances: 

Nature of Transaction/Relationship 

Trade Payables: 

Holding Company: 

UltraTech Cement Limited 

Total 

(c) Compensation of KMP of the Company: 

Nature of transaction/relationship 

Short-term employee benefits 

Post-employment pension and medical benefits 

Terminal benefits 

Total compensation paid to KMP 

As at 
March 31, 2019 

656,620,171 

656,620, 171 

Year Ended March 
31 2019 

8,514,045 

53,265 

8,567,310 

134,453,782 

134,453,782 

As at 
March 31, 2018 

430,043,675 

430,043,675 

. in INR 

Year Ended 
March 31 2018 

10,882,806 

84,568 

1,604,987 

12,572,361 
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The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined by the remuneration committee having regard to the performance of the individuals 
and market trends. 

Terms and Conditions of transactions with Related Parties: 

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. Outstanding balances 
at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related 
party receivables or payables. 

For the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties. This 
assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party 
operates. 

Note 1.4 - Income Taxes (Ind AS 12): 

Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate ' in INR 
Particulars Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 
Accounting {loss)/profit before income tax (215,650,483) 164 916 097 
Annlicable tax rate 28% 28% 
Comouted tax exoenses - 46176 507 
Effect of Non-Deductible expenses - 16 171 797 
Effect of Allowances for tax ouroose - (17 932 362) 
Effect of Previous vear adiustments - 26 597 
others (59 191,776) 6 188 352 
Income tax expense (reversal)/ charged to the statement of profit csg,191,776) 50,630,891 
and loss 

(i) The accounting loss before income tax resulted in no taxable income for the Company. Accordingly, there is no current tax provision during 
the year. 

(ii) The Company not yet announced a proposed dividend and accordingly, the dividend distribution tax on account of the same is not applicable. 

Dividend tax will be recognized once the dividend is paid. (March 31, 2018 • 0.00 Crores). 

Note 1.5 - Earnings per Share (EPS): 

Particulars 

(A) Basic EPS: 

Year Ended 
March 31, 2019 

'in INR 

Year Ended 
March 31 2018 

__ (i) Net (Loss)/Profit attributable to Equitv:.shaieholde~s ..... -- _____ _________ ___ ---{156,4581J 08L. --~~:_::-i°14,285,206 _ 

(ii) Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding (Nos.) so,000,000 S0,000,000 

Basic <Loss)/EPS n mrnn (3.13) 2.29 

Note 1.6 - Auditors' remuneration (excluding service tax) and expenses: 

' in INR 

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended 
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 

(a) Statutory Auditors: 

Audit fees 331,950 336,134 _ ... , .. ___ ,,., ........... , .. , _____ , .. , ................. -, ......... -.,-... -...... --.. -................................ - ...... ................ ............ __ .................. ,_ , __ ,, ,_ , ___ ,,. __ ... __ ........... _ .,.., ____ ,.,,., - ... --............. -...... ----.. , ............... ..................... ,, ____ .., __ ,,, ...... _ .. 
Fees for other services • '"; O. 602 157,563 -~ "" I r~"- , w._{.i A 

Note 1.7 I ·o ,, ) 
The following expenses are included in the different heads of expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss: i _ , 

1 

• • 

'\?bl•i,i-i , , 111 INR 

Year Ended March 31, 2019 Year'E~aeifrvlarch 31, 2018 

Particulars 
Raw Power Total Raw Materials Power Total 

Materials and Fuel Consumed and Fuel 
Consumed Consumed Consumed 

Stores and Spares Consumed 228,360,197 16,051,478 244,411,675 180,507,139 14,791,663 195,298,802 
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Note 1.8 

ACCOUNTING CLASSIFICATIONS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS: IND AS 113 

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction 
between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. 

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique: 

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for Identical assets or liabilities 

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly 

Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data 

' in INR 
As at As at 

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 
Particulars Carrying Carrying Fair Value 

amount Fair Value amount 

Financial Assets at Amortised cost 

Trade receivables 792,794,278 792,794,278 600,111,326 600,111,326 

cash and bank balances 63,888,479 63,888,479 135,682,352 135,682,352 

Investments 16,363,636 16,363,636 4,105,811 4,105,811 

Total 873,046,393 873,046,393 739,899,489 739,899,489 

Financial liabilities at amortised cost 

Trade payables 785,205,637 785,205,637 482,174,188 482,174,188 

Total 785,205,637 785,205,637 482,174,188 482,174,188 

Note No. 1.9 

Financial Risk Management Objectives {Ind AS 107): 

The Company's principal financial liabilities, comprises of, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the 
Company's operations. The Company's principal financial assets, include trade and other receivables, investments and cash and cash equivalents that 
derive directly from its operations. 

The Company's activities exposes it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. Company's overall risk management focuses on the unpredictability of 
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the company. 

Risk 
I) Market Risk 
A) Foreign Currency Risk 

II) Credit Risk 

Exposure Arising From 

Committed commercial 
transaction 
Financial asset and liabilities not 
denominated in INR 
Trade receivables, Investments 

Measurement 

Cash Flow Forecasting 
Sensitivity Analysis 

Aging analysis, Credit Rating 

Management 

(a) Forward foreign exchange 
contracts 

(a) Credit limit & credit worthiness 
monitoring, 

(b) Criteria based approval 

-- .. ·-·-·-.... -·-·- ---·-------.. ·-----.. -·_ .... _ ..... -.... -. ~ ...... -...... -.... -_ .... ___ ...... -........ ____ _ ______ ............... -·-·-·--·-·----- _ ......... -... -.. -··· .......... ·-- ·---·--·-... process 

Market Risk: 

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument. 
The value of a financial Instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, equity prices and other 
market changes that affect market risk sensitive instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive fi I eiab.o§ ruments including 
investments ancl c1epos1ts, foreign currency receivables, payables ancl 1oans ancl borrowings. na_\> MG i< 

1( "'~ 

II'/ . . t~ i J~~/1 ~ .'-. ..... ,$'-
!...."'<.~dN~~-

~-:..;:;. 



I 
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Foreign Currency Risk: 

Foreign currency risk is the risk of impact related to fair value or future cash flows of an exposure in foreign currency, which fluctuate because of 
changes in foreign exchange rates. The company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the foreign currency 
borrowings, import of cement, import of fuels & spare parts. 

USD Euro JPY 

Trade Payables 10,420,622 

Foreign currency exposure as at March 31, 2018 USD Euro JPY 

Trade payables 6,590,602 

Foreign currency sensitivity on unhedged exposure: 

1 % increase in foreign exchange rates will have the following Impact on profit before tax. 
. in INR 

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 

USO 7,220,297 35,014,682 

Note: If the rate is decreased by 100 bps profit will increase by an equal amount. 

Credit Risk Management: 

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The 
company is exposed to credit risk from Its operating activities (primari ly trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with 
banks, mutual fund investments with financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and financial guarantees. 

Trade receivables 

Trade receivables are consisting of a large number of customers. The Company has credit evaluation policy for each customer and based on the 
evaluation credit limit of each customer is defined. Wherever the Company assess high risk, exposure is backed by either bank guarantee / letter of 
credit or even backed by security deposits also. 

Total Trade receivable as on March 31, 2019 is 79.28 Crores (March 31, 2018 60.01 Crores) 

The Company does not have higher concentration of credit risks to a single customer. A single largest customer has total exposure in sales 2.3% (March 
31, 2018: 0.6%) and in receivables 8.6% (March 31, 2018: 3.9%). 

As per simplified approach, the Company makes provision of expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix to mitigate the risk of 
default payments and makes appropriate provision at each reporting date wherever outstanding is for longer period and involves higher risk. 

Movement of provision for doubtful debts: 

Particulars 

Opening provision 

Add: Provided during the year 

Effect of foreign currency conversion 

March 31, 2019 

1,641,264 

2,182,378 

(90,822) 

March 31, 2018 

1,669,200 

(27,936) 
·----•M_, __ '"''''"'"'"''H __ ,_,,,-~,~· .. -•-·---•••••- •••----·- ............. ............... _,,, ... , ..... ,----·----........ --... , .. - .... , •• ~-·"-'"---·-- ·-----•• 

Less: Utilised during the year 

Closing Provision 3,732,820 1,641,264 

Invest ments and Cash and Cash Equivalen t and Bank Deposit 
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processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the Company's liquidity position through rolling 
forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows 

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date based on contractual 
undiscounted payments. 

. in INR 

As at March 31, 2019 Less than 1 to 5 Total 
1 vear vears 

Trade oayables 785.205.637 - 785 205 637 

'in INR 

As at March 31, 2018 Less than 1 to 5 Total 
1 vear vears 

Trade and other pavables 482 174 188 - 482 174 188 

Commodity price risk: 

At present, in the Lanka market, there is a price cap of SLR 995/bag for MRP of cement. This makes it difficult to pass on any escalation in cost/ taxes 
that we incur either in Lanka or India operations. 

Note 1.10 

Distribution made and proposed: (Ind AS 1) 

Particulars 

Cash dividends on equity shares declared and paid: 

Final dividend for the year ended on March 31, 2018: · 0.00 per share 

(March 31 2017: · 3.36 per share) 

DDT on final dividend 

Total Dividend paid 

Proposed dividends on Equity shares: 

Final dividend for the year ended on March 31, 2019: · 0.00 per share 

(March 31, 2018: · 0.00 per share) 

Year Ended March 
31, 2019 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

Year Ended March 31, 
2018 

154,621,848 

13,445,378 

168,067,227 

NIL NIL 
.............. -, .... , __ , ___ ,,,_ ,,_ ,_,, ___ , _____ ,, ___ , ,_ , __ .. , , ...... --,-·--···-.. ··------------····--.. ,----.................... __ ----------- ····---_ _____ .... _, ____ , __ _ 

DDT on proposed dividend NIL 

Total Dividend proposed NIL 

Note 1.11 

For the purposes of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital, share premium and all other equity. 

The Company monitors capital using debt-equity ratio, which is total debt less liquid investments and bank deposits divided by total equity. 

Note 1.12 
Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year classification/ disclosure. 

Note 1.13 

Capital expenditure commitments: 

There are no capital expenditure commitment after the reporting date that require adjustments to or disclosures in the Financial Statements. 

NIL 

NIL 
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Note 1.14 

Contingent liabilities: 

The Sri Lankan Customs commenced an inquiry on the allegation that dividends declared by the Company and remitted to the Parent Company 
represents part of settlement In respect of the cement imported by the Company and alleged that additional duty Is payable by the Company. The Sri 
Lanka Customs have not provided a basis for any value to be attributed as alleged additional duty payable. 

The Company filed a Writ Application in the Court of Appeal in seeking Inter alia to quash the aforesaid decision by Sri Lanka Customs to hold the said 
inquiry. However, the application was dismissed by the Court of Appeal on 28th March 2014. The Company filed a Special Leave Application in the 
Supreme Court against the judgment of the Court of Appeal in the above Writ Application which is currently pending before the Supreme Court and 
fixed to be mentioned before Supreme Court on 30th May 2019. 

The Company contends there is no basis to include dividends paid in the value of goods and consequently intend to resist the aforesaid contention of 
the Customs at any inquiry. Hence, no provision for the alleged additional duty payable is provided in the financial statements. 

Court of appeal case no CA/Wri t/28/19 
This case has been filed by the Company against the director General of Customs and the inquiring officer appointed in terms of the Customs Ordinance 
for the customs case No PCAP/Hq0/991/2016 Initiated at the Sri Lanka customs, on the alleged basis that the Company has not declared the unloading 
charges (stevedoring charges} paid to the Sri Lanka Ports Authority in relation to imported cement. 

The matter has been fixed for the Respondents objections to be filed on or before 6th May 2019 and for the Company's counter objections to be filed 
on or before 7th June 2019. The matter has also been fixed for argument on 10th July 2019. 

There were no other material contingent liabilities as at the reporting date which require adjustments or disclosure in the accounts, except for the 
matters stated above. 

Note 1.15 

Comparative information: 
The previous year's figures have been reclassify where necessary to conform to current year's presentation 

Note 1.16 

Revenue (Ind AS 115) 

The Company is primarily in the Business of import and safe of cement and cement. The product shelf fife being short al l sales are made at a point in 
time and revenue recognised upon satisfaction of the performance obligations. The Company has a credit evaluation policy based on which the credit 
limit for the trade receivables are made The Company does not give significant credit period resulting in no significant financing component. 

(B) Reconciliation of revenue recognised from Contract liability: 

Particulars 

Opening Contract liability 

Less: Payment during the year 

Add: Recognized against revenue during the year 

Add/(fess): Impact on exchange rate conversion 

Closing Contract liability 

Year Ended 
March 31, 2019 

53,033,468 

(160,891,735) 

179,040,711 

(3,795,480) 

67,386,964 

(C) Reconciliation of revenue as per contract price and as recognised in statement of profit and loss: 

Particulars 

Revenue as per Contract price 

Less: Discounts and incentives 

Revenue as per statement of profit and loss 

Year Ended 
March 31, 2019 

6,740,661,131 

(179,040,711) 

6,561,620,420 

'INR 

Year Ended 
March 31, 2018 

41,301,176 

(137,123,102) 

149,598,826 

(743,432) 

53,033,468 

'INR 

Year Ended 
March 31, 2018 

s. 783,489,160 

(149,598,826} 

5,633,890,334 
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Note 1.17 

Ind AS 116 

The new standard introduces a single on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessee. The Company is in the process of analyzing the impact and 
it cannot be determined currently. The amendment will come Into force from April 01, 2019. 

Signatures to Note '1' to '1.17' 

In terms of our reports attached. 

Director 
Colombo, April 09, 2019 

For and on behalf of the Board 
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Particulars ,., a, 
April 01, 2018 

(A) Tangible,.. .... 

L .. sehold 1,100 7,480,686 

ll<Jlk!ing, 37,538,541 

Plant and Machlnety 260,758,315 

Office Equlpm~nt 4,849,S2'2 

furniture and Flxtures 1,686,922 

l..1b Equipments 2,792,821 

Motot Vehicles 23,580,516 

Motor Cycles 2,982,793 

ErctlricJnWtlj."ltion 1),896,009 

liTPowet line 133,897 

COmf)lltcrs 3 528 LOI 

Sub Totol 3 59 228 236 

(B) Add: cap-.1 Work~n-Progre, 13,732,9'40 

To tal Tangl_~!c_ Asse:ts 37_2,961,176 

P:irtlculars 

As at 
April 01, 2017 

(A) T•nglble Au•ts 
Lea.sehokl LaOO 7,758,060 
Buikflngs 38,4q9,S64 
~ nt anct Machlne,y 256,786,462 
Office EquJpment 4,612,496 
Furniture and Fbttu,es l,594,773 

lab Equrpments 2,734,311 
MOIO< Vehicles 25,922,336 
MOIOt Cycles 3,029,312 
El<Xtric.,I Instillation 14,'191/171 
HT P<>wer Une M2,208 
Compu1ers 2 377 837 
Sub Total 357 958 829 
Add: C.plta l lVO<k·ln·P1091ess 
Total Tano(ble Assets 357 958 829 

Notes: 
A) OepredaUon (o, the year 

Oepr« iation as per P,otit and Loss Account 

Bl 3.Capital Work •in · progre.sr lnc,ludu: 

fqujp,ment cost 

Pre-operative expel\S~s pending •lloc•tlon: 
Jnsurance 
HisceHancous expenses 
Total Pre-operative c>tpcnses 
Add: &ought ro,warcl rrom PteVSous Year 
less: cai>italiSed / Charged during the Vear 
Bal3nce Included in Capital Work-ln-ProgrCs$ 

G,ou 81ock ,.,.,.., AIJUI IOllS U\.'UUC\IOns, "'°' Adjustments Adjustments torch)J, l Olt 

(901,739) 6,5)8,941 

(2,961,726) 34,576,815 

(23,706,394) 27,425,14 1 (453,568) 264,023,523 

(392,051) 73 1,409 (222,637) 4,466,242 

(124,773) 3,239 (71) 1,565,318 

(183, 110) 178,42 3 (10,955) 2,777,122 

(1,290,435) 2,904,561 (3,064,315) 22,130,330 

(150,719) 13'!,855 (Ml,598) 2,825,330 

(1,690,952) (315, 185) 11,689,952 

(27,020) 106,877 

(313 152) 183891 (331 3 398 808 

131 942.132) 31 061 522 (4 208 363) 354 139 26 2 

(J,38,1,798) 13,JU,146 (25,462,288) 

(33,323,930) 44 172 668 129 670 6511 354 139 262 

Gross Block 

OthCf Addilions Oeducllons/ As .. 

Adjustments M justmenlS MMc.h:U, 2011 

(277,374) 7,480,686 
(911,023) 37,538,541 

(6,762, 166) 10,734,019 260,758,345 
(133,398) 31M23 4,849,S22 
(40,917) 133,066 1,686,922 

(78,462) 136,975 2, 792,824 
(423,753) 3,102,941 (5,021,008) 23,580,516 
(46,520) 2,982, 793 

(595,38 1) 13,896,089 
(8,311) 133,897 

1132 191\ I 282 459 3 528 101 
19 409 499) 15 699 914 (5 0 21 0081 359 228 236 

(57,701) 13 790 642 13 732940 
19 467 200) 29',490,SS6 IS 021 008) 372,961 176 

INR 
Oeprecl.lllo-n Net Block "'a, vl11Cf ror thC UCQIJCtlOO~ vp o .... 

April 01, 2018 A<IJustments y~a, AdJust,nents M•rch)J, 20U K,rchl1,20lt 

J,706. 262 (61 1,307) 613,554 1,7081509 4,870,438 

8,854,356 (1,517,598) 3.017,857 10,354,615 24,222,200 

74,965,0<0 (13,671,IO'J) 32,249,586 ( 33,160) 93,507,357 170,516,166 

3,566,443 (345,437) 666,215 (143,293) 3,743,929 722,313 

872,410 (98,071 ) 390,501 ( 39) 1,164,802 400,51$ 

1,073,030 (102,881) 488,975 (7,851) 1,451,273 1,32S,849 

10, 122,554 (699,697) 3,954,703 (868,223) 12,509,337 9,620,992 

t,726,11'1 (102,868) 502,4 25 (Sl,919) 2,073,753 751,577 

5,625,780 (1,532.466) 1,933,028 ( 157,592) 5,868,749 5,821,203 

77,965 (25,240) 27,733 80,458 26,418 

I 784 883 ( 2431120) 755,868 2.296 931 1 101 877 

110 374 840 (18,953,496) 44,600,.446 (1,262,0771 134 759 714 219 379 548 
. 

110 374 840 (18 953 496) 44 600 446 (1 262 077} 134 759,714 219,379 548 

C>epredation Net Block 

As •l Othe, For the Oedu..'11oos/ Upto .. .. t 
ApriOI, 2017 AdJus1menlS Y"'Jf Adjustmenis Ha.-c:h 3 1, 2018 ~ •d!J:1,2011 

1,256,129 (171, 155) 621,188 1,706,262 S,1"4,424 
6, 18U29 (383,710) 3,055,897 8,854,356 28,684,185 

47,952,628 (3,3S9, 163) J0,.J6l,S7S . 74,965,040 18S, 193,305 
2,540,)23 {101,130) l, J21,2Sl J ,S,6(),1-4~ l ,283,07& 

573,508 (24,621) 323,524 872,410 814,512 

641:oos (44,849) 476,875 .,073,030 1,719,793 
7,836,371 (139,233) 3,989,491 (1,564,076) 10,122,554 ll,4S7,962 
1,196,179 (18, 133) 5qs ,068 1,726,114 1,256,678 
4,0!4,136 (428,943) 2,010,587 5,4525,780 8,270,310 

56,883 (7,001) 28,003 77,965 55,931 
1 103418 (108.806) 790.270 1784883 1 743 218 

73 382 812 (4 776,804) 43,332.908 (1,564,076) 110 374 840 248,853 396 
13 7 32 940 

73 382 812 (4 776 804} 43 332 908 (1 564 076) 110 374 840 262,586,336 

Harc:h 31., 20n March 31, 20J8 

44,600,446 43,332,908 

44,600,446 43,332,904 

Hafeh )1, 2019 March 3 1, 2018 

11,628,691 13,626,387 

15,972 16,908 
84 6115 89 645 

ll,729,348 13,732,940 
13,732,940 

( 25, 462,288) 
13,732,9110 
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NOTE 3 

INVENTORIES: {Valued at lower of Cost or net realisable value (except Scrap)} 
Finished Goods 

At Factory 
In Transit 

Stores & Spares 
At Factory 

Packing Materials 
At Factory 

NOTE4 
INVESTMENTS-OTHERS 

Investment in Government Securities 

NOTES 
TRADE RECEIVABLES: 

Considered good, Secured 
Considered good, Unsecured 
Significant Increase In Credit Risk 
Credit Impaired 

Less: Allowances for credit losses 

NOTE 6 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: 

Balance with banks 
cash on hand 

Note7 
BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Fixed Deposits with Banks (Maturity more than 03 months and upto 12 months) 

NOTE 8 
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 

Advances to suppliers 

Balances with Government and other Authorities 
Prepaid Expenses 
Advances to Employees 
Others 

NOTE 9 
SHARE CAPITAL 
Authorised 

100,000,000 Equity shares of · 10 each (Previous year 100,000,000) 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up 
50,000,000 Equity shares of · 10 each fully paid·up. (Previous Year 50,000,000) 

37,050,793 
2,037,784 

13,149,345 

3,180,513 

320,733,516 
472,060,762 

3,732,820 

61,609,085 
2,279,394 

As at March 31, 
As at March 31, 201f 2019 

48,678,152 

39,088,577 
99,338,821 

148,016,973 

18,249,245 
13,149,345 18,249,245 

5,815,472 
3,180,513 S,815,472 

SS,418,435 172.081,690 

16,363,636 4,105,811 
16,363,636 4,105,811 

197,252,113 
402,859,213 

1,641,264 
796,527,098 601,752,589 

(3,732,820} (1,641,264) 
792,794,278 600,111,326 

70,007,233 
1,276,611 

63,888,479 71,283,844 

63,888,479 71.283.814 

64,398,508 

64.398,508 

As at March 31, 
As at March 31, 2018 2Ql!I 

23,411,204 30,123,793 

383,712,598 278,006,388 
4,288,661 1,683,068 

33,202 104,351 
2,476,581 4 445 178 

413,922,246 314.362,778 

As at Asat 
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 

1,000,000,000 1.000.000,000 

197,628,458 209,205,021 



NOTE 10 
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Netl 

Particulars 

Deferred Tax Assets: 
Retirement benefit obligation 
Carried forward tax losses 
Impairment provision on trade receivables 

Deferred Tax liabilities: 
Payment allowed under tax not expensed in books 

Net Deferred Tax AssetsHLiabilitvl 

NOTE 11 
PROVISIONS 

For Employee Benefits 

NOTE 12 
TRADE PAYABLES 

Due to Suppliers 
Due to Related Parties 

NOTE 13 
OTHER CURRENT LIABILIDES 

Provident Fund 
Other Taxes Pavable 
Liabilities For Other Exoenses 
Deposit from Dealers 
Salarres, Wages & Bonus Payable 
Own Your Car Scheme 
Obligation from customer contracts 
Advance from customers 
Others 

As at March 31, 

2019 

15,218,043 
15.218,043 

March 31, 2019 

4,768,527 
50,454,653 

l 045 190 
56 268 370 

(46,677 636) 
(46 677 6361 

9 590 734 

Non-Current 
As at March 31, 

2018 

13,440,589 
13.440.589 

Mardl 31, 
2018 

4,265,275 

459,554 
4,724,829 

(54,195,190) 
(54,195,190) 
149 470 361 

Recognised in 
Statement of Profit 

and l oss 

839,762 
52,966,918 

641 492 
54 448 172 

4 743 604 
4 743 604 

59 191 776 

Effect of foreign currency 
Recognised in OCl 

conversion 

(63,676) (272,834) 
(2,512,265) 

(55,856) 
(63 676 (2,840,955) 

2,773,950 
2,773,950 

(63 676 (67 0051 

Current 
As at March 31, 

2019 

1,812,411 
1,812,411 

128,585,466 
656,620,171 
785,205,637 

1,327,154 
80,504 

41,323,767 
13,495,532 

40,899 
1,458,647 

67,386,964 
21,318,065 

7,632,738 
154,064,270 

As al March 31, 2018 

t ,792,538 
1.792.538 

52,130,514 
430,043,674 
482.174.188 

1.266.590 
74,571 

33,269.965 
11,854,673 

116,673 
1,229,821 

53,033,468 
21,137,362 
3,051,874 

125.034.996 



NOTE 14 
Sale of Products & Services (Gross) 

Sale of Products 

NOTE 15 
OTHER OPERATING REVENUE 

Scrap Sales 
Miscellaneous Income/ Receipts 

NOTE 16 
OTHER INCOME 
Interest Income on 

Government & Other Securities 
Bank and Other Accounts 

NOTE 17 
COST OF RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED: 

Purchase and Incidental Expenses 

NOTE 18 
CHANGE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS,WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE 

Closing Stock 
Finished Goods 

Add / (Less) : Exchange rate nuctuation on account of average rate 
transferred to currency translation reserve 

Opening stock 
,Finished Goods 

Add/ (Less) : Exchange rate fluctuation on account of average rate 
transferred to currency translation reserve 

Add: Decrease/ (Increase) In Stocks 

NOTE 19 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 

Salaries, Wages and Bonus 
Contribution to ProVident and Other Funds 
Contribution to Gratuity 
Staff Welfare Expenses 

NOTE 20 
Freight & Forwarding Expenses 

On Finished Products 

NOTE 21 
OTHER EXPENSES 

Consumption of Stores, Spare Parts & Components 
Consumption of Packing Materials 
Repairs to Plant and Machinery 
Repairs to Buildings 
Insurance 
Rent (including Lease Rent) 
Rates and Taxes 
Director Fees 
Sales Promotion expenses 
Exchange Loss 
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 
Miscellaneous Expenses 

NOTE 22 
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES 

Depreciation & !lmortisation 

1,361,156 
1,118,409 

37,050,793 

1,844,853 

48,678,152 

(403,968) 

April 18 - March 19 

6,561,620,420 
6,561,620,420 

336,500 
24,595,800 
24,932,300 

2,479,565 

2,479,565 

6,148,287,727 
6,148,287,727 
li,198,287 ,727 

INR 
A[!til 18 - March 12 

38,895,646 

48,274,184 
9,378.538 

74,301,733 
8,034,313 
3,245,199 
5,070,035 

90,651,280 

134,272,891 
134,272,891 

28,652,246 
199,707,950 

293,361 

1,010,364 
2,749,378 
1,263,808 

99,585 
39,206,420 
39,872,909 

270,050 
48,314,340 

361,440,409 

44,600A46 
44,600,446 

April I 7 - March 18 

S,6331890,334 
S,633,890,334 

11,741 
58,119,022 
58,130,763 

1,519,646 
19,975,874 
21,495,520 

2L49S,520 

5,037,211,238 
5,037,211,238 
5.037.211.238 

INR 
A11ril 17 - March 18 

48,678,152 

204,530 

48,882,682 

61,320,303 

(772,945: 

60,547,358 
11664676 

72,559,289 
7,726,346 
3,220,765 
4,302,925 

87,809,325 

85,034,615 
85,034.615 

24,123,887 
156,383,252 

2,902,316 
1,473,792 

997,885 
2,596,097 
1,041,974 

36,984,867 
7,588,078 

179,622 
34 484 326 

268,756,096 

43,332,908 
43.332,908 
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To the Board of Directors of Ultra Tech Cement Middle East Investments Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of UltraTech Cement Middle East 
Investments Limited ("the Holding Company'') and its subsidiaries (hereinafter the Holding 
Company and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as Hthe Group") which comprise the 
consolidated statement of financial position as at March 3 I, 2019, and the consolidated statement of 
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of 
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies. 

fn our opm1on, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at March 31, 2019., and its consolidated 
financial perfonnance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
"lnd AS-l lO, Consolidated financial Statements", and the accounting policies and principles 
followed by UltraTech Cement Limited ("Indian Holding Company"}, as detailed in Notes I and 52. 

As stated in schedule I (Note A (ii)), these financial statements are translated into Indian Rupees 
from the fmancial statements prepared in Dirham (AED) which is the functional currency of the 
Group. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with lntemational Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Consolidated financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Group in accordance with the lntema6onal Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics 
for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities 
in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

http:www.taskinrernational.org
http:www.jhi.com
http:www.taskinternational.org
http:www.jhi.com
http:www.mahendraasherco.com
http:www.mahendraasherco.com


MAHENDRA ASHER & CO. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

P.O. Box 4421, Dubai, lJ.A.E. 
Tel.: (9714) 2227580 
Fax: (9714) 22337 l5 
email: rnasherdb@ernirates.net.ae 
www .mahendraasherco.com 
www.jhi.com & www.taskinternariooal.org 

Other Matter 

= ····· ·· , 
ii f-ORL' \1 Of FCR/1.IS 

ol....S'~9 ~I IJ~Lo 
0~9--iU.:,~~ 

·("·t_,1-~),HYI ,..,...u'" 
'\V)t-H'\'VOA• :u~ 
Wl l-YYHVl O: ~L..:,i 

masherdb@emirates.ner .a'e: ~! 
www .mahendraasherco.col(l 

www.ji)i.corn & www.taski111erna1ionaLorg 

We did not audit the financial statements of 8 subsidiaries whose financial statements/infonnation 
reflect total assets of INR 2,060.61 crores as at 31 March 2019 and total revenues of fNR l,309.24 
crores for the year ended on that date as considered in these consolidated financial statements. The 
consolidated financial statements also include Group's share of net profit of TI\IR 99.64 crores for the 
year ended JI March 2019 as considered in these financial statements whose financial 
statement/infonnation have not been audited by us. These financial statements and the related 
financial infonnation have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us 
and our opinion, in so far as it relates to the amounts included in respect of these subsidiaries, is 
based solely on the report of the other auditors. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with "Ind AS- I I 0, Consolidated Financial Statements", and the accounting 
policies and principles followed by UltraTech Cement Limited (" Indian Holding Company"), as 
detailed in Notes l and 52 and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or enor 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial repo11ing 
process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high leveJ of assurance, but is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 
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As pa11 of an audit in accordance with fSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perfonn audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
ovenide of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Group's internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a materia.1 uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. ff 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's 
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue 
as a going concern. 

• EvaJuate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. 
Subject to our reliance on the audited financial statements of 8 subsidiaries audited by other 
auditors as mentioned in "other matter" above, we are responsible for the direction, supervision 
and peJfonnance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for the audit opinion. 

We corrununicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

www.laskinternational
http:www.taskinternational.org
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards 

Restriction on Use and Distribution 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared for the purposes of providing information to 
Ultra Tech Cement Limited ("Indian Holding Company") to enable it to prepare its Group consolidated 
financial statements. The consolidated financial statements may, therefore, not be suitable for another 
purpose. 

For MAHENDRA ASHER & co. 
RN Shetty (Registration No. 77) 
Dubai 
Dated : 16 April 2019 
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UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MAR 31, 2019 

Particulars 

ASSETS 
Non-current assets 

Property, Plant and Equipment 
Capital work-in-progress 
Goodwill 
Other Intangible assets 
Financial Assets 

Investments 
Loans 

Deferred tax Assets (Net) 
Other Non-Current assets 

Total Non Current Assets 
Current assets 

Inventories 
Financial Assets 

Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Other Financial Assets 
Current Tax Assets (Net) 

Other current assets 
Asset held for disposal 
Total Current Assets 

TOT AL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND UABIUTIES 
Equity 

Equity Share Capital 
Other Equity 

UABIUTIES 
Non-current liabilities 

Financial Liabilities 
Borrowings 

Provisions 
Other non-current liabilities 

Current liabilities 
Financial Liabilities 

Borrowings 
Trade payables 
Other financial liabilities 

Other current liabilities 
Provisions 

TOTAL EQUITY AND U ABILmEs 

Note No. 

2 
2 

2 

3 
4 

5 
6 

7 

8 
9 

10 
11 
12 

13 
13 

14 
15 
16 

17 
18 
19 
20 
21 

Significant Accounting Policies 1 

7.81 
12.59 

421.SS 
3.89 

49.73 

473.11 
375.55 

81.58 
110.18 

10.02 

Asat 
MAR31, 2019 

1,301.35 
4.23 

911.48 
47.35 

20.40 
11.10 
16.34 

2,312.25 

164.24 

475.17 
37.39 
33.86 

1.12 
711.78 

3 024.03 

848.66 

1,919.00 
21.93 

0.08 
1,941.01 

201.78 
21,22 
11.36 

234.36 
3,024.03 

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financlal Statements. 

In terms of our report attached. 
For Mahendra Asher & Co 
Chartered Accountants 

Partner 
Dubai, Apr 16 2019 

I MAH
0

ENDRA ASHER & co. 
ChART!:RED ACCOUNTANTS 

j Stamped ior the Purpose 
:.i!.~dentification on l y 

o. 
Director 

Amount in INR Crores 
As at 

MAR 31 2018 

1,280.27 
7.48 

857.73 
48.69 

7.35 
11.85 

9.43 
20.08 

2,242.88 

151.07 

489.36 
5.48 

83.45 
33.06 
32.38 

1.05 
795.85 

3 038.73 

445.28 
320.37 
765.65 

1,985.11 
18.76 

2,003.87 

75.61 
155.38 
11.53 
16.15 
10.54 

269.21 
3,038.73 

For and on behalf of the Board 

Director 

http:3,038.73
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UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited 
CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAR 31, 2019 

Particulars 

Sale of Products and Services (Net) 
Other Operating Revenues 
Revenue from OperatiOns 
Other Income 
Total Income (I) 

Ex penses 
Cost of Raw Materials Consumed 
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock 
in-Trade and Work-in-Progress 
Employee Benefits Expense 
Finance Costs 
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 
Power and Fuel 
Freight and Forwarding Expense 
Other Expenses 

Total Expenses {II) 

Note No. 

22 
22 

23 

24 
25 

26 

27 
28 
29 

30 
31 

Profit before Exceptional items and Tax Expenses 
Exceptional items - Impairment of As.sets 
Exceptional items -Impairment on deconsolidation of Subsidiary 
Profit/(Loss) before Tax Expenses 
Tax Expenses: 

Current Tax 
Deffered Tax 
Total 

Profit/ (Loss) for the Year (III) 

Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) 
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit & Loss-Actuarial 
Gain on Employee Benefits 
(ii) Income Tax Relating to Items that will not be reclassifred to 
profit & Loss 

B (i) Items that will be reclassified to Profit & Loss-Cash flow 
hedge & FCTR 

Other Comprehensive (Loss) /Income for the Year (IV) 
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year (Ill+IV) 

Earnings Per Equity Share {Face Value INR 10 each) 
Basic (in INR) 
Diluted (in INR) 

Weighted Average Equity Shares (in Nos.) 
Weighted AverageEquity Shares incl Diluted Shares (in Nos.) 

Significant Account ing Policies l 

Year ended 
MAR31, 2019 

1,305.39 
3.75 

1,309.14 
0.10 

1,309.24 

308.25 
13.22 

(1.82) 

106.14 
44.78 
81.88 

442.96 
36.53 

202.14 
1,234.08 

75.16 

75.16 

2.72 
(1.18) 
1.54 

73.62 

1.17 

(0.08) 

(19.53) 

(18.44) 
SS.18 

29.30 
29.30 

25,128,890 
25,128,890 

The accompanying Notes form an integral part or the Financial St atements. 

In terms of our report attached. 

For Mahendra Asher&. Co 
Chartered Accountants 

Partner 
Dubai, Apr 16 2019 

., ______________ _ 
'MAHENDRA ASHER & CO. 
I Ch ~RTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

I S tamp ed fo r the Purpose 
~ !- identification only 

Director 

Amount in INR Crores 
Year ended MAR 

31, 2018 

1,358.92 
4.10 

1,363.02 
0.24 

1,363.26 

349.39 
65.66 

0.75 

95.22 
46.45 
79.49 

373.09 
19.86 

215.75 
1,245.66 

117.60 
74.86 
45.46 
(2.72) 

2.09 

2.09 
(4.81) 

0.30 

15.44 

15.74 

10.93 

( 1.91) 
(1.91) 

25,128,890.00 
25,128,890.00 

For and on behalf of the Board 

Director 



UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments limited 
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement as on 31/03/2019 

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities: 
Profit before tax/(Loss) 
Adjustments for: 
Depreciation & Amortisation 
Provision for Diminution in value of Investments 
Provision for Retirement benefits 
Interest and Finance Charges 
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 
Loss on Sale/ Retirement of Property, Plant and Equipment 
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 
Movement in working capital: 
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 
Decrease/(Increase) in Trade Receivables 
Decrease in Loans and Advances 
(Decrease)/lncrease in Trade Payables and other Liabilities 
cash Generated From Operations 
Payment for Employee Benefits 
Tax Paid 
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities (A) 

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities: 
Purchase of Fixed Assets 
Sales of Fixed Assets 
Net cash used in Investing Activities (B) 

c. Cash Flow from Financing Activities: 
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings 
Proceeds from Short Term B<>rrowings (Net) 
Interest and Finance Charges paid 
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (C) 

Net Decrease in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C) 

Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Effect of exchange rate on consolidation of Foreign Subsidiary 

Effect of deconsolidation of Foreign Subsidiary in cash opening 
balance 
cash and Bank balance as per Note 9 

Notes: 
1. Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under Indirect method. 

Amount in INR Crores 
MAR 31, 2019 MAR 311 2018 

75.16 (2.72) 

81.88 79.49 
45.46 

4.69 3.53 
44.78 46.44 

0.02 0.23 
74.86 

206.53 247.29 

(3.74) 13.66 
98.39 (46.18) 

6.84 3.32 
{54.05) 44.96 
253.97 263.0S 

(2.31) (1.01) 
(2.34) {5.00} 

249.32 257.04 

(15.35) (S0.30) 
0.11 19.95 

(15.24) (30.35) 

(190.17) (194.62) 
1.24 12.00 

(45.00) i47.54! 
{233.93) (230.16} 

0.15 (3.47) 

5.48 6.19 

{1.74) 2.94 

(0.18) 
3.89 5.48 

2. Purchase of fixed assets includes movements of capital work-in-progress & Capital Advances. 
3. Cash and cash equivalents represent cash and bank balances. 

Particulars Non Current Current 
Borrowina Borrowina 

As at 31st Mar 2018 1 985.11 7S.61 
Cash flows (190.17) 1.24 
Non Cash chanqes : 
Fair Value Adiustment 
Others ( Exchanae variation) 124.06 4.73 
As at March 31, 2019 1919.00 81.58 

Significant Accounting Policies l 
The Accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

In terms of our report attached 

For Mahendra Asher &. Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

Partner 
Dubai, Apr 16 2019 

r MA!..ff-rmRA ASHER & C . 
t:lihf.111-1!! D ACCOUNTANTS 

I ~Hum Jed for the P1.1rpose 
::.r id,.:ntific:3tlon only 

For and on behalf of the Board 

Director 



UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAR 31, 2019 

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 

As at 1st Apr 2017 
Changes in equity share capital 
As at 31st Mar 2018 
Changes in equity share capital 
As at 31st Mar 2019 

B. OTHER EOUITY 
For the year ended MAR 31, 2019 

Balance as at APR 01. 2018 
Profit for the Year p} 
Remeasurement gain on defined 

benefit pl~ Q.l. - · 
Oeftered tax Asset (3) 
Other Com~rehensive (Loss} (4} 
Total Comprehensive Income for 
the Year (1+2+3+4) 
Balance as at MAR 31 2019 

For the year ended MAR 31, 2018 

Balance as at APR 01 2017 
Loss for the Year (1) 
Remeasurement gain on defined 
benefit olan I 2 l 
Other Comprehensive gain for the Year 
(2) 

Total Comprehensive gain for the Year 
J1+2} 
Oeconsolidation of a subsidiarv 
Balance as at MAR 31 2018 

Significant Accounting Policies 

443.44 
1.84 

445.28 
27.83 

473.11 

Attributable to Owners of the company 
Reserves & Surolus other Comorehensive Income 

Securities General Retained EKchange Effective Remeasure 
Premium Reserve Earnings differences potion of mentof 
Reserve on cash flow defined 

translating hedges benefit plan 
the financial 
statements 
of foreign 
operations 

5.29 2.05 245.10 (18.32} 85.38 0.87 
- - 73.62 - -
- - . - - 1.17 

(0.0~1 
19.84 (39.37) . 

. . 73.62 19.84 (39.37) 1.09 

5.29 2.05 318.72 1.52 46.01 1.96 

Attributable to Owners of the comoany 
Reserves & Surolus Other Comorehensive Income 

Securities General Retained EKchange Effective I Remeasure 
Premium Reserve Earnings differences potion of ment of 
Reserve on cash flow I defined 

translating hedges benefit plan 
the financial 
statements I of foreign 
operations 

5.29 2.05 249.91 (20.25) 71.87 0.57 
- - (4.81) 

0.30 
--

1.93 13.51 

- - (4.81) 1.93 13.51 0.30 

. . 
5.29 2.05 245.10 ( 18.32) 85.38 0.87 

1 

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financ!al Statements. 

In terms of our report attached. 

For Mahendra Asher & Co 
Chartered Accountants 

Partner 
Dubai, Apr 16 2019 

, r,,AHENORA ASHER & CO. 
I HAfl Tl ' RCO .A,:;COUNTANTS 

::,,;;11,pcd for t he Pur pose 
., • 1d~r-tif1ca! ion only 

Amount in INR Crores 

Attribut Total 
Total able to 

Attributable NCI 
to Owners of 
the company 

320.37 . 320.37 
73.62 73.62 

1.17 1.17 
- -(0.08} {0.08) 

(19.53) (19.53) 

55.18 . 55.18 

375.55 - 375.55 

Attributab Total 
Total le to NCI 

Attributable 
to Owners of 
the company 

309.44 (7.66) 301.78 
(4.81) . (4.81) 

0.30 0.30 

15.44 15.44 

10.93 - 10.93 

. 7.66 7.66 
320.37 . 320.37 

For and on behalf of the Board 

a 
Director Director 



Ultra Tech Cement Middle East Investments Limited 

NOTE: 2- PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
An,ount in INR C~s 

Particulars Gross Block Depreciation Net Block 

As at APR I Additions I Deductions/ I T ,anslation I As at MAR As at APR I For tne year I Deductions/ I Translation I As at As at MAR 
01, 2018 Adjustments Reserve 31, 2019 01, 2018 Adjustments Reserve MAR31, 31, 2019 

2019 

(A) Tangible Assets 
Freehold Land 8.18 0.51 869 - - - 8.69 
Buildings 134.87 8.05 (0.01) 8.41 151.32 13.63 6.79 - 0.78 21.20 130,12 
Plant and Machinery 1,319.44 8.08 (0.01) 82.30 1,409.81 175.19 68.32 - 10.17 253.68 1,156.13 
Furniture and Fixtures 9.32 140 (0.10) o.58 11.20 509 132 (0.09) 0.30 6.62 4.58 
Vehicles 5.26 0.41 (0.18) 0.33 5.82 2.89 1.02 (0.09) 0.17 3.99 1,83 

Total Tangible Assets 1.477.07 17.94 (0.30) 92.13 1 S86.84 196.80 77.45 {0.181 11.42 285.49 1,301.35 

(8) Intangible Assets 
lntanQible Asset 61.06 - - 3.82 64.88 12.37 4.43 0.73 17.53 47.JS 

Total Assets (A+B) 1538.13 17.~ {0.30) 95.9S 1 651.72 209.17 81.88 {0.18) 12.15 303.02 1,348.70 

I Caoital Work•in·Proaress 7.48 4.23 
1352.93 

Notes: 
Depreciation for the year 81,88 
Depreciation as per Profit and Loss Account 81.88 
Fixed assets include assets costinQ INR 49.20 Cr (Previous year • 49.20 Cr) not owned by the company 

Amount in INR Crores 
Particulars G<05SBlock Depreciation Net Block 

As at APR I Additioris I Deductions/ I TraASlation I As at MAR As at APR I For the year I Deductions/ I Translation I Asat MAR Asat MAR 
01, 2017 Adjustments Reserve 31. 2018 01, 2017 Adjustments Reserve 31, 2018 3), 2018 

(A) TanQible Assets 
Freehold Land 8.32 - (0.14) 8.)8 
Buildings 107 10 31.70 (4.03) 0.10 134.87 8.29 S.62 (0.32) 
Plant and Machinery 1,396.56 41.63 (121.42) 2.67 1,319.44 121.00 67.23 ( 13. 71) 
Furniture and Fixtures 8.58 0.64 0.10 9.32 3.76 1.58 (0.26) 
Vehicles 5.56 ro.291 roon 5.26 2.08 0.98 l0.171 
Total Tangible Assets I 526.12 73.97 112S.64l 2.62 I 477.07 13S.13 75.41 (14.46) 

(B) Intangible Assets 
IntanQible Asset 60.8S 003 (0.01) 0)9 6J.06 8.29 4.08 (0.01) 

Total Assets (M8) I 586.97 74.00 02S65) 281 1 538.13 143.42 "79.49 (14.471 

cao,tal wo,k-in-P,ooress 14.7S 

Notes: 
Depreciation tor tt,e year 
Depreciation as per Profit and L05S Acoount 

Fixed assets include assets costinQ INR 49.20 Cr (Previous year· INR 49.20 Cr) not owned by the company 

C I IW k. . d d ao ta or -1n-nrr.nress ,n u es: 
Particulars Ason Mar 

31 2019 
Pre•ooe,ative exoenses oendina allocation: 
Insurance 
Finance Costs 
Miscellaneous ex oenses -
Total Pre-ooerative exll<'nses . 
Add: 6roVQl1t forward from Previous Year -
Less: C3oitalised / Char..-...n durina the Year 
Balance Included in Caoltal WOl"k-in·P'"""ress -

Movement in Goodwill· 
Ason Mar Particulars 
31 2018 

O=nin<1 Balance 
Less: lmoairment of Goodwill 
Add: El<chanae difference recoonise<I in FCTR 

2.07 Closina Balance as :,er Balance Sheet 
2.07 
9.79 

(11.86 
-

; •,lt~HENORA ASHER & CO. 
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8.18 
0.04 13.63 121.24 
0.67 175.)9 l,144.25 
001 5.09 4.23 

2.89 2.37 
0.72 19680 1 280.27 

0.01 12.37 48.69 

0.73 209.17 I 328.96 

7.48 
1 336.44 

79.49 
79.49 

Ason Mar As°" Mar 
Jl 2019 31,2018 

857.7) 906.34 
- rss.01 

S3.7S 646 
911.48 8S7.73 

http:1,319.44
http:1,396.56
http:1,144.25
http:1,477.07
http:1,409.81
http:1,319.44
http:1,156.13


UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments limited 
, Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Particulars 

NOTE :3 
NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS Nos. 
Unquoted: 

Investments measured at amortised cost 
Equity Instruments: 

Indonesian Rupiah 8,923 each fully 
PT UltraTech Mining Indonesia 51,951 

Indonesian Rupiah 9,163 each fully paid: 
PT UltraTech Investment Indonesia 100,000 

Omani Riyal 1 each fully paid: 
AWAM Minerals LLC 168,035 

Less: Provision for Diminution in value of Investments 

NOTE :4 
LOANS NON CURRENT 

Secured, Considered good: 
Security Deposit 

NOTE :5 
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (Net) 

Asat Recognised 
31/03/2018 in P&L 

Particulars 

Deferred Tax Assets: 
Provision allowed under tax on payment basis 0.09 0.82 
Others 2.74 
Unabsorbed depreciation/ losses 28.66 (8.15) 

28.75 (4.59) 
Deferred Tax Liabilities: 
Depreciation and Amortisation differences {19.32} 5.77 
Net Deferred Tax Liability 9.43 1.18 

NOTE :6 
OTHER NON - CURRENT ASSETS 

capital Advances 
Prepayments 

NOTE :7 

INVENTORIES: (Valued at lower of Cost and Net Realisable Value, 
unless otherwise stated) 

Raw Material at factory 
Work-in-progress 
Finished Goods at factory 
Stores & Spares at Factory 
Fuel at Factory 
Packing Materials at Factory 
Scrap (valued at net realisable value) 

NOTE :8 
TRADE RECEIVABLES 

Considered good, Secured 
Considered good, Unsecured 
Trade Receivables from Related Party 
Significant increase in Credit Risk 

Less: Allowances for credit losses 

'J/ 
I MP,L' ENDRA ASHER & co. 
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Amount in INR Crores 
Asat As at 

31L03l2019 31L03L2018 

Amount Nos. Amount 

0.33 51,951 0.31 

0.69 100,000 0.65 

48.88 168,035 46.01 
49.90 46.97 

{42.09) p9.62~ 
7.81 7.35 

12.59 11.85 
12.59 11.85 

Recognised in Exchange Asat 
OCI differences 31/03/2019 

on 
translating 

foreign 

(0.08) 0.01 0.84 
0.00 (0.01) 2.73 

1.81 22.32 
(0.08) 1.81 2S.89 

0.00 (1.24} (14.79} 
{0.08} 0.57 11.10 

2.01 0.66 
14.33 19.42 
16.34 20.08 

46.78 41.13 
18.99 19.11 
14.84 11.04 
72.99 66.28 

7.94 10.71 
2.68 2.57 
0.02 0.23 

164.24 151.07 

195.75 214.29 
224.00 275.07 

1.80 
7.79 7.33 

429.34 496.69 
(7.79) (7.33) 

421.SS 489.36 



UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Particulars 

NOTE :9 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Balance wlth banks (Current Account) 
Cash on hand 

NOTE :10 
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 

Derivative Assets 

NOTE :11 
CURRENT TAX ASSETS 

Advance Tax 

NOTE :12 
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS: 

Security Deposit 
Advances to Employees 
Balance with Government Authorities 
Advances to suppliers 
Prepaid Expenses 

NOTE :13 
A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 
Authorised 

Equity shares of AED 10 each 
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-up 

Equity shares of AED 10 each 

B. OTHER EQUITY 
Securities Premium Reserve 
General Reserve 
Retained Earnings 
Effective Portion of Cash Flow Hedges 
Exchange differences on translating the 
financial statements of a foreign operation 
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan 

Total Other Equity 

No. of Shares 

25,128,890 

25,128,890 

As at 
31/03/2019 

3.74 
0.15 
3.89 

49.73 
49.73 

37.39 
37.39 

0.93 
1.84 
6.24 

14.77 
10.08 
33.86 

Amount 

473.11 

473.11 

5.29 
2.05 

318.72 
46.01 

1.52 

1.96 
375.55 

The Description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity is as follows: 

Amount in INR Crores 

No. of Shares 

25,128,890 

25,128,890 

As at 
31/03/2018 

5.36 
0.12 
5.48 

83.45 
83.45 

33.06 
33.06 

1.11 
1.39 
2.83 

17.51 
9.54 

32.38 

Amount 

445.28 

445.28 

5.29 
2.05 

245.10 
85.38 

(18.32) 

0.87 
320.37 

a) Securities Premium Reserve: Securities premium reserve is credited when shares are issued at premium. It is utilised in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act, to issue bonus shares, to provide for premium on redemption of shares or 
debentures,write-off equity related expenses like underwriting costs, etc. 
b) General reserve: The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation 
purposes. 
c) Foreign Exchange Translation Reserve has been created for Exchange variation in Opening Equity Share capital and Reserves and 
Surplus of Ultratech Cement Bahrain Co. WLL, Emirates Cement Bangladesh Ltd. and Emirates Power Company Ltd. 
d) Effective Portion of Cashtlow Hedges: The company has designated its hedging instruments obtained after April 01, 2015 as cash 
flow hedges and any effective portion of cashflow hedge is maintained in the said reserve. In case the hedging becomes ineffective 
the amount is recognised to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

I ~1A ... ENORA ASHER & co. 
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UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Particulars Asat 
31/03/2019 

NOTE :14 
NON CURRENT BORROWINGS 

Non-current 
As at As at 

31/03/2019 31/03/2018 
LONG-TERM BORROWINGS 
Unsecured: 

Term Loans from Banks: 
Term Loans from Banks - (n Foreign Currency 
• Note (a) 
Total 

1,919.00 

1,919.00 

(a) Term Loans from Banks in Foreign Currency 
Unsecured: Maturity 
Export Development Canada 
USD 90 Mn Mar'19 (USD 110 Mn Mar'18) 
Standard Chartered Bank 
USD 187.5 Mn Mar'19 (USD 195 Mn Mar'18) 

Total 

NOTE :15 
PROVISIONS NON CURRENT 

For Employee Benefits 

NOTE :16 
Others (Employee Share based payment) 
Total 

NOTE :17 
CURRENT BORROWINGS 
Secured: 
Loans repayable on demand: 

3 equal yearly instalments 
starting on 30th Jun'20 

Single repayment on 9th 
Jul'20 

From Banks· cash Credits/ Working capital Borrowings 
Unsecured: 

From Banks 

NOTE :18 
TRADE PAYABLES 

nade Payables 

NOTE :19 
OTHER FINANCIAL UABILITIES 

Interest Accrued but not due on Borrowings 
Liability for Capital Goods 
Due to Related Parties 

NOTE :20 
OTHER CURRENT UABIUTIES 

Advance from Customers 
Others (including Security and other Deposits, Advances from Customers, 
Provision for Expenses etc.) 

NOTE :21 
PROVISIONS 
For Employee Benefits 

I f '• A'iENDRA ASHER & co. 
·_ ,, 1Vi E 1F.D <\CCOUNTANTS 
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1,985.11 

1,985.11 

622.38 

1,296.62 

1,919.00 

21.93 
21.93 

0.08 
0.08 

68.76 

12.82 
81.S8 

110,18 
110.18 

4.58 
2.35 
3.09 

10.02 

2.21 

19.01 

21.22 

11.36 
11.36 

Amount in INR Crores 
As at 

31/03/2018 

715.94 

1,269.17 

1,985.11 

18.76 
18.76 

0.00 

56.57 

19.04 
75.61 

155.38 
155.38 

4.99 
3.73 
2.81 

11.53 

2.49 

13.66 

16.15 

10.54 
10.54 

http:1,985.11
http:1,919.00
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Ultra Tech Cement Middle East Investments Limited 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Particulars Year ended 
31/03/2019 

NOTE :22 
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 
SALE OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES (GROSS) 

Sale of Products 

OTHER OPERATING REVENUES 
Scrap Sales 
rnsurance Claim 
Miscellaneous Income/ Receipts 

NOTE :23 
OTHER INCOME 
Interest Income on 

Bank and Other Accounts 
Others 

NOTE :24 
COST OF RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED 

Opening Stock 

Add: Exchange rate fluctuation on acccount of average rate 
transferred to currecny translation reserve 

Purchase and fncidental Expenses 

Less: Exchange rate fluctuation on acccount of average rate 
transferred to currecny translation reserve 

Less: Closing Stock 

NOTE :25 
PURCHASES OF STOCK-IN-TRADE 

Others (Clinker) 

NOTE :26 
CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK-IN­
PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE 
Closing Inventories 

Work-in-progress 
Finished Goods 
Add / (Less): Exchange rate fluctuation on acccount of 
average rate transferred to currency translation reserve 

Opening Inventories 
Work-in-progress 
Finished Goods 
Add/ (Less): Exchange rate fluctuation on acccount of 
average rate transferred to currency translation reserve 

; MA HEN ORA ASHER & CO. 
· .1-i,.r<", [_t1EO ~CCOUNTANTS 
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1,305.39 

1.15 

2.60 
3.75 

1,309.14 

0.10 

0.10 

41.13 

3.04 

311.35 
35S.52 

0.49 

46.78 
308.25 

13.22 
13.22 

18.99 
14.84 

0.38 

34.21 

19.11 
11.04 

2.24 

32.39 
(1.82) 

Amount in INR Crores 
Year ended 
31/03/2018 

1,358.92 

1.15 
1.57 
1.38 
4.1~ 

1,363.02 

0.08 
0.16 
0.24 

52.02 

(0.40) 

338.55 
390.17 

(0.35) 

41.13 
349.39 

65.66 
65.66 

19.11 
11.04 

(0.26) 

29.89 

22.12 
8.72 

(0.20) 

30.64 
0.75 

http:1,363.02
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UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Particulars 

NOTE :27 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 

Salaries, Wages and Bonus 
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 
Contribution to Gratuity Fund 
Expenses on Employees Stock Options Scheme 
Staff Welfare Expenses 

NOTE :28 
FINANCE COSTS 

Interest Expense: 
On Borrowings 

Others (lncluding LC discounting) 

Other Borrowing Cost (Upfront fee amortisation) 

NOTE :29 
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE 

Depreciation 
Amortisation 

NOTE :30 
FREIGHT ANO FORWARDING EXPENSE 

On Finished Products 

NOTE :31 
OTHER EXPENSES 

Consumption of Stores, Spare Parts and Components 
Consumption of Packing Materials 
Repairs to Plant and Machinery, Building and Others 
Insurance 
Rent (including Lease Rent) 
Rates and Taxes 
Advertisement 
Sales Promotion and Other Selling Expenses 
Exchange Loss (net) 
Miscellaneous Expenses 

I Ml\HENDRA ASHER & CO. 
J .r.~F:1 EflED 4CCOUNTANTS 
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Year ended 
31/03/2019 

95.67 
0.91 
4.69 
0.12 
4.75 

106.14 

37.54 
2.32 

39.86 
4.92 

44.78 

77.45 
4.43 

81.88 

36.53 
36.53 

30.67 
29.41 
30.22 

5.74 
18.54 
22.64 

1.62 
S.88 
0.11 

56.65 
202.14 

Amount in INR Crores 
Year ended 
31/03/2018 

86.27 
0.47 
3.53 

4.95 
95.22 

40.20 
1.07 

41.27 
5.18 

46.45 

75.41 
4.08 

79.49 

19.86 
19.86 

40.57 
25.39 
36.11 

5. 14 
17.16 
19.91 
2.23 

12.84 
2.91 

53.49 
215.75 



UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited And Its 
Subsidiaries 

Accounting Policies and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note: 1{A) Company Overview & Significant Accounting Policies: 

Company Overview 

UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited (the company) was formed in Jebel Ali Free Zone 
pursuant to Jebel Ali Free Zone Authority Offshore Companies Regulations 2003 with limited liability 
on 20-0ctober-2009 under Registration No 132239. The Holding Company, its subsidiaries, associate 
together referred as "the Company". 

The Company is engaged in the manufacturing and selling of Cement and Cement related products. 
The company's holding company is UltraTech Cement Limited, India. 

Significant Accounting Policies 

(i} Statement of Compliance 

These consolidated financial statements(hereinafter referred to as "financial statements" in the 
consolidated Financial statements) are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards 
(Ind AS} notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards}(Amendment} Rules, 2016, the relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"). 

The financial statements are authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company at their 
meeting held on April 16th, 2019. 

(ii) Basis of Preparation and Presentation: 

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets 
and liabilities: 

a} Derivative Financial Instruments measured at fair value 
b) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding 

financial instruments} 
c} Assets held for disposal - measured at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs to 

sell; and 
d) Employee's Defined Benefit Plan as per actuarial valuation 
e) Employee share based payment measured at fair value 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions, 
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. 
In determining the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the 
characteristics of the asset or liability if market=-participants would take those characteristics into 
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. 

Functional and Presentation Currency 

The Financial statements are presented in INR (Rounded off to crores), however UAE dirhams is the 
functional currency of the Company and the currency of the primary economic environment in which 
the Company operates. 

Exchange rates adopted 
Closinq Rate 
Averaoe Rate 

31st March 2019 
1 AED = 18.8275 INR 

01/04/2018-31/03/2019 
1 AED = 19.0377 INR 
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1 AED = 17.7200 INR 
Ol/04/2017-31/03/2018 

1 AED = 17.5526 INR 



UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited And Its 
Subsidiaries 

Accounting Policies and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Classification of Assets and Liabilities into Current/Non·Current: 

The Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of Current/ Non­
Current classification of its Assets and Liabilities. 

For the purpose of Balance Sheet, an asset is classified as current if: 
a.It is expected to be realised, or is intended to be sold or consumed, in the normal operating 
cycle; or 
b.It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or 

c. It is expected to realise the asset within twelve months after the reporting period; or 

d. The asset is a cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to 
settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

Similarly, a liability is classified as current if: 

a. It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; or 

b. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or 

c. It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 

d. The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at 
least twelve months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could result in its 
settlement by the issue of equity instruments at the option of the counterparty does not affect this 
classification. 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 

(iii) Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE): 

The initial cost of PPE comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non·refundable 
purchase taxes, and any directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to working condition and 
location for its intended use, including relevant borrowing costs and any expected costs of 
decommissioning, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 
Expenditure incurred after the PPE have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, 
are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the costs are incurred. 

If significant parts of an item of PPE have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of PPE. 

Material items such as spare parts, stand·by equipment and service equipment are classified as PPE 
when they meet the definition of PPE as specified in Ind AS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment. 

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(iv) Expenditure during construction period: 

Expenditure/ Income during construction period (including financing cost related to borrowed funds 
for construction or acquisition of qualifying PPE) is included under capital Work-in-Progress, and the 
same is allocated to the respective PPE on the completion of their construction. Advances given 
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UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited And Its 
Subsidiaries 

Accounting Policies and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

towards acquisition or construction of PPE outstanding at each reporting date are disclosed as Capital 
Advances under "Other non-current Assets". 

(v) Depreciation: 

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of PPE over its useful life and is 
provided on a straight-line basis over the useful lives as prescribed in Schedule II to the Act or as per 
technical assessment. Freehold Land with indefinite life is not depreciated. 

Depreciable amount for PPE is the cost of PPE less its estimated residual value. The useful life of PPE 
is the period over which PPE is expected to be available for use by the Company. 

In case of certain classes of PPE, the Company uses different useful lives than those prescribed in 
Schedule II to the Act. The useful lives have been assessed based on technical advice, taking into 
account the nature of the PPE and the estimated usage of the asset on the basis of management's 
best estimation of obtaining economic benefits from those classes of assets. 

Such classes of assets and their estimated useful lives / basis of amortisation are as under: 

No 
Nature of property, plant & 

Useful life / basis of amortisation 
equipment 

1. Buildings 3-60 Years 

2. Plant & machinery 8-30 Years 

3. Furniture and Fixtures 7 Years 

4. Company Vehicles (other than those 
5 Years 

provided to the employees) 

5. Motor Cars given to the employees as per 
4-5 Years 

the Company's Scheme 

6. Computers, Servers and Networks 3 Years 

7. Stores and Spares in the nature of PPE 10-30 Years 

8. 
Assets individually costing less than or 

Fully Depreciated in the year of purchase 
equal to U0,000 

Depreciation on additions is provided on a pro-rata basis from the month of installation or acquisition 
and in case of Projects from the date of commencement of commercial production. Depreciation on 
deductions/disposals is provided on a pro-rata basis up to the month preceding the month of 
deduction/ disposal. 

(vi)lntangible Assets and Amortisation: 

Intangible Assets acquired separately: 
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment, if any. The Company determines the 
amortisation period as the period over which the future economic benefits will flow to the Company 
after taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances. The estimated useful life and 
amortisation method are reviewed periodically, with the effect of any changes in estimate being 
accounted for on a prospective basis. 

No 
1. 

2. 

3. 

Nature Useful life / basis of amortisation 

Lease hold land and Mining Rights Period of the Lease 

Asset not owned by the Company As per period specified in the agreement 

Software 3 Years 
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UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited And Its 
Subsidiaries 

Accounting Policies and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

(vii)Non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for disposal: 

Assets are classified as held for disposal and stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value 
less costs to sell. 

To classify any Asset as "Asset held for disposal" the asset must be available for immediate sale and 
its sale must be highly probable. Such assets or group of assets are presented separately in the 
Balance Sheet, in the line "Assets held for disposal". Once classified as held for disposal, intangible 
assets and property, plant and equipment are no longer amortised or depreciated. 

(viii) Impairment of Non-financial Assets 

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of non-financial 
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment 
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to 
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the 
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the 
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation 
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise 
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and 
consistent allocation basis can be identified. 

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested 
for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. 

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing 
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. 

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its 
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its 
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss, 
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated 
as a revaluation decrease. 

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash­
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the 
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined 
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A 
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless 
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss 
is treated as a revaluation increase. 

(ix) Inventories: 

Inventories are valued as follows: 

a) Raw materials, fuel, stores & spare parts and packing materials: 

Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV). However, these items are considered to be 
realisable at cost, if the finished products, in which they will be used, are expected to be sold at or 
above cost. Cost is determined on weighted average basis which includes expenditure incurred for 
acquiring inventories like purchase price, import duties, taxes (net of tax credit) and other costs 
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. 
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b) Work-in- progress (WIP}, finished goods, stock-in-trade and trial run inventories: 

Valued at lower of cost and NRV. Cost of Finished goods and WIP includes cost of raw materials, cost 
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and 
condition. Cost of inventories is computed on weighted average basis. 

c} Waste / Scrap: 

Waste/ Scrap inventory is valued at NRV. 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the 
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

(x) Employee Share based payments: 

Stock Appreciation Rights ("SARs") are cash-settled share-based payments, a liability is recognised for 
the services acquired measured initially at the fair value. At the end of each reporting period until the 
liability is settled, and at the date of settlement, the fair value of the liability is re-measured and any 
changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(xi} Borrowing Costs: 

General and specific borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or 
production of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of such asset till such time the 
asset is ready for its intended use and borrowing costs are being incurred. A qualifying asset is an 
asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other 
borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

Borrowing cost includes interest expense, amortization of discounts, hedge related cost incurred in 
connection with foreign currency borrowings, ancillary costs incurred in connection with borrowing of 
funds and exchange difference arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are 
regarded as an adjustment to the Interest cost. 

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their 
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. 

{xii) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets: 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a 
result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably estimated, 
will be required to settle such an obligation. 
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the 
expected future cash flows to net present value using an appropriate discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to 
the liability. Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance 
cost. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best 
estimate. 

A present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of 
resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed 
as a contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation 
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arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non­
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. 

Claims against the Company where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote, 
are not disclosed as contingent liabilities. 

Contingent assets are not recognized or disclosed in financial statements since this may result in the 
recognition of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually 
certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised. 

(xiii) Revenue Recognition: 

Revenue is recognized on the basis of approved contracts regarding the transfer of goods or services 
to a customer for an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled 
in exchange for those goods or services. 

(a) Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable taking into account 
the amount of discounts and volume rebates. Any amount receivable from the customer is 
recognised after the control of the goods sold is transferred. 

(xiv) Lease: 

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the 
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as Operating Leases. 

Operating Lease: Lease rentals are charged or recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where the payment are structured to increase in line 
with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increase. 

Finance Lease: Assets held under finance lease are recognised as assets of the Company at their 
fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease 
payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the Balance Sheet as a finance lease 
obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease 
obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 
Finance charges are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless they are directly attributable 
to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance with the Company's policy on 
borrowing costs. 

(xv) Employee benefits: 

Defined benefit plan 

The gratuity, a defined benefit plan, payable to the employees is the based on the Employees' service 
and last drawn salary at the time of the leaving of the services of the Company and is in accordance 
with the Rules of the Company for payment of Gratuity. Liability with regards to Gratuity plan is 
determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out by a 
qualified independent actuary at the end of each annual reporting period. Re-measurement, comprising 
actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return 
on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the Balance Sheet with a charge or 
credit recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) in the period in which they occur. Re-
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measurement recognised in OCI is reflected immediately in retained earnings and will not be 
reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss. Past service cost is recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate 
at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset and is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows: 

Service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on 
curtailments and settlements); 
net interest expense or income; and 
Re-measurement 

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is 
determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. 

The defined benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus 
in the Company's defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the 
present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions 
in future contributions to the plans. 

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the entity can no longer 
withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when the entity recognises any related restructuring 
costs. 

Defined contribution plan 

Payments to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered 
service entitling them to the contributions. 

The eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits in respect of provident fund 
which is a defined benefit plan for which both the employees and the Company make monthly 
contributions at a specified percentage of the covered employees' salary. The contributions as 
specified under the law are made to the approved provident fund which is set up by the Company. 
The Company is liable for annual contributions and any shortfall in the fund assets based on the 
government specified minimum rates of return and recognises such contributions and shortfall, if any, 
as an expense in the year incurred. 

Other employee benefits 

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual 
leave and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered. 

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted 
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service. 

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured using the 
projected unit credit method by a qualified independent actuary at the end of each annual reporting 
period, at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the 
Company in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date. 

Re-measurement gains/losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in 
which they arise. 
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{xvi) Income Taxes: 

In UAE and Bahrain there is no corporate taxation. 

Current and deferred income tax relates to Bangladesh as under: 

Current Tax 

As per the applicable tax law, the Company has to pay tax at the rate applicable to it subject to a 
minimum tax which is higher of (a) regular tax calculated on the income from regular sources or (b) 
at the rate of 0.6% of total gross receipts or ( c) tax deducted at export stage for cement export and 
at the time of sale u/s 52 and 53BBBB (as covered u/s 82C). As regular tax calculated on the income 
from regular sources is higher, we have considered the regular tax calculated on the income from 
regular sources as tax expenses during the income year. 

Emirates Power Company Limited has been exempted from tax on its profits and gain from business 
for fifteen years with effect from the commencement of commercial production vide SRO no. 113-
Ain/99 dated 26 May 1999 issued by Bangladesh Government under Private Sector Power Generation 
Policy of Bangladesh. By virtue of this facility the Company will enjoy exemption from income tax up 
to 31 May 2020. 

Deferred Tax 

Deferred tax is provided, on all temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax base of 
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax assets 
and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary 
differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at 
the reporting date. Tax relating to items recognised directly in equity or 00 is recognised in equity or 
OCI and not in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

MAT Credits are in the form of unused tax credits that are carried forward by the Company for a 
specified period of time; hence it is grouped with Deferred Tax Asset. MAT is recognised as an asset 
only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income 
tax during the specified period. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax 
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority, but they 
intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be 
realized simultaneously. 

A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be 
available against which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at 
each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable. 

(xvii)Earnings Per Share: 

Basic Earnings Per Share ("EPS'') is computed by dividing the net profit/ (loss) after tax for the year 
attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the year. 

Page 8 of31 

MAHENORA ASHER & co. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Stamped f or the Pu rpose 
of identificntion on ly 



UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited And Its 
Subsidiaries 

Accounting Policies and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit/(loss) after tax for the year 
attributable to the equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

(xviii) Foreign Currency transactions: 

Transactions in currencies other than the Company's functional currency (i.e. foreign currencies) are 
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each 
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates 
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign 
currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non­
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated 
using the exchange rate as at the date of initial transactions. 
Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss account 
in the period in which they arise except for: 

• exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for 
future productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as 
an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings; 

• Exchange differences relating to qualifying effective cash flow hedges and qualifying net 
investment hedges in foreign operations which are recognised in 00. 

(xix) Foreign operations: 

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on 
acquisition are translated into INR, the functional currency of the Company, at the exchange rates at 
the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations are translated into INR at the 
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates 
the actual rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences are recognized in OCI and 
accumulated in equity (as exchange differences on translating the financial statements of a foreign 
operation), except to the extent that the exchange differences are allocated to NCI. 
When a foreign operation is disposed of in its entirety or partially such that control, significant 
influence or joint control is lost, the cumulative amount of exchange differences related to that 
foreign operation recognized in 00 is reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss as part of the gain 
or loss on disposal. If the Group disposes of part of its interest in a subsidiary but retains control, 
then the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is re-allocated to NCI. When the Group 
disposes of only a part of its interest in an associate or a joint venture while retaining significant 
influence or joint control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reclassiF1ed to 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(xx) Financial Instruments: 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instruments. 

Initial Recognition: 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than 
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and ancillary costs related to 
borrowings) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, 

Page 9 of JI 

,,1 ;;.:NORA ASHER & CO. 
th~khRED ACCOUNTANTS 

~ 1an 11;:d for the Purpose 
cf icii'.!ntification only 



UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited And Its 
Subsidiaries 

Accounting Policies and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of 
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are amortised over the tenor 
of the financial liability. 

Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Financial Assets 

The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value 
through other comprehensive income ("FVOCI") or fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL") on the 
basis of following: 

• the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and 
• The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. 

Amortised Cost: 

A financial asset shall be classified and measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions 
are met: 

• the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in 
order to collect contractual cash flows and 

• the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

• In case of financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost, any interest income, foreign 
exchange gains or losses and impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Fair Value through OCI: 

A financial asset shall be classified and measured at fair value through OCI if both of the following 
conditions are met: 
• the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting 

contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and 

• the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Fair Value through Profit or Loss: 

A financial asset shall be classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is 
measured at amortised cost or at fair value through CCI. 
AU recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or 
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets. 
For financial assets at FVTPL, net gains or losses, induding any interest or dividend income, are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or 'other financial liabilities'. 
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Financial Liabilities at FVTPL: 
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or is a 
derivative ( except for effective hedge) or are designated upon initial recognition as FVTPL: 
Gains or Losses, including any interest expense on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Other Financial Liabilities: 

Other financial liabilities (including borrowings and trade and other payables) are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments 
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, 
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, 
or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortised cost on initial recognition. 

Interest expense (based on the effective interest method), foreign exchange gains and losses, and 
any gain or loss on de-recognition is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Impairment of financial assets: 

Expected credit losses are recognized for all financial assets subsequent to initial recognition other 
than financials assets in FVTPL category. For financial assets other than trade receivables, as per Ind 
AS 109, the Company recognises 12 month expected credit losses for all originated or acquired 
financial assets if at the reporting date the credit risk of the financial asset has not increased 
significantly since its initial recognition. 

The expected credit losses are measured as lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on 
financial asset increases significantly since its initial recognition. 

The Company's trade receivables do not contain significant financing component and as per simplified 
approach, loss allowances on trade receivables are measured using provision matrix at an amount 
equal to life time expected losses i.e. expected cash shortfall. 

The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

De-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities: 

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all 
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company 
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. 
If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial 
asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises an associated 
liability for amounts it has to pay. 
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On de-recognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the 
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been 
recognised in 00 and accumulated in equity is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

The Company de-recognises financial liabilities when and only when, the Company's obligations are 
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial 
liability de-recognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the statement of profit 
and loss. 

(xxi) cash and cash equivalents: 

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term 
deposits with banks that are readily convertible into cash which are subject to insignificant risk of 
changes in value and are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments. 

(xxii) Financial liabilities and equity instruments: 

a) Classification as debt or equity 

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as 
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a 
financial liability and an equity instrument. 

b) Equity instruments 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity 
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Company are recognised at the 
proceeds received. 

(x:xiii) Derivative financial instruments: 

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments viz. foreign exchange forward contracts, 
interest rate swaps and cross currency swaps to manage its exposure to interest rate, foreign 
exchange rate risks and commodity prices. The Company does not hold derivative financial 
instruments for speculative purposes. 

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into 
and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The 
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately excluding derivatives designated as 
cash flow hedge. 

(xxiv) Hedge accounting: 

The Company designates certain hedging instruments in respect of foreign currency risk, interest rate 
risk and commodity price risk as cash flow hedges. At the inception of the hedge relationship, the 
entity documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, alongwith 
its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. 
Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Company documents 
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whether the hedging instrument is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of 
the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk. 

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of the designated portion of derivatives that qualify 
as cash flow hedges is recognised in OCI and accumulated under equity. The gain or loss relating to 
the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss. 
Amounts previously recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity relating to effective portion as 
described above are reclassified to profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or 
loss, in the same line as the recognised hedged item. However, when the hedged forecast transaction 
results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, such gains and losses are 
transferred from equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the non-financial asset 
or non-financial liability. 

Hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, 
terminated, or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss 
recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when 
the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in profit or loss. When a forecast transaction is no 
longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is recognised immediately in profit or 
loss. 

(xxv} Segment Reporting: Identification of Segments: 

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which 
it may earn revenues and incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the 
company's Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") to make decisions for which discrete financial 
information is available. Based on the management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the CODM 
evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various 
performance indicators by business segments and geographic segments. 

(xxvi} Goodwill: 

Goodwill arising out of Consolidation of financial statements of subsidiaries are tested for impairment 
at each reporting date. 

Note: 1(8) Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation 
uncertainty: 

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements. 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and 
liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty 
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment 
to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 

(a) Critical judgements in applying accounting policies: 

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following 
judgments, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated 
financial statements. 
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Non Classification of Awam Minerals LLC, Oman (AWAM) as an Associate: 

During the previous year, UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited ("UCMEJL"), the 
Company's wholly-owned subsidiary in UAE, which held 51% equity in AWAM, transferred 14% of its 
holding in AWAM. Consequent to dilution of its stake and as per terms of the restructuring 
agreement, UCMEIL ceased to have management control as well as does not have any power to 
participate in financial and operating policy decision of AWAM. AWAM thus ceased to be a subsidiary 
as well as an associate of UCMEIL. 

(b) Key assumptions: 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the 
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its 
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. 
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to 
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes 
are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. 

(i) Useful Lives of Property, Plant & Equipment: 
The Company uses its technical expertise along with historical and industry trends for determining the 
economic life of an asset/component of an asset. The useful lives are reviewed by management 
periodically and revised, if appropriate. In case of a revision, the unamortised depreciable amount is 
charged over the remaining useful life of the assets. 

(ii) Fair value measurement of financial instruments: 
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot 
be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation 
techniques including the Discounted C<1sh Flow model. The inputs to these models are taken from 
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required 
in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit 
risk and volatility. 

(iii) Defined benefit plans: 
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are 
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions 
that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the 
discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the 
valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these 
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. 

(iv) Share-based payments: 
The Company measures the cost of cash settled transactions with employees using Binomial model to 
determine the fair value of the liability incurred on the grant date. Estimating fair value for share­
based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which is 
dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. 

This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model 
including the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions 
about them. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

32) Principles of Consolidation: 

(a)These Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS) are prepared on the following basis in accordance 
with Ind AS on "Consolidated Financial Statements" (Ind AS - 110), and "Disclosure of interest in 
other entities" (Ind AS - 112), specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013: 

(i) Subsidiaries 
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the company. The company controls an entity when it is 
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability 
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are 
included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which controls commences until 
the date on which control ceases. 

(ii) Non-controlling interest (NCI) 
NCI are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree's net identifiable assets at the date of 
acquisition. Changes in the company's equity interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of 
control are accounted for as equity transactions. 

(iii) Loss of control 
When the company loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the 
subsidiary, and any related NO and other components of equity. Any interest retained in the former 
subsidiary is measured at fair value at the date the control is lost. Any resulting gain or loss is 
recognized in profit or loss. 

(iv) Transactions eliminated on consolidation 
The financial statements of the Company, its Subsidiaries and Associates used in the consolidation 
procedure are drawn upto the same reporting date i.e. March 31, 2019. 
The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies are combined on a line-by-line 
basis by adding together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. 
Intra- company balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from 
intra-group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealized losses are eliminated in the same way as 
unrealized gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment. The Company 
follows uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances. 

The Consolidated Financial Statements are comprised of the financial statements of the members of 
the Group as under: 

Name of the Company 

(A) Subsidiarv Companies: 
i} Arabian Cement Industry L.L.C. @ 
ii} Star Cement Co. L.L.C., RAK @ 
iii) Star Cement Co. L.L.C., Dubai@ 
iv) Al Nakhla Crusher Co. L.L.C.@ 
v) Ultratech Cement Bahrain Co. WLL# 
vi) Emirates Cement Bangladesh Ltd. * 
vii) Emirates Power Company Ltd. * 
viii) Awam Minerals LLC, Oman " 

Principal % Shareholding and 
Place of Voting Power 
Business 

As at 31 Mar'19 As at 31 Mar'18 

U.A.E 
U.A.E 
U.A.E 
U.A.E 

Bahrain 
Bangladesh 
Bangladesh 

Oman 
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@ 51% held by nominee as required by local law for beneficial interest of the company 

# 1 share held by nominee for the beneficial interest of the company (to comply with minimum no. of 
shareholders) 

* 10 shares held by nominee for the beneficial interest of the company (to comply with minimum no. 
of shareholders) 

A Ceased control with effect from April 24, 2017. 

Notes on Accounts of the financial statements of the Company and its Subsidiaries are set out in their 
respective financial statements. 

33) Goodwill on Consolidation: Goodwill represents the cost of acquired business as at the date 
of acquisition of the business in excess of the Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable 
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree. When the net fair value of the identifiable 
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired exceeds the cost of the business acquisition, the 
bargain purchase excess is recognised, after reassessing the fair value of net assets acquired, in the 
capital reserve. Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested 
for impairment annually or when the events or circumstances indicate that the implied fair value 
goodwill is less than its carrying amount. 

34) Deconsolidation of AWAM Minerals UC 

Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement between the Company, AWAM Group LLC and their respective 
shareholders, the Company has sold 14% stake effective from 1st April 2017 in AWAM Minerals LLC by 
amending the constructive contract based on the resolution dated 14th Feb 2017. The profit sharing of 
the Company was also reduced from 29.00°/o to 00.01°/o due to this amendment. Effective to this 
sale, since the shareholding has reduced from 51 °/o to 37°/o, AWAM Minerals LLC is no longer a 
subsidiary of the company. Thus AWAM Minerals LLC has been deconsolidated and the investments 
have been reclassified to "Investments measured at Fair value through Profit and Loss". In the previous 
year due to the fair valuation an impairment provision of INR 31.47 Crores has been provided and 
disclosed as an exceptional item in the profit and loss account. The working capital loans provided 
amounted to INR 13.99 Crores were also written off based on the board resolution dated 10th 
December 2017. On deconsolidation Goodwill amounting to INR 55.07 Crores was de-recognised. 

35)Contingent liabilities not provided for in respect of: 

a) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt: 
Amount in Crores INR 

Asat As at Particulars 
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 

Others Nil NIL 

cash outflows for the above are determinable only on receipt of judgments pending at various forums 
/ authorities. 
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b) Guarantees: 

The Company has issued corporate guarantees as under: 

In favour of the Banks/ Lenders on behalf of its subsidiaries, for the purposes of replacing old loans, 
acquisition financing, working capital and other general corporate purposes amount to INR 73.30 
Crores. (March 31, 2018 INR 68.99 Crores). 

Amount in Crores INR 

Name of the subsidiary 
Asat As at 

March 31, 2019 March 31 2018 
Star Cement Co. L.L.C., RAK 66.39 62.48 

Ultratech Cement Bahrain Co. WLL 6.92 6.51 

Total 73.30 68.99 

36)Capital and Other Commitments: 

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net 
of advances INR 20.78 Crores (Previous Year INR 9.36 Crores). 

37)Employee Benefits (Ind AS 19): 

(A) Defined Benefit Plans: 

Gratuity: 
The gratuity payable to employees is based on the employee's service and last drawn salary at the 
time of leaving the services of the company and is in accordance with the Rules of the company for 
payment of gratuity. 

Inherent Risk 

The plan is defined benefit in nature which is sponsored by the company and hence it underwrites all 
the risks pertaining to the plan. In particular, this exposes the company to actuarial risk such as 
adverse salary growth, change in demographic experience, inadequate return on underlying plan 
assets. This may result in an increase in cost of providing these benefits to employee in future. Since 
the benefits are lump sum in nature the plan is not subject to any longevity risks. 

(i) 

I 

Amount in Crores INR 
Asat 

Particulars March 31, 2019 
Gratuity (Others) 

Change in defined benefit obligation 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
Adiustment of: 
Current Service Cost 
Past Service cost 
Interest Cost 
Actuarial (gains) losses recognised in Other 
Comprehensive Income: 
• Chanoe in Financial Assumotions 
- Experience Chanqes 
Benefits Paid 
Balance at the end of the year 
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21.44 

3.13 
0.67 
0.89 

(1.82) 
0.66 
0.16 

25.12 

As at 
March 31, 2018 

Gratuity (Others) 

18.81 

2.80 
-

0.73 

(0.03) 
(0.27) 
(0.61) 
21.44 
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(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

I <v> 

(vi) 

(vii) 

As at 
Particulars March 31, 2019 

Gratuity (Others) 
Net Asset/ (Liability) recognised in the 
Balance Sheet 
Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation (25.12) 
Net Asset/ (Liability) in the Balance (25.12) Sheet 
Expenses recognised in the Consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss 
Current Service Cost 3.13 
Past Service cost 0.67 
Interest Cost 0.89 
Total Expense 4.69 
Less: Trf to Pre-operative Expenses 
Amount charged to the consolidated profit and 

4.69 
loss account 
Re-measurements recognised in Other 
Comprehensive Income (OCI}: 
Chanaes in Financial Assumptions (1.82) 
Changes in Demographic AssumDtions 
Experience Adjustments 0.66 
Amount recognised in Other (1.17) 
Comprehensive Income (OCI): 
Maturity profile of defined benefit 
obligation: 
Within the next 12 months 3.19 
Between 1 and 5 years 5.78 
Between 5 and 10 years 7.89 
10 Years and above 28.17 
Sensitivity analysis for significant 
assumptions:* 
Increase/(Decrease) on present value of 
defined benefits obligation at the end of 
the year 
1 % increase in discount rate {2.13) 
1 % decrease in discount rate 2.48 
1 % increase in salary escalation rate 2.45 
1 % decrease in salarv escalation rate {2.14) 
1 % increase in emDloyee turnover rate 0.05 
1 % decrease in emolovee turnover rate (0.07) 

The major categories of plan assets as a 
percentage of total plan 

Insurer Managed Funds NA 
Total 
Actuarial Assumptions: 
Discount Rate ( .a.) 5.00%-7.63% 
Expected Return on Plan Assets (p.a.) 
Turnover Rate 3.30%-12.000/o 
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As at 
March 31, 2018 

Gratuity (Others) 

(21.44) 

(21.44) 

2.80 

0.73 
3.53 

3.53 

(0.03) 

(0.27) I 
(0.30) 

2.67 
5.80 
4.67 

21.46 I 

(2.02) 

2.39 I 
2.33 

(2.01) 
(0.18) 

0.20 

NA 

3.20%-7.39% 

3.30%-12.00% 
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As at Asat 
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 

Gratuity (Others} Gratuity (Others) 

UK Mortality Table UK Mortality Table 
AM92 (UK] & Indian AM92 [UK] & 

Mortality tables Assured Lives Indian Assured 
Mortality (2006-08) Lives Mortality 
Ult table (2006-08) Ult table 

Salary Escalation Rate (p.a.) 5.50%-8.50% 5.00%-8.00% 
Retirement aqe : 
Management - 60-60 60-60 
Non-Management- 58-60 58-60 

I (viii) 
Weighted Average duration of Defined 6.52-11,86 6.62-13.04 benefit obligation 

* These Sensitivities have been calculated to show the movement in defined benefit obligation in 
isolation and assuming there are no other changes in market conditions at the accounting date. There 
have been no changes from the previous periods in the methods and assumptions used in preparing 
the sensitivity analyses. 

(xi) Salary Escalation Rate: 

The estimates of future salary increases are considered taking into account inflation, seniority, 
promotion and other relevant factors. 
(B) Provident Fund: Amount recognized as an expense and included in Note 27 under the head 

"Contribution to Provident and other Funds" of Statement of Profit and Loss INR 0.91 Crores. 
(Previous Year INR 0.47 Crores.). 

(C) Amount recognised as an expense in respect of Compensated Absences is INR 1.37 Crores. 
(Previous Year INR 0.90 Crores.) 

(D) Amount recognised as expense for other long term employee benefits is INR 4.69 Crores. 
(Previous Year INR 3.53 Crores) 

38)Segment Reporting (Ind AS 108): 

The Company is exclusively engaged in the business of cement and cement related products. As per 
Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments", specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, there are 
no reportable operating segments applicable to the company. The Company's revenue from 
continuing operations from external customers by location of operations and information about its 
non-current assets by location of assets are detailed below. 

Particulars 

UAE (Country of Domicile) 

Others 

Total 

Amount INR Crores 
Revenue from External Non-Current Assets 

Customers 
Year Ended Year Ended Asat 

31-March-19 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-19 

747.54 734.13 2,021.17 

557.85 624.79 291.08 

1,305.39 1,358.92 2,312.25 
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39)Related party disclosures (Ind AS 24): 

Names of Related Parties with whom transactions were carried out during the year: 

Name of Related Party Relationship 

Ultra Tech Cement Limited Holding Company 

I PT UltraTech Mining Indonesia Fellow Subsidiary 

Binani Cement Factory LLC Holding Company· s Subsidiary· s Subsidiary 

Mr. Pramod Rajgaria Key Management Personnel (KMP) 

Mr. Vinod Kumar Oamani Key Management Personnel (KMP) 

a) The following transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary 
course of business: 

Amount in Crores INR 
Year Ended 

Nature of Transactions/ Relationship 
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 

Sale of Goods: 

Holding Company o.oo 0.05 

Binani Cement Factory LLC 1.80 -

Interest Expense: 

PT UltraTech Cement Indonesia 0.10 0.07 

Receiving of Services: 

KMP 3,14 2.68 

b) Outstanding balances: 
Amount in Crores INR 
Asat As at Nature of Transactions/ Relationship 

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 

I Trade Receivable: 

Holding Company· s Subsidiary (Binani Cement Factory LLC) 1.80 -
Other Financial Liabilities: 

Fellow Subsidiary (PT Ultra Tech Cement Indonesia) 3.09 2.81 

c) Compensation of key management personnel of the Company: 

Amount in Crores INR 
Year Ended 

Nature of Transactions/ Relationship March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 

Short-term employee benefits 0.60 0.49 

Other long-term benefits - 0.23 

Total Benefits paid to key management personnel 0.60 0.73 

Terms and Conditions of transactions with Related Parties: 

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made in the normal course of business and on 
terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-
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end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees 
provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. 

For the year ended March 31, 2019, the company has not recorded impairment of receivables relating 
to amounts owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through 
examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party 
operates. 

40)Income Taxes (Ind AS 12): 

(i) Reconciliation of Tax Expenses with Revenue (Related to Emirates cement Bangladesh 
Limited): 

Amount in Crores INR 

I Particulars 
Year ended 

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 

Accounting profit/Revenue before income tax 41.62 225.77 
other Income 1.13 0.00 
Minimum Alternate Tax (Aonlied on turnover) 0.60% 0.60% 
Aoolicable tax rate (Other Income) 35.00% 35.00% 
(Al Comouted tax exoenses 3.22 1.35 I (B) Tax deducted at export stage for cement export and at 
the time of sale u/s 52 & 53BBBB (covered u/s 82C}. 

0.63 1.63 

(C) Income tax expense payable (Higher of A & B) 3.22 1.63 
(D)Add previous year adjustments (0.50) 0.46 

I (E) Income tax expense charged to the statement of 
profit and loss 2.72 2.09 

41) Earnings per Share (EPS) (Ind AS 33): 
Amount in Crores INR 

! 
Year Ended I Particulars 

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 
L_ 

(A) Basic EPS: 

(i) Net Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders 73.62 (4.81) 

(ii) Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding 25,128,890 25,128,890 (Nos.) 

Basic EPS (in INR) (i)/(ii) 29,30 ( 1.91) 

(B) Diluted EpS: 
(i) Weighted average number of Equity Shares 25,128,890 25,128,890 
Outstandina( Nos.) 

(ii) Weighted average number of Equity Shares Outstanding 25,128,890 25,128,890 for calculation of Dilutive EPS (i+ii) (Nos.) 

Diluted EPS (in INR) {(A) (i)} / (iii) 29,30 (1.91) 
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42)Auditors' remuneration including remuneration for Subsidiaries' Auditors (excluding 
VAT) and expenses: 

Amount in Crores INR 
Year Ended 

Particulars 
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 

(a) Statutory Auditors: 
Audit fees (includinq auarterlv Limited Review) 1.02 0.90 
Fees for other services 0.07 0.11 
Tax audit fees 0.07 0.05 

43) Employee Share based payment: 

(A) Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOS 2018) including Stock options, Restricted Stock Units 
(RSU) and Stock Appreciation Rights Scheme-2018 (SAR 2018) including Stock options and RSU 

Particulars 
Tranche I {SAR, 2018) 

RSU Stock Options 
Nos. of Options 1,022 3,700 

Graded Vesting - 25% every year after 
Vesting Plan 100% on 18.12.2021 1 year from date of grant, subject to 

achieving performance targets 

Exercise Period 
3 Years from the date of 

3 Years from the date of Vesting 
Vestina 

Grant Date 18.12.2018 18.12.2018 
Exercise Price 

10 4,009 (in INR per share) 
Fair Value on the date of Grant 

3,956 5,548 of Option (in INR cer share) 
Method of Settlement cash Cash 

{B) Movement of Options Granted including RSU along with weighted average exercise 
price (WAEP): 

The Company has granted 4,722 SAR to its employees during the year with a weighted average 
exercise price of INR 3,143 per share and weighted average fair value of INR 2,509 per share. The 
weighted average remaining contractual life for SAR is 5.33 years. 

(C) Fair Valuation: 

The fair value of options has been done by an independent firm of Chartered Accountants on the date 
of grant using the Black-Scholes Model. The Key assumptions in the Binomial Tree Model for 
calculating fair value as on the date of grant: 
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{a) For ESOS - SAR - 2018: 

11. Risk Free Rate 7.47% {Tranche r) 

2. Option Life (a) For Options - Vesting period (1 Year) + Average of exercise 
period 

(b) For RSU - Vesting period (3 Years) + Average of exercise 
period 

I 3. Expected Volatility* Tranche-I: 0.25, 

I 4, Dividend Yield Tranche -l: 0.46% 

*Expected volatility on the Company's stock price on National Stock Exchange based on the data 
commensurate with the expected life of the options/RSU's up to the date of grant. 

(D) Details of Liabilities arising from Company's cash settled share based payment 
transactions: 

Amount in Crores INR 
Particulars March 31, 2019 I March 31, 2018 

Other non-current liabilities 0.08 -
Other current liabilities 0.041 -
Total carrying amount of liabilities 0.121 -

44) A) Classification of Financial Assets and Liabilities (Ind AS- 107): 
Amount in Crores INR 

Asat As at 

Particulars 
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 

carrying 
Fair Value 

carrying 
Fair Value 

Value Value 
Financial Assets at Amortised cost 
Investments (non-current) 7.81 7.81 7.35 7.35 

Trade receivables 421.55 421.55 489.36 489.36 

Loans 12.59 12.59 11.85 11.85 

cash and bank balances 3.89 3.89 5.48 5.48 

Fair Value Hedging Instruments: 

Derivative assets 49.73 49.73 83.45 83.45 

Total 495.57 495.57 597.49 597.49 

Financial liabilities at amortised cost 
Foreign Currency Borrowings 1,919.00 1,919.00 1,985.11 1,985.11 

cash Credits/Working Capital Borrowing 81.58 81.58 75.61 75.61 

Trade payables 110.18 110.18 155.38 155.38 

Other financial liabilities 10.02 10.02 11.53 11.53 

Total 2,120.78 2,120.78 2,227.63 2,227.63 

B) Fair Value Measurements {Ind AS 113): 

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the 
instrument could be exchanged in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) 
market at measurement date under the current market condition regardless of whether that price is 
directly observable or estimated using other valuation techniques. 
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The company has established the following fair value hierarchy that categorises the values into 3 
levels. The inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value of financial instruments are: 

Level 1: This hierarchy uses quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities. 

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (For example 
traded bonds, over the counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximize 
the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on company specific estimates. The 
mutual fund units are valued using the closing Net Asset Value. If all significant inputs required to fair 
value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2. 

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the 
instrument is included in Level 3. 

Amount in Crores INR 
Fair Value 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2019 March 31 2018 

Fair value Hedge Instruments 
Derivative assets - Level 2 49.73 83.45 

The management assessed that cash and bank balances, trade receivables, trade payables, cash 
credits, commercial papers and other current assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts 
largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. 

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values: 

(a) The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated 
future cash flows based on observable yield curves and an appropriate discount factor. 

(b) The fair value of currency swap is calculated as the present value determined using forward 
exchange rates, currency basis spreads between the respective currencies and interest rate 
curves. 

(c) The fair value of commodity swaps is calculated as the present value determined using the 
forward price and interest rate curve of the respective amency 

(d) The fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash 
flow analysis. The discount rates used is based on management estimates. 

45) Financial Risk Management Objectives (Ind As 107) 

The company's principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, 
trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the company's 
operations. The company's principal financial assets other than derivatives include trade and other 
receivables, investments and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. 

The company's activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. Company's overall risk 
management focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential 
adverse effects on the financial performance of the company. The company uses derivative financial 
instruments that are entered to hedge foreign currency risk exposure, interest rate swaps to hedge 
variable interest rate exposure and commodity fixed price swaps to hedge commodity price risks. 
Derivatives are used exclusively for hedging purposes and not as trading or speculative instruments. 
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The several sources of risks which the company is exposed to and their management is 
given below: 
Risk Exposure Arising Measurement Management 

From 
Committed commercial cash Flow Forecasting (a)Forward foreign 
transaction Sensitivity Analysis exchange contracts 

Foreign Currency Financial asset and (b)Foreign currency 
Risk Liabilities not options 

denominated in AED ( c) Principal 
&USD only/Currency swaps 
Long Term Borrowings Sensitivity Analysis, (a)Interest Rate swaps 

Interest Rate Risk at variable rates Interest rate 
movements 

Trade receivables, Aging analysis, Credit (a)Credit limit & credit 
Investments, Rating worthiness monitoring, 

Credit Risk Derivative financial (b )Criteria based 
instruments, Loans and approval process 
Bank balances 
Borrowings and Other Rolling cash flow (a)Adequate unused 

Liquidity Risks Liabilities forecasts credit lines and 
Broker Quotes borrowing facilities 

Movement in prices of Sensitivity Analysis, (a )Commodity Fixed 
Commodity Price commodities mainly Commodity price Prices 
Risk Imported Thermal Coal tracking (b )Swaps/Options 

and pet coke 

Market Risk: 

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from 
a change in the price of a financial instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change as a 
result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, commodity prices, equity 
prices and other market changes that affect market risk sensitive instruments. Market risk is 
attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including investments and deposits, 
foreign currency receivables, payables and borrowings. 

Foreign Currency Risk: 

Foreign currency risk is the risk of impact related to fair value or future cash flows of an exposure in 
foreign currency, which fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The company's exposure 
to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the foreign currency borrowings, 
import of fuels, raw materials & spare parts, capital expenditure, exports of cement and the 
company's net investments in foreign subsidiaries. 

When a derivative is entered into for the purpose of being a hedge, the Company negotiates the 
terms of those derivatives to match the terms of the hedged exposure. 

The Company evaluates exchange rate exposure arising from foreign currency transactions. The 
Company follows established risk management policies and standard operating procedures. It uses 
derivative instruments like foreign currency swaps and forwards to hedge exposure to foreign 
currency risk. 

Page 25 of31 

-
I M~!-iENOt<A ASHER & CO. 

r!--Afl 1 ERi::!) ACCOUNTANTS 

~tamp ed for tho Purpose 
:,r idilntificotion onl _ __,_ _ _ .._ __ ..._ __ ..:.....__. 



UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited And Its 
Subsidiaries 

Accounting Policies and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Amount in Crores INR 
Asat As at 

Particulars March 31. 2019 March 31 2018 
Outstanding foreign currency exposure as at 
Borrowings 
USD 42.47 29.36 

Foreign Currency Sensitivity on Unhedged Exposure: 

1 % increase in foreign exchange rates will have the following impact on profit before tax. 

Particulars 
Asat 

March 31. 2019 
As at I 

March 31 2018 
USD I o.42 0.29 I 

Note: If the rate is decreased by 100 bps profit will increase by an equal amount. 

The foreign currency exposure is considered only for Emirates Cement Bangladesh Limited as for all 
the other subsidiaries the currency is pegged to USD. 

Interest rate risk: 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes 
in market interest rates relates primarily to the company's short term borrowing (excluding 
commercial paper) with floating interest rates. For all long-term borrowings with floating rates, the 
risk of variation in the interest rates is mitigated through interest rate swaps. The company constantly 
monitors the credit markets and rebalances its financing strategies to achieve an optimal maturity 
profile and financing cost. 

Interest rate exposure: 
Amount in Crores INR 

Floating 
Non-

Total Fixed rate Interest Particulars 
borrowings 

rate 
borrowings bearing borrowings borrowings 

AED 12.29 12.29 . 

USD 1,961.47 42.47 1919.00 -

BHD 0.53 0.53 -

BDT 26.29 26.29 -
Total as at March 31, 2019 2,000.58 81.58 1,919.00 -
AED 16.98 16.98 - . 

USD 2,014.47 29.36 1,985.11 . 

BHD 2.06 2.06 . . 

BDT 27.21 27.21 . . 

Total as at March 31, 2018 2,060.72 75.61 1,985,11 -

Interest rate risk hedged for FCY borrowings has been shown under Fixed Rate borrowings. 
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UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited And Its 
Subsidiaries 

Accounting Policies and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Interest rate sensitivities for unhedged exposure {impact of increase in 100 bps): 

Amount in Crores INR 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2019 March 31. 2018 

For the vear ended March 31, 2019 
AED (0.12) (0.17) 

USO (0.42) (0.29} 

BHD (0.01) (0.02} 

BOT (0.26) (0.27} 
Note: If the rate is decreased by 100 bps profit will increase by an equal amount. 
Interest rate sensitivity has been calculated assuming the borrowings outstanding at reporting date 
have been outstanding for the entire reporting period. Further, the calculations for the unhedged 
floating rate borrowing have been done on the notional value of the foreign currency (excluding the 
revaluation}. 

Forward Exchange and Interest Rates Swaps Contracts: 

(A) Derivatives for hedging interest rates, outstanding are as under: 

Asat As at 

Amount in Crores 
INR 

Cross 
Particulars Purpose Currency March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 Currency 

Other Derivatives: 

Currency Swap Imports EUR NIL 3.64 USO 

Interest Rate Swap 
ECB* USO 1,919.00 1,985.11 INR I (IRS) 

*External Commercial Borrowings 

(B) Cash Flow Hedges: The Company has raised foreign currency external commercial borrowings 
and to mitigate the risk of floating interest rates, the company has taken currency swaps, interest 
rates swaps. These derivative instruments have been designated as cash flow hedges. The Company 
is following Hedge accounting for all the foreign currency borrowings raised on or after April 01, 2015 
based on qualitative approach. 

The Company assesses hedge effectiveness based on following criteria: 
(i} An economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument; 
(ii) The effect of credit risk ; and 
(iii) Assessment of the hedge ratio 

Foreign currency cash flows: 

Particulars Asat Average Foreign 
Exchange Rate Currency 

(USD/EUR) EUR 

Buy Currency for 
March 31, 2019 NIL NIL 

Imports (EUR) 
Buy Currency for 
Imports (EUR) 

March 31, 2018 1.25005. 450,000 

Page 27 of31 

MAHENORAMHER & co 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS . 

I Stamp~d t.o! tne Purpose 
of 1oent1f,cation only 

Fair Value 
Assets 

(Liabilities) 
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UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited And Its 
Subsidiaries 

Accounting Policies and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Interest rates outstanding receive fixed and pay floating contracts: 
Amount in Crores INR 

As at Average 
Fair Value 

Particulars contracted Nominal 
Assets fixed interest Amount ( Liabilities) 

rates 

1 to 2 years March 31, 2019 0.8971% 1,296.62 30.32 1 

2 to S years March 31, 2019 1.0392% 622.38 19.41 

1 to 2 years March 31, 2018 NIL NIL NIL 

2 to 5 years March 31, 2018 0.9490% 1,985.11 85.38 

Recognition of gains / (losses) under foiward exchange & interest rates swaps contracts 
designated under cash flows hedges: 

Amount in Crores INR 

Particulars As at March 31,2019 I As at March 31,2018 

Effective 
Ineffective 

Effective 
Ineffective 

Hedge (OCI) 
Hedge (Profit 

Hedge (OO) 
Hedge ( Profit 

and Loss) and Loss) 

(Loss)/Gain (39.37) - I 13.51 -

Credit Risk Management: 

Credit risk arises when counterparty does not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or 
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The company is exposed to credit risk from its 
operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits 
with banks, mutual fund investments and investments in debt securities, foreign exchange 
transactions and financial guarantees. The company has no significant concentration of credit risk 
with any counterparty. 

Trade receivables 

Trade receivables are consisting of a large number of customers. The Company has credit evaluation 
policy for each customer and based on the evaluation credit limit of each customer is defined. 
Wherever the Company assesses the credit risk as high, the exposure is backed by either bank 
guarantee/ letter of credit or security deposits. 

Total Trade receivables as on March 31, 2019 is INR 421.55 Crores (March 31, 2018 INR 489.36 
Crores) 

The Company does not have higher concentration of credit risks to a single customer. Single largest 
customer has total exposure in sales 16.730/o (Previous Year 15.09%) and in receivables 19.570/o 
(Previous Year 24.73%). 

The Company follows global provisioning policy to mitigate the risk of default payments and makes 
appropriate provision at each reporting date wherever outstanding is for longer period and involves 
higher risk. 

The Company's revenue from continuing operations from external customers by location of operations 
and information about its non-current assets by location of assets are detailed below. 
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UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited And Its 
Subsidiaries 

Accounting Policies and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Amount in INR Crores 

Particulars 
March 31, March 31, 

2019 2018 

_ O~!:_n_in_g_~~_!i~.!_~-~---·····-·- ______ -··-··"··--·-· -··-----· ____ ······---- ... ~:~~- _, .... _.,_ ... _ ... ~.:.~!_ __ 
Add: Provided during the year 1.19 

•--- •-------"-•••••••••••••"-••••••-"' ... ••'•O• .. A-,,0,,0,0-•••••"''""•"•"-'•'-""""-••" ___ ,,,A .. A ............................ _••••• - •••••••••-•-•••••-"'•'•'•·--·-- •-, .... , ... ,•A-•-•• ........ ,-., 

Less: Utilised during the year 

Add/(Less) : FCTR 0.45 (0.26) 

Closing Provision 7.79 7.34 

Investments, Derivative Instruments, Cash and Cash Equivalent and Bank Deposit 

Credit Risk on cash and cash equivalent, deposits with the banks/financial institutions is generally low 
as the said deposits have been made with the banks/financial institutions who have been assigned 
high credit rating by international and domestic rating agencies. 

Credit Risk on Derivative Instruments are generally low as Group enters into the Derivative Contracts 
with the reputed Banks and Financial Institutions. 

Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved Financial Institutions/ Counterparty. 

Total Non-current and current investments as on March 31, 2019 is INR 7.81 Crores. (March 31, 
2018 INR 7.35 Crores.) 

Liquidity risk management: 

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations 
on time or at reasonable price. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash 
and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of credit 
facilities to meet obligations when due. The company's treasury department is responsible for 
liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition, processes and policies related to 
such risks are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the company's liquidity 
position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows. 

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities 
at the reporting date based on contractual undiscounted payments. 

I As at March 31, 2019 Less than 1 tos 
1 year Years 

Borrowings (including current maturities of 
81.58 1,919.00 lonq-term debts) 

Trade oavables 110.18 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowinqs 4.58 
Other financial liabilities 5.44 

As at March 31, 2018 Less than 1 to s 
1 vear Years 

Borrowings (including current maturities of 
75.61 1,985.11 lono-term debts) 

Trade oavables 155.38 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowinos 4.99 
Other financial liabilities 6.54 
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Amount in Crores INR 
More than Total Syears 

- 2,000.58 

- 110.18 
- 4.58 
- 5.44 

Amount in Crores INR 
More than 

Total 
Svears 

- 2,060.72 

- 155.38 
- 4.99 
- 6.54 

I 



UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited And Its 
Subsidiaries 

Accounting Policies and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

46) Capital Management (Ind AS 1): 

The company's objectives when managing capital are to (a) maximise shareholder value and provide 
benefits for other stakeholders and (b) maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of 
capital 

For the purposes of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued capital, share 
premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders 
The company monitors capital using debt-equity ratio, which is total debt less related fixed 
deposits divided by total equity. 

Amount in Crores INR 

Particulars 
Asat As at 

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 
Total Debt 2,000.58 2,060.72 
Equity 848.66 765.65 

Debt to Equity (Net) 2.36 2.69 

47) Assets held for Disposal (Ind AS 105): 

The company has identified one of the assets "Waste Heat Recovery System" (WHRS) which is not 
useful anymore as it is not productive and not giving the desired result. Thus the same has being 
impaired in previous year and disclosed under "Exceptional items - Impairment of Assets". The 
realizable value after considering the scrap and dismantling cost is reclassified as assets for disposal. 
The company is in the process of discussion with vendors and contractor and expects the same to be 
disposed off within next 12 months. 

48) Operating lease (Ind AS 17) 

a) Future minimum rental payables under non-cancellable operating lease 
Amount in Crores INR 

Sr. Year Ended 
No 

Particulars 
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 

(i) Not later than one year 14.40 13.28 
(ii) Later than one year and not later than five years 58.18 53.67 
(iii) More than five years 93.09 99.55 

b) Operating lease payment recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss amounting to INR 16.86 
Crores. (Previous Year INR 15.50 Crores.) 

c) General Description of leasing agreements: 
(i) Leased Assets: Land, Offices, Flats, Machinery & Others. 
(ii) Future Lease rentals are determined on the basis of agreed terms. 
(iii) At the expiry of lease terms, the Company has an option to return the assets or extend the 

term by giving notice in writing. 
(v) Lease agreements are generally cancellable and are renewable by mutual consent on mutually 

agreed terms. 
49) Figures pertaining to the subsidiary companies have been reclassified wherever necessary to 

bring them in line with the Holding Company's financial statements. 

50) Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with 
the current year classification / disclosure. 
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UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited And Its 
Subsidiaries 

Accounting Policies and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

S1) Ind AS 116 - In March 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019, notifying Ind AS116 "leases", which replaces 
Ind AS 17 "leases". The new standard introduces a single on-balance sheet lease accounting 
model for lessee. The Company is in the process of analyzing the impact and it cannot be 
determined currently. The amendment will come into force from April 01, 2019. 

52) The Company is primarily in the Business of manufacture and sale of cement and cement related 
products. The product shelf life being short all sales are made at a point in time and revenue 
recognised upon satisfaction of the performance obligations. The Company has a credit 
evaluation policy based on which the credit limit for the trade receivables are made The 
Company does not give significant credit period resulting in no significant financing component. 

(A) Reconciliation of revenue recognised from Contract liability: 
Amount in INR Crores 

Particulars 
Year Ended Year Ended I 

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 
Opening Contract liability 2.49 2.07 
less: Recognised as revenue during the year (2.49) (2.07) 

Add: Addition to contract liability during the year 2.21 2.49 

Add: Other Adjustments 

Closing Contract liability 2.21 2.49 

(B) Reconciliation of revenue as per contract price and as recognised in statement of 
profit and loss: 

Amount in INR Crores 

Particulars 
Year Ended Year Ended 

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 

Revenue as per Contract price 1,340.13 1,418.12 

Less: Discounts and incentives (34.74) (59.20) 

Revenue as per statement of profit and loss 1,305.39 1,358.92 

Signatures to Note '1' to '52' 

In terms of our reports attached. 
Dubai, April 15th, 2019 

For and on behalf of the Board 

Director 
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MSKA 
& Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of Ultra Tech Nathdwara Cement Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements 

Qualified Opinion 

Floor 3, Enterprise Centre 

Nehru Road, Near Domestic Airport 

Vile Parle (E), Mumbai 400099, INDIA 
Tel: ~91 22 3358 9800 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Ultra Tech Nathdwara 
Cement Limited (hereinafter referred to as the "Holding Company") and its subsidiaries (Holding 
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as "the Group"), which comprise the consolidated 
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019, and the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss (including 
Other Comprehensive Income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated 
cash flows Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies (hereinafter referred to as "the consolidated 
Ind AS financial statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and 
based on consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other 
financial informatjon of subsidiaries, except for the matter described in Basis for Qualified Opinion 
section of our report, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information 
required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair 
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of their consolidated 
state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2019, of consolidated loss, consolidated changes in 
equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

a. In accordance with Para 34 of Ind AS-105 'Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued 
operations' the Company is required to present the Statement of Profit and Loss for 
discontinued operation separately from continuing operation for the corresponding year 
ended 31 March 2018. However, the Company has not presented corresponding numbers in 
the Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2018, as explained in Note 44 
(C}, which is not in accordance with Para 34 of Ind AS 105. This is departure from the 
requirements of the Ind AS and accordingly the corresponding figures of Statement of Profit 
and Loss are not correctly presented and are not comparable. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Finandal Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit 
of the consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by Institute of 
Chartered Accountant of India ("ICAI") and the relevant provisions of the Act and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion. 

Head Office: Floor 3, Enterprise Centre, Nehru Road, Near Domestic Airport, Vile Parle (E), Mumbai 400099, INDIA, Tel: +91 22 3358 9800 
Bengaluru I Chennai I Hyderabad I Kolkata I Mumbai I New Delhi - Gurugram I Pune www.mska.in 
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Emphasis of Matter 

We draw attention to the following matters in the Notes to the consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements: 

a) We draw attention to Note 31 (i) of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements which 
describes the matter under litigation as follows: 
The Company had filed an appeal before the Competition Appellate Tribunal (COMPAT) 
against the Order of the Competition Commission of India (CCI) dated 31 August 2016. 
Consequent to reconstitution of Tribunals by the Government, this matter was transferred to 
the National Company Law Appellate Tribunal (NCLAT). NCLAT completed its hearing on the 
matter and disallowed the appeal filed by the Company against the CCI order. Aggrieved by 
the order of NCLAT, the Company has filed an appeal before the Honourable Supreme Court 
of India, which has granted a stay vide its order dated 18 January 2019 against the NCLA T 
order. Consequently, the Company has deposited an amount of Rs. 1,673 lakhs equivalent to 
10% of the penalty amount. Based on the legal opinion taken by Holding Company, the 
Company believes that it has a good case in this matter. Considering the uncertainty relating 
to the outcome of this matter, no provision has been considered in the books of account. 

b) We draw attention to Note 45 of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements which describes 
the impact of Resolution Plan approved by the National Company Law Appellate Tribunal 
(NCLAT) and other exceptional items recognised on 19 November 2018 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Director's report and Annexures thereof etc 
but does not include the Consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the Consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we 
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the Consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otheiwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. 
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Ind AS 
Financial Statements 

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of 
these consolidated Ind AS financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a 
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and 
consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective 
Soard of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets 
of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that 
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements 
by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the 
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as 
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for 
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing ("SAs") will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements. 

We give in "Annexure A" a detailed description of Auditor's responsibilities for Audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

We did not audit the financial statements of 2 foreign step-down subsidiaries, whose financial 
statements reflect total assets of Rs. 102,238.19 lakhs as at 31 March 2019, net assets of Rs. 
54,086.03 lakhs as at 31 March 2019, total revenues of Rs. 107,720.42 lakhs and net cash 
inflow of Rs. 320. 77 lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated 
Ind AS financial statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors 
whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the 
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consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures 
included in respect of these subsidiaries and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) 
of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely 
on the reports of the other auditors. These financial statements have been further adjusted 
by the management for recording of impairment loss (Refer Note 45(1 )(e)), which has not 
been subject to audit. 

b. We did not audit the financial statements of 4 Indian subsidiaries whose financial statements 
reflect total assets of Rs. 10,664.78 as at 31 March 2019, net assets of Rs. 10,574.33 lakhs, 
total revenues of Rs. 4.03 lakhs and net cash inflow of Rs. 1. 11 lakhs for the year ended on 
that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements 
have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the 
Management and our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in so far as it 
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and our report 
in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the 
aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. 

c. We did not audit the financial information of 8 foreign subsidiaries and step-down 
subsidiaries; whose financial information reflect total assets of Rs. 1,481.37 lakhs and net 
assets of Rs. 733. 97 lakhs as at 31 March 2019, total revenue of Rs. 136. 53 lakhs and net cash 
inflow of Rs. 30.17 lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated 
Ind AS special purpose financial statements. These financial information are unaudited and 
have been furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS 
special purpose financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and the disclosures 
included in respect of these subsidiaries is based solely on such unaudited financial 
information. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by 
the Management, these financial information are not material to the Group. Our opinion on 
the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our 
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements 
/ financial information certified by the Management. 

Our opinion on the consol1dated f1nanc1al statements, and our report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements below, is not qualified in respect of the above matters with respect to 
our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements 
/ financial information certified by the Management. 

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements. 
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b. Except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section 
above, in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of 
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors. 

c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the 
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated 

financial statements. 

d. Except for the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section above, in our 
opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting 

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

e . On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding 
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies incorporated 
in India, none of the directors of the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as 
on 31 March 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

f. With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in 

"Annexure B". 

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration 
of the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other financial 
information of the subsidiaries as noted in 'Other Matters' paragraph: 

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on 
the consolidated financial position of the Group - Refer Note 31 to the consolidated 
financial statements. 

ii. The Group did not h.:ivc ,my m.:iteriul foreseeable losses on long-term contracts 
including derivative contracts during the year ended 31 March 2019 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary 
companies incorporated in India. 
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2. As required by The Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, in our opinion, according to 
information, explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Holding Company 
and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, to its directors is within the limits laid 

prescribed under Section 197 of the Act and the rules thereunder. 

For MSKA & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W 

I 

~ 
Anita Somani 

Partner 

Membership No. 124118 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 22 April 2019 
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED 
IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ULTRATECH NATHDWARA LIMITED 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we 
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has internal financial 
controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
consolidated Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the 
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated Ind 
AS financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance 
of the audit of the financial statements of such entity included in the consolidated Ind AS 
financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities 
included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other 
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and 
performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit 
opinion. 
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We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other 
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent 
auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards. 

For MSKA ft Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W 

• 

~~ 
Anita Somani 

Partner 

Membership No. 124118 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 22 April 2019 
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ULTRATECH NATHDWARA CEMENT LIMITED 

[Referred to in paragraph (f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in the 
Independent Auditors' Report of even date to the Members of Ultratech Nathdwara Cement Limited 
on the consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019] 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Company as of 
and for the year ended 31 March 2019, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference 
to consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Ultra Tech Nathdwara Limited (hereinafter referred to 
as "the Holding Company") and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, 
as of that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company and its subsidiary companies which are 
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements 
criteria established by the respective companies considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("the ICAI"). These responsibilities include 
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to 
consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Holding company and its subsidiary companies, which 
are companies incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance 
Note") issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, 
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance 
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS 
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects. 
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the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other 
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference 
to consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Holding company and its subsidiary companies 
which are companies incorporated in India. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Ind AS Financial 
Statements 

A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements is 
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting 
and the preparation of consolidated Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference 
to consolidated Ind AS financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to 
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated Ind AS financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect 
on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial 
Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind 
AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of 
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS 
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with 
reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate because of changes 
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and 
~:::::-a::::::::~ sed on consideration of reporting of the other auditors as mentioned in the other matter paragraph, 

...--....::1111~Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, have, 
material respects, an internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial 

s ents and such internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial 
~ 

ents were operating effectively as at 31 March , 2019, based on the internal control with 
,11t rence to consolidated Ind AS financial statements criteria established by the respective 
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companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
issued by the ICAI. 
Other Matters 

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness 
of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements insofar 
as it relates to 4 subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the 
corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India. 

For MSKA & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W 

Anita Somani 

Partner 

Membership No. 124118 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 22 April 2019 



UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Limited 
(formerly known as Blnani Cement Limited) 

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2019 

Particulars 

ASSETS 
Non-current assets 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Capital work-in-progress 

Other Intangible assets 

Investments accounted for using th e equity meth od 

financial Assets 

Loans 

Other Financial Assets 

Tax Assets (Net) - (net of provi5ion of doubtful recovery Rs. 

2,080.05 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. nil)) 

Other non-current assets 

Current assets 

Inventories 

Financlal AS5ets 

Trade receivables 

Cash and cash eqvivalents 

Sank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents 

Loans 

Other Financial Assets 

Other current assets 

Assets cl assified as held for sale 

Total Assets 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

EQUITY 
EQuity Share Capital 

Other Equity 

Equity attributable to ownel'S 

Non-COil troiiing interests 

Tota I Equity 

LIABILITIES 
Non-current liabillties 

Financlal Liabil it ies 

Borrow ings 

Other Financial Liabilities 

Provisions 

Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 

Current liabilltles 

Financi al Liabilities 

Borrowing.s 

Trade payab les 

Total Outstanding Dues of Micro Enterprises and 

Small Enterprises 

Total Outstanding Dues of Cred itors other than 

Micro Enterprises and small Enterprises 

Uther ~inancial Liabili t ies 

Other current liabilities 

Provisions 

Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 

Liabilities classified as held for sale 

Total Equity and Uabllltles 

Summary of Significant Acco11nting Policies 

Note No. 

1 

1 
1 

2 A 

2 8 

3 

4 

s 

6 

7 

8 
9 

10 

11 

46 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

36 

18 

19 

20 

21 

46 

29 

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our attached report of even date 

for MSKA & Associates 
Chartered Accoun tants 

ICAI Firm Registration No. 10504 

Partner 

Membership No. 124 118 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 22nd April, 2019 

II.sat 

31st March, 2019 

1,67,281.10 

958.27 

397.50 

---
1,00,095.56 

16.79 

39.25 

703.19 

2,69,491.65 

14,213.41 

497.65 

722.30 

6,516.29 

6,396.84 

3,089.00 

1,581.85 

1,03, 719.56 

1,36,736.90 

4 06 228.SS 

3,40,000.00 

(4,6'1,157. 75) 

(1,24,157 .75) 

(1,24, 157.75) 

2,69,288.10 
. 

705.91 

87.87 

2,70,081.88 

1,79,975.00 

54.13 

7,456.70 

8,357.85 

15,525.56 

35.02 

0.60 

48,899.56 

2,60,304.42 

4 06 228.55 

K. C. Jhanwar 

Whole-time Director 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 
As at ) 

31n March, 2018' 

2.46.686.19 

9,977.84 

7,427.12 

127.24 

1,704.49 

17.68 

2,015.44 

12,543.23 

2,80,499.23 

13,155.97 

22,325.43 

9,720.95 

1,949.74 

304.51 

1,896.05 

16,386.54 

65.739.19 

3 46 238.42 

18,860.38 

(3.60,033.54) 

( 3,41, 173.16 J 
1,362.28 

(3,39,810.88) 

3,445.72 

3,744.57 

990.26 

116.06 

8,296.61 

33,000.60 

79,252.02 

5,25,834.85 

39,457.74 

206.09 

1.39 
. 

6,77,752.69 

3 46 238.42 

DIN: 01743559 DIN: 00012575 

Chlef Financial Officer Company Secretary 

Place: Mumbai 

Date : 22nd April, 2019 



Ultrale<h Nathdwara Cement limited 
(formerly known as 81n~nl Cement Limite-d} 

Statement of Consolidated Profit and loss for tile ye;ir ended 31st Match, 2019 

Partlc•lars 

Rrircnua from operations 
Other Income 

Total Revenue 

Expen,u: 

Cost ot Ma1ertats·Consumed 
Purc.h.a$e of Stock,in-Trod'o 
Changes in inventories or ffnis~d goods. work•ln•progreu. and 
Sto<:k,ln,T.rad~ 

Employee. Be,iefil E'xpensa 
Finance Cons 
Oepredation and Amanludon bpef!Se 
Power and Fuel 
Freight and f orwarding Expense> 

Excbe·Outy 

Other E~orues 

Tota:1 hpens·M 

Ptofit/ (Loss) before OJ<coptlonul Item, and t~x 

E,cceptlonaJ Items 

Prollt/ (Lou) Sefoto T•x 

T1.>e expe"ie: 
Net C.urra.n.t Tax 
Oelu r~tax 
Ptoflt/ (Lou) lot the period from contln•lna opcrotlon, 

ProfiV(Lo,s) from dl><ontlnuln8 operations •ftar oxceptloool Item, 

Tix e~pcnsc or db.counting operations 
Le,s : Rodu«lon In fair value of •=I> hold for s~l• 
Ptoflt/(Lou) from Olscontlnulna oprrallons 

Prollt/(loss) for the V•"' 

Othet comprc,h.t,.nslve fntomc 
Items. that Witt not be , ~cJMslried to profit or los:r. 

m R.emea.surements of·pon:emplovmont benefltobllga1lon; 

(11) locom• ll!X relating to Iha"' Item, 

II ems that will bo tecl•sslflod to profit ot lois: 

Exch-1nse dlffcrencei Qrilina. on lranJJ:11foo of fora,gn operations 

Other comprchttnslvr lncc>me for the yev. net oft-ax 

Toud compre-hensfve fncome for lhC? year 

Profit/ (Lou) from contlnuln8 operaUons attllbu.tablo to: 
owners of UltnoToc~ Na1hdw1ro Comcot Limited 

Non-control/Ing rnu!ref t.s. 
Total 

PtoOt/-(lou) lrom discontinuing opn,otlon, a1tributabfe to: 

Owner> ofUltraTech Nothdworn Ccrn<1nt limited 
Non-conirollfns fnterests 

Total 

Other comprchcn,lve income r, au,1but1i1Jle tu. 
Owners-of UltriTech Nathdwara Ccmont limited 
Non-c,onironing fntates'tJ 

Total 

Total comprehensive Income ls attributable to: 
owners of Ultra Tech Nalhdwora C..mrnt Limited 
Non~convollfng inu:rests 

Total 

Earnina Per Equity Shnro (In lls.) : ffaco value or R<. lO •••h) 
Sink 
Oilutcd 
Summary of SlanfRC11nt Accounting Policies 

The acoompinying notes are integral part of tht" f;nanciaJ staten,e11ts. 

Al per our attached rei::,ort of even date 

For MSKA & Msoclatu 

' 

(lb, In Laklts) 

Note No. 31st Mar<h, 2019 31st Morch, 2018 

22 A 1,16.758,13 1,59,993,35 
22 9 6,004,37 1,612.19 

1.22 762.SD L61,605_54 

23 19,075.16 40,277.53 
1,747.52 

24 {1,890581 (1,381.22) 

2S 4,976.23 9,109.SO 
26 46,274.00 50,785.63 
I 6,761.76 13)126.01 

45,197,04 S0,015.AI 
2? .. 20,121,71 18,341,13 

3,029.88 
27 8 23.756.63 97,330,68 

J.64129 t .9S 2.113,082.07 

(41.S29.A6) (l,21,476.53) 

(84,062.25) (2.65,822.30) 

( 1 25,591,711 l3,87.298.S3l 

108 2.34 
(38.76 127.87) 

(125,554.03 (].87.27UO 

2,044,55 

1,531.59 

3,962.85 
fJ 449.89) 

fl 290D3.92J (3,87 Z73.30 

30,24 94.21 
(10.57) 

(992.91) 4,679.72 

1973.241 4 773,93 

lt.JQ.!)17.161 13.82 499.37 

(1,25.554.03) (3,87,469,S2J 

196,21 

IUS.S54.03l 13 87 27l.UJ 

(3.998.SI) 
548,63 

13.449.891 

(973,24) 4,773.93 

(97}.241 4.17l.93 

(1,30,S2S.79) (3,82,69S$9) 
~48.63 196.21 

(1,29,977.16 (3.82499.38 

42 

(12.48) (205.44) 
(12.48) (20S.44) 

29 

,c~ OU~ 
Whole-time 01,ecto, Director 

~~ 
· ~ OIN:00012575 

~ R•J•ndr~ (___.~ • 
Partner 
Membership No. 124118 

Chief fitial\clal Offker Companv Secretilry 

Plice; Mumb,i Place: Mumbai 
Oat• : 18th April. 2019 Date : 22nd April, 201 j 



UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Limited 
[formerlv known as Sinani Cement Limited) 

Consolidated Sntement of changes in equity 

A. Equity Share Capital !Refer note no. 12) 

Particulars 

Balance as at 1st April, 2017 
Cha nge.i in equity sh.ate C'ipita I 
Balance as at 31st March, 2018 
Less : Cancellation of equity as per ARP 

Add: Issue of new equity ,a$ per ARP 
Balance as at 31st March, 2019 

8. Other Equity (Refer note no. U) 

Partlculars 

Balance as at 1st April, 2017 

Profit/ (Loss) for the year 
Other Comprehensive Income for the year 

Total Comprehensive Income to, the year 

Addition/ (Deletionl during the year 
Balance as at :ilst March. 2018 

Profit/ (Loss) for the period - Cot1tinuing 
Operations 

Addition/ (Deletion) during the year 
Other Comprehensive tncome for the year 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 

Cancellation of equity & preference shares 

Transaction cost towards i$Sue of equity shares 

lntete$t waiver on preference sh.a res by the 
Holding Company 
Foreign subsidiaries reclassified as held for sale 

!refer note no. 46) 
Balance as at 31st Match, 2019 

(Rs. in LakhsJ 

18,860.38 

18,860.38 

18,860.3& 
3,40,000.00 
3,40,000.00 

capita! 

Redemption 
Reserve 

1,450,00 

. 

-
1,450.00 

. 

1,450.00 

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financi.al statements. 

As per our attached report of even dite 

For MSKA & Associites 
Chartered Accountants 

,CA1 Firm Regi:stration No. 105047W 

I 

~~ 
Anita Somani 
Partner 
Membership No. 124118 

Place : Mumbai 
Date : 22nd April, 2019 

Other Equity attributable to owners 
Reserves a nd Surolus 

Capital Gene,al Retained Equity component of 
Reserve ReseNe Earnings compound financial 

instruments. 

1,077.18 7,843.00 9,967.90 'l,518.SS 
. (3.87,469.52) . 

94.21 
. (3,87,375.31) 

107.36 [1,208.96} . 
1,184.55 7,843.00 (3,78, 616.37) 3.518,55 

. (1,29,552.54) 

19.67 
. . (1,29,532 .87) 

23,318.94 (3,518.55) 
(150.00) 

2,920.27 

(1,184.55) . 8,609.29 

10,613.27 14,76,221.02) 

Reserves ,epresenting 
unrealised gains/ losses 

(Foreign Currency 

Ttanslation Reserve) 

(92.99) 

4,679.72 
4,679.72 

. 
4,586.73 

. 

(992.91) 
{992.91) 

(.3,593.82) 

~ 
K. C. Jhanwar 
Whole-time Director 
DIN: 01743559 ( 

Place : Mumbai 
Date : 22nd April, 2019 

Total Other Equity 
attributable to 

owners 

23,763.64 
(3,87,469.52) 

4,773.93 
(3,82,695.59) 

ll.101.60) 
(3,60,033.54) 

(l,29,552.54) 

(973.241 
(1,30,525.79) 

19,800.39 
(150.00) 

2,920.27 

.3,8.30,92 

(4,64,1S7.75) 

Director 

DIN:_ooo~ s 

~ · 
Kamaf Rathi 

Company Secretafy 

I (Rs. In Lakhsl 

Non·controllinc 
Grandlotal 

interests 

2,094.24 25,857.88 
196.21 (3,87,273.311 

4,n3.93 
196.21 (3,82,499 .. 38) 

(928.17) {Z029 .76) 
1,362.28 (3,58,671.26) 

(1,29,552.54) 

530.JS ~0.15 
1973.24) 

530.15 (1.29,99S.64) 

19,800.39 
(150-00) 

2,920.27 

(1,892.43) 1,938.49 

. (4,64,1S7.75) 



UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Limited 
(formerly known as Binani Cement Limited) 

C<lnsolidoted C.sh Flow Sta~ment (ot the year ended 31st March, 2019 

PARTICUIARS 

A. CASH HOW 1aoM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

ProfiV (lo"I before 1 .. 
Adjustments for : 

Oepreciation/Amortis.ation 

Interest and Finance Charges 
un,ealis.ed Exchange Rate Fluctuation (net) 
Fair Value gain on forward Contr&cts: 

(Profit)/ Loss on Sale/Discard of Property, Pl••t and Equipment (PPE) 
Assets/ pre-ope,stive eKpenses writt~n off 
Provision for doubtful debu/ Re<:eivable.s 
lntere1t Recelvable wrritten off 

Pttifit on sate of Investment 

lntere$! ln«>me 

Provision fo, .slow/ non-moving lnventorv & written off 
Provl$ion no longer required written bick 
Exceptional Items 

Opetatlng Profit before wor~ing cap Ital changes 
Ad)u,tments for ; 

Inventories 
Tr~de and Other Receivables 

Trade and Other Payables 

Cash Generated from Operitlons 

Direct Taxes Paid/ Refunds 

Net Cash flow from/ (used In) Operating Aetivities 

8. CASH FlOW fAOM INVeSTING ACTIVITIES 

Purchose of Property. Plant and Equipment 

(including capita! wo,k-in·progre"I 

Safe of fixed Assets 
Interest Received 

Profit on .sale of Investment 

P.aymenh made towards Corporate Guar•ntees 

Redemption/ (lnvl"stment) in Other Bank Oepos;,s 

Net Cash flow from/ (used in) Investing Activities 

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIIIITlfS 
Proceeds from Borrowingi 

Repayment of Borrowines 

Interest and Finance Chargu Paid 

Proceeds from Issue of Equity $hare Capital (net) 

Proceeds from luue of Preftrenee $hare Gap~tal 
Net c,sh flow (rom / !used In) financing Acti,ities 

0. NET INCREASE/IOECREASE) IN CASH ANO CASH EQUII/AlENTS IA+&+() 

E. CASH ANO CASH EQUIVAlcNTSAS AT BEGINNING Of THE VEAR 

F. EFFeCTON EXCHANGE RATE ON CONSOUOATION OF FOREIGN SUBSIDIARIES 

G, RECLASSIIIED TO ASS£T.S HELO FOR SALE !REFER NOTE NO. 461 

F. CASH ANO CASH E(lUIVAlcNTS JIS AT END Of THE YEAR 

Cash and cash Equivalent, as P"' above comprises of the following: 

Ca•h and C.sh Equivalents (Ref.,, Not" no. 7) 
Bank Overdrafts (Refer Nole no. 8) 

Balances as pet statement of Cash Flows 

The ac:(ompanylng notes are integral part of the financial .statements. 

(Rs. In ukhs 
For the year ended For tile year ended 

31st Marcb 2019 31,t M•rch 2018 

(U5,S91.7l) {3,87,298.84) 

6.781.76 13,826.01 

46.273.!'3 50,785.63 
(415.53) 3.72 

(2.917.80) 

3.60 l .S3 

2,459.30 8,293.68 
117.28 60,049.47 

9,298.00 

(1,315.66) 

(548,24) (366.841 
1,01A.S7 

/638.00) 
84,062.25 2,65,822.30 

9,923.76 19,776.66 

(U11.94J (1,761.58) 

904.20 (9,474.05) 
(54,917.09) 4,642.07 
(52,401.07) 13,183.10 

(104.96) (293.04) 
(52,506.03) 12,890.06 

(864.30) (10,230.50) 

3.60 
555,50 1,341.43 

1,315.66 

(2.58,450.771 

(4,564.601 1,251.60 

(2.62.004.911 (7,637.47) 

4.S3,475.00 8.527.84 
(2,99,808.89) (6,615.77) 
(1,81,825.15) (4,149.58) 

l,49,8SO.DO 
1,90,00D.OO 

3.11.69D.96 (2.237.Sl) 
(2,819.97) 3,015.08 

6,928.94 {765.86) 

(992.91! 4,679.72 

(2,393.76) 

722.30 6,928.94 

722.30 9,720.95 

(2.792.01) 
722.30 6,928.94 

Note; Cash Flow Staternel"lt ha,$ been prepared under the indirect method ~s set out •n the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS.) 7 
1rstateme11t of Ca,sh Flows··. 

2 Purchase of Property, Plant and fquipment lndudes. movement in capital work~in•progres$ (Including capital advances) during the 
year. 

3 The equity shares issued is net of sha~ issue expenses incurred of Rs. 150 lakhs. 

4 Non-cash trans.actions.: 

(i) During the yeq:r, equity s.hares held bv Binani Industries Limlt'1d {the erstwhlle Holding Company) have bean cil"l<:elled pursu~nt to 
the Approved Res.olulion Plan, 

[ii) During the year the ptefa,ance sl'taites of Rs. 190,000 lakhs. iss.ued have bee-n converted to equity shares of Rs. 190,000 Lakhs. 

(iii) F'in.an<:e c:ost paid jnc;ludes the waiver of interest on preferenc:e shares <:onverted to equity. 

S Prevjous vear figures have been recast/ resro1.1ped whereever considered neeessarv. 

As per our attached report of even date For and on behalf of 1he Board r Di r 

For MSKA & AS$0<iates 

Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Regist,ation No. 105047W 

Partner 

Membership No. 124118 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 22nd April, 2019 

@L 
K. C. Jh9nwar 

i>l.a<:a : Mumbai 

Dato : Uod Aprll, 2019 

Oirec.tor 

DIN: 00012575 

~ 
KamalRathi 
Company Secretary 
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Ultra Tech Nathdwara Cement limited 

{formerly known as 8in,ni Cem•nt Limited) 

Nott'S to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 20J9 

Note no. -1 

Property, Plant and Equipment, Capital work•in-progress and Other Intangible Assets 

Freehold leasehold Building 
Parti~ulars land Land (In duding 

Roads) 

Gross Block 
As. at 1st April, 2017 25,536.71 67,993.90 40.175.88 
Additions during the year 415.56 
Sales/ Transfers/ Adjustments -
Foreign currency translation reserve 1.947.03 
Tolal as at 31st March, 2018 25,536.71 67,993.90 42.538,47 

Oepreciation/Amorlisatlon 
As at 1st April, 2017 . l,6S0.61 15.389.93 
AdditiOn.i during the year . s5o.n 1.721.36 
Sales/ T~nsfers/ Adjustments 
Foreign curret'\ev tran$lation reserve . . 614.58 
Tola! as al 31st March, 2018 2,530.78 17,725.88 

Net Depreciated Block 
Total as at 3l$t March, 2018 25,536,71 65,463.12 24.812.60 

Gross Block 
As at 1st April, 2018 25.536.71 67,993.90 42 538.47 
Additions during the year 1.892.96 562,03 
Sates/ Transfers/ Adjustments 2,640.00 (2,640.00) . 
Foreign eurrencv transfation reserve 867.10 

sub-total 22,896.71 72,526.86 43,967.61 
less: Assets classified as held for sale {refer 35.156.66 
noteno.46) 

Total as at 31st Marth, 2019 22,896.71 72,526.86 8,810.95 

Depreciation/Amortisation 
A$ at 1st April, 2018 2,530.78 17,725.88 
Additions during the year 1,105.27 1,684.19 
Sales/ Transfers/ Adjustments 
Foreign currency transfation reserve . 312.13 

sub-total 3,636,05 19.]22.20 
Less: Assets classified as held for sale (refer . 13,432.47 
"ote no. 46J 
Tolal as al 31st March, 2019 3,636.05 6,289.73 

ed Block .,, ........ 
22.896.71 68,890.82 , rota. _ _ March,2019 2.s21.n 

Pro(!erD,:1 Plaint and Eguigment 

Plant and R.allway Furniture& 
Machinery Sidings Fixtures 

2.69.818.88 2,980,18 599.74 
1.423.08 6.73 

56.80 . 
5,711.79 0.40 

2,76,896.95 2,980.18 606.87 

1,35,134.86 1,522.96 548.43 
10,115.13 H6.81 18.80 

42.26 . . 
2,119.40 0.46 

1,47,387 ,13 1,759.77 S67.69 

1,29,509.82 1,220.41 39.IS 

2.76,896.95 2,980.18 606,87 
1,934.14 - 5 .26 
1.235.08 . . 
1,889.19 W.72 

2,79,485.19 2,930.18 632.84 
92,399.71 333.24 

1,87,0115.48 2,980.18 299.60 

1,47,389.19 1,759.77 567.87 
9,945.15 201.98 22.46 
1,112.55 . 

820.16 . 19.25 
1,57,041.95 1,961.75 609.59 

41,849.39 . 315.99 

-1,1$,192.56 1.961.75 293.60 

71,892.92 1,018.43 6,00 

Jes assets built on land not owned by the Company Rs. 398.02 Ukhs (Previous year Rs. 398.02 Lakhs). 

Other lnt•n,ible Assets 

Vehicles Office and Total Mines Goodwill On Computer 
Other E•ploration & Consolidation Software 

Equipments Development 
Exoen~es 

484.16 619.92 4,08,209,37 14,432.39 56,979.62 899.69 
10.69 3.60 1,859.66 
3S.OO 8.46 100.26 . 57,112.15 . 
0.17 (0.06) 7,659.33 1,326.B 132.53 8 ,14 

460.02 615.00 4,17,628.10 15,758.52 o.oo 907.83 

349.59 578.34 1,55,204.72 6,969.47 . 823.52 
43.44 7.62 13,053.33 752.81 . 19.87 

8.64 . 50.90 . . 
0.31 (O.OOJ 2.734.76 670.99 . 2.56 

384.71 58S.96 1,70,941.91 8,393.28 845.9S 

75.32 29.04 2,46,686.19 7,365.24 o.oo 61.87 

460.02 615.00 4, 17,628.10 15,758,52 . 907,S3 
13.51 44.02 4,451 .92 
7.38 - 1,242.46 . . 
8.8& 0 .07 2,785.96 8 .25 0.05 

475.04 659.09 4,23,623,52 15,766.77 907.88 
137.30 1.69 1,28,028.60 14,639.36 . &9.82 

337.74 657.40 2,9S.594.92 UZ7A1 . 818.06 

382.47 585.96 1,70,941.91 S,393,28 845.95 
S4.24 27.97 13,041.26 700.45 . 12.62 

0.18 . 1.112,73 . . 
5,78 0 .04 1,157.38 0.39 . (0,031 

442.31 613.97 1,84,027 .82 9,094.12 &58.S4 
114.45 1.69 55.713.99 8,364.22 40.48 

327.86 612.28 1,28,313.83 729.90 818.06 

9.1!8 4S.12 1,67,281,09 397.51 -

·~ inery includes assets built c,n land not owned by the Companv ~s. 226 . .34 Lakhs {Previous year rt.. 226.34 Lakhs). 
\... on & Developments includes expenses of Rs. 117.82 Lakhs {Previ::,us year Rs. 369.86 Lakhs) incurred for development of new Mine area from which ore has not been vet extracted. 

"I'~ 
~ ~.,i;~ 

- '6';"teaSehold land includes Rs. 1,500 Lakhs for development of new Mine area from which ore has not ~en yet extr.icted. ~ 
\~ 

(Rs. in L,akh•l 

Total 
Grand Total 

72,311 .70 4,80,S21.07 

1,859.66 
57,112.15 57,212.40 

1,466.79 9,126.12 
16,666.35 4,34,294.44 

7,792,99 1,62,997,71 

772 .69 13,826.0l 
50.90 

673.55 3,408.31 
9,U!l.23 1..80,1&1.14 

7,427.12 2,S4,113.30 

16,666.35 4,34,294,44 

4,451.92 
1,242.46 

8.30 2,794,26 
16,674.64 4,40,298.16 
14,729.17 1,42,757.77 

1,945.47 2,97,540.39 

9,239.23 1,80,181.14 
713.08 13,754.34 

1,112.73 
0.36 1,157.73 

9,952.66 1,93,980.48 
8,404. 70 64,118.69 

1,547.96 1,29, 861.79 

397.51 1,67,678,60 



Ult,a Tech Nathdwa,a Cement limited 
(forn,erlv knuwn as Binani Cement I imited) 

Note l'lp.-2a 
lnvenments 

PARTICULARS 

Non 'rrade 
1nvanmen1 In Equity 1l'l11Hof Joint Vemure 

Unquoted 

SO% share c"pital of 8inani Aspire lLC, Oman, {75,000 shares of OMR 1 eadit (rder 
note no. l9(2,2ll(i)J 

TOTAL 

NPt•no. ·2 8 
Loans lNon,CuHtf\t1 

PARTICULARS 

Unse<ured, considered good 
Security Ocposits 

Loan, to others (IQCured) Jrel,tr note no. 4S(l)J 
Lo.ans ro Ochers ,cct:ivable on discharge of corporate guar.ante~ (contractual amount 

Rs. ]SJ.44g 44 lakhs) 

U:ss Pro\ltsion for expec.ted (rcdit loss 

TOTAL 

Note t10. - ) 

01hor Finilnciol As.seti lNon•CUrrtntJ 

PAIITIClJlARS 

Deposit Acooun~ with 8.anks (rem.tining m.>turitv of more than 1]. months.) 

I lien .ag,alnst LC/ Marcin Money etc4J 

TOTAl 

Other non,cuttent ,u~cs 

PARTICULARS 

unse<tittd, .:011sidered good 
Capital Adv<3nces 

less: P,ovis.ion for doubtful recove,., trcfor note no 45(\)} 

Other /\dv.anct-s ('ndudes paymenu m.ade undet prutes.t to statutory au1ho,itlcJ) 

Less: Pruvlsion fo, doubtft.11 re(ove,., (,dcr note no. 4Sttt) 

TOTAL 

lnvtmt·orfes 

PARTICULAR5 

Raw M~tcrial (lndudes. Rs.. 15.51 l.akhs In transit (Previous Ve.tr Fts H S2 Lakhs)) 

P.ack.ing MJted.tl 
Wu1 h. - In· P1 Ul:I ~\) 
~inis.hed Goods 

Stores Qnd SparC?s parts (lnclud4':~ Rs, lJ0.59 Lakhs in transit ~Prt-vious. Vc,ar Rs lB~ 
l.okh,11 • 

ru~I (lndudes Rs. 34,29 Ulkhs tu lransit (Pre\l(ous \'e,r As.. nilH 

TOTAL 

Atat 
l1'1 Marth, 2019 

At~t 

31st Marth. 1019 

1,4U.64 

1.S7.448M 

SB,775Sl 98,672 92 

1.oooss.s& 

Al~t 

Jbt Much 2019 

16 79 

16.79 

A$~t 

Jlst.Mardl, lQl9 

10.594.S ~ 
lO 12S.3-\ 46H9 

511.6/ 

271.67 234 00 

703.19 

Aut 
l!Jt Marth, 2019 

191 ~9 

222 28 
l.26169 
l,007.18 
4,226.66 

~ 304. 71 l4,2L3 41 

14.213.41 

.. 
• Theo ).lores & spares uwentory It net ol pro\lmon fo, d1m1nut1on In value of s.tock. nf Rs. 541A6 Lakhs (Previous. ye,..,r Rs. nil) • 

~ 
Trade recelv1bl:es 

,,·ed. cot1sfde.red good {Include, Rs. 4S9.47 l.o.~hs {11revioui period Rs. niU from 
Companv) 

p>lre<I IUn>l!C\ltod} 
ovMon fo,e,pe<ttd aedlt lo» (!rofor note no. 39111)) 

TOT~l 

61,94:!l.41 
6 •13,4\ 

Aiat 
.3Ut March 2019 

49/,65 

12,028 97 

Sl4.26 

. 

3,184.99 

~,4&.94 
l,!>01.~S 
2,147.62 

S.L20.27 

64$.60 

6l,92l.4& 

nt,92VI~ 

(R,. In l.lkhsl 

•sot 
31st Mar_cb 2.tl.18 

127 24 

127.24 

IRl. In Llkh1) 
Aset 

3htMmh.20lll 

L,70'1.49 

1,704.49 

(R1. In l akhsl 
Au1t 

list Mar<h. 2018 

1/.68 

11.&8 

fRr.in t.akhsl 
Aiit 

31st March 2011 

12,028.97 

~l1.76 

1l.S43.2l 

(Rs. In Lllllisl 

Asat 
3Ut Mauh, 2011 

B,ISS.97 

U ,lSS.97 

Rs. In Llkhs 
Al at 

lHt Maret,, 2018 

22,32S.43 

22.US.43 



Cl1h and cash eq ufvalen u 

PARTICULARS 

8alances wirti Banks 

r.urrent Aocout'lh 662 90 
Oepo~lt Accounts (original maturity of less lhan 3 months) S3 24 

ChC'qUc'S, d,afts on hand 

Cashon hand 

rorAL 

Batik b1la11ces. other than Gash and (Hh e,qurv1tenu 

PARTICl/lARS 

Ocposit Accounts (Lien against LC/ Margin Mof\ey, etc) 6,.~40 96 

Deposit Accounts (temaif\i08 m3turlty or more than 3 months but less than U months) 6.64 
Oividen<I Accounts 

9~1.ance with ~anks • 168.69 

TOrAL 

• e~nk .tccoun~ fre-e-zecJ by Go"t Autho,it1es. the balance of which 1$. nor avallablc- tu the: Company. 

loans (Current) 

PARflCUlARS 

Loirn to othen (Unst,uredJ 

Inter l:orpo,ate Deposits · Credit Impaired 

Less: Provision for e1tpected <redit loss 

1oin, to others tse.curedJ .. Re«ilvablt Of\ discharge of C'Orporate gu1r1nteH 
Considered good 

Credit Impaired toontr3ctu~I an1ounl Ks. 10,63:,.,gs la1chs} 

Less: P,ovl1ion fur c1tpected credit loss. (refe, note no~4S.(1)) 

Sec\lrity Oeposi1$ iunaecured, con1ld1rtd good) 

Othe, Ffnend al Assets (Cum:ntl 

PARTICULARS 

lnter~st Receivable 

Derivative Assets 
Note re<:ejy.ible 

Noteno.-11 
Other current ass.eu 

PARrlCIJLARS 

Othe,r'$ (Ul\se,ured, considertd good, 
8Jl3nce wllh S•atutu,v Authorities 

TOTAL 

TOTAL 

Othe, Advances (includes. .adYan<e tn supplie,s, pre·pald ei<p., ebc.) 

thcr, (Unuicu,cd, con~ldcrcd douinfu1} 
lane:e: with $tQtutory Au-1hQ,ities 
,.; Prov1$lon tor doubtful rcc-o'le:ry ltcfo, nOlc oo. 45(1 U 

rAdviln<O.S (Include\ 1dVolnce101uppllt:r\, pre ·p.,d Mp , e tc.) 

• Provh;ion (or d oubtful ,c,covcry 

TOTAL 

I, l4,SS7.24 

1,14,8S7,24 

/0,633,95 

70,633.95 

1SS.9J 

2,9)).08 

4,825 71 
4,t52S7l 

JJ).67 
333.67 

Aiat 
31n March, 2019 

71614 
0 ,~ 

SA 2 

7l2.JO 

A1at 
ilStMatth zo~ 

6,S16 29 

6Sl.6.29 

Asilt 
llstMarth, lOli 

6,396,84 

6.l96.84 

Astt 
lltt M>rd> 10.19 

3,089.00 

s.llllMO 

AUi 

31st Mart~. 2019 

59.06 

l.~22 /9 

1.581.85 

4,2Sl5 4 
S.OS4. ll5 

1,192.lS 

ss e 
2.82 

149~19 

l,l4,M7 24 

l ,14.SS7 74 

163.18 

1.732-87 

1,235 67 

1,2.JS.67 

(Rs. In IAkhs) 
A$ilt 

31st Mudl, 2018 

9,30S.S9 

3S9.S0 

2S 86 

91l0.9~ 

(RI, in Lakh>) 
Aset 

lbt Morell l018 

1,949.74 

1.'49.74 

(Rs. In lokh1I 
Asat 

nst M•rch. W18 

J04.Sl 

33'.SI 

IRs. ln IAkhs) 
AUi 

31'1 Morch .. 2018 

l,i96.0~ 

l S'J6,0S 

lb. In l•khs 
Asat 

lU.t Matth 2018 

L,S53,68 

14,8J2.86 

16.386.54 



£-ouil\! Shere C.nl111 (Rs. In t.akhsl 

PARTICULARS AHt ~Ht 
31,1 l\llmh 2019 )1st M1t<.h, 201JI 

Autl\orh,ed 

4,000,000,000 Equity ~har~s (Previous Vear llll,899,600) of Rs. 10/ c-ach 4,00,000,00 30,389 96 

200,00U,OOO Vreference Shares. tPrevious. Year 12,000,000) of Rs, 100/- each ].,00,000.00 11..000.00 

TOTAL 6.U0.000.00 42..389.96 

1.m,ed, Subs.ctlbed and Piid up 

3,400,000,000 (P,~vtolJs Yea, 188,601,274) fquity Share'S of Rs. 10/ each fullv paid-up ),-10,000.00 lS,860,B 

Add: Amount paid up on forf1;:ited Shares 0 .2s 

TOTAL M0.000.00 18 800.38 

Equity Sllarel: 

t~ 3,400,000,000 · 100% (Previou'S Vear 185.649,464 • 92$43%1 Equity S.hares of ~r. lO/· e3ch fully paid-up held by the Holding Company Ult,arech Cement limited 
(Previou'S Period 8inani Industries llmltt>d and its nominees) w.e f. JO Noveml>er 2018 

2J Rt>cont.:IUation of number of sharer. outst3ndlng at the beginning and at 11\e end of the year 

Pant,ulus No. of&Jt11u 
""· '· l;l~h$1 No. of shares IAS.ff1Ulch$' 

01Jl'Standing al the beginning of the yeor 18;3',0l,274 18.860.H 18,86,01,274 Ul,860.13 
le'SS: Shares cancelled during tht' ye.a, (Hefe, note no. 3) 13,86.01,274 18,860.11 
Add: Sh~re:s lnued during the year (Refer note no. 4) 1.so.co,00,000 l,S0,000,00 
Add: Sh.tres cunverted durinR the vt-ar (Refer t'IOte no. !>I 0000 00.000 I 9QMl\.()G 

OuU.tar1dl~.t at the end of the vear 3.40.00 00 000 3 40000.00 18 860l.Z74 18 860.13 

3} Tht- Appro't'cd Resolution Pl.an (A.RP) provided fo, canocjlation of the 'Shate'S tield by the eti,tV'lhllc shareholders, the face VAiue of the shares cance!ted during the ve~r 
h.as been adju'Sted againn me debit bal~ncc ol ,elained earnings.. 

4) At per resolution plan the Companyh.as i'Ss.ued 1,500,000,000 equit't' shares of Rs. 10 each to IJltr.1Tech Cement Limited on November 10, :>Ot& 
S) As pet lht> resolution plan the Cnmp;iny h~s. issued 1~0,000,000 S,S.% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Sh.are'S of Rs. 100 e3ch to Ullralech Cement Limited on 
November 20, 2018. 

A'S per the boar<! resolution d..itcd lanuary 18, 2019 .and preference sharcholden res0Ju1ion dated January 25, 2019. the terms of \9(),000,000 8.S% «;1.1mulatiye 
RecleemJble P,elercncc Shares of Rs. 100 e.ac.h were ameodcd as foSlows: 

(0 190,000.000 8 .S% Cumulative Reclt-em3ble Preference Share'S of R'S, 100 e.;ic.h, sh.111 bt> converted to l!J0,000,000 0% Non-c.umulat,v~ fully Convertible Prefere,u;e 5h;ues 
or Rs 100 P:.ach 

(iO As per tht" resofutlon p.as.1ed by the Bo.ard of Oitectors of lhc (ompanv on M.arch 20, }019, the 190,000,000 full convertible preferen(e ~h.lres of As 100 each converted 
lntc, 1,900,000,000 equity sh.ares of Rs. 10 e~ch. 
6) Termi, / R.lghb :atlached to equitv share:t 

The Comp.anv ti.as only one class of equity shares having .a par vaJut- of As. tu pc-r share. Each holder of equHy s.har~i IS t:ntitled to one vote per 'Sh.are, 

rn tl\e ewl'II of llqlJid.,tion of the Comp.any, the holders of t'quitv shares will be entitled to receive rc-maining a'SSels of lhe Comp;liny, after distribution of preferential 
.)m()unts rhe distribution will be ;n prop()nfon lo the number of equity sh>re~ held by lhc shareholders. 

~ 
Other £ ult 

PARTICUIAI\S 

A'S per I a~t Aalance Sht-et 

Add/ lt-n: T,ansfcr f,om / (to} Staternent of Profit and Lon 

Get1e,al ReH·rve 

At per Last Balance Sheet 

Add: Tranu4:tion cost towards i'Ssue or equity sh.a,es. 

Add: fntt>rest W.tlver on preference 'ShAres by the JloldJnt Company 

As per Last Balaf\c~ Stie&I 
Le$1o: ~nre1gn suos101aries reeca.u111co .;s ru,)lc.J tor !=>alE1 

B1lar1ce '" P,ofit & loss A((ount 

Ai, per lasl Balance Sheet 3'5 on 19.11. 2018 
Trande,red from St;11tement of Profit and Los'S - ContinuinR Ope:r.ltions. 
Orher c.omprt-heMl't'c fn<ume fo, the period 
A<ld; Aajus.1men1 in Non-oonlrofling in1eres1 due 10 cnat'l9& in shflrehol<fing paltern (rclor 
note 1 below) 

CAnceJlation of t'QUfty & preference 'Sha,e'S trtfer note no. 12t3~) 
Less: Foreign subsioiaries reclassified &$ held for sale 

EQufty tomponent of Campound fr'ISttume-nt (Non-cumuletlve Prt2-fet•n~ Sha,es) 

Jub$idi:tri~!o reclas'Sifiect as held for sale 

TOTAL 

1,450.00 

7,843.00 

(150.00) 

2,~20 27 

1,184 ss 
1,1845 5 

(3,18,616.3 71 

(l,29,SS2.S41 

196/ 

23,318 94 

601,29 

4,586 73 

(991.91) 

3 ~93.82 

Ht 

un l\llorch. 201JI 

1,4SO 00 

L0,613.n 

!4,76,221021 

4,64.1S7.7S 

1.AS0.00 

7,84::t.oo 

l,077 18 

107.36 

~.967.90 
(3,87,469 57) 

94.21 

(l,208%1 

(92 99) 

-'1,639.63 

<10.09 

Rs. In l>~h$ 
A$at 

Jlst Martb. 201.8 

1,450 00 

7,843,00 

1.18'1 ss 

t],7R,616 J7) 

3,518 ss 

4,Sl\6 73 

l.60.0IJ5 4 



NOtfS; 

(1) In respect of one of the step duwn subs;diary. ShandonR Bin.ani Rongo11 U:ment Co Ltd, during the ye::tr, t(rishn~ Holdings Pte limited (a Subsidiary oomp~nvJ had 
transfe,red 1,12S,OOO shares (.2.5% of total share capit;,1) to non·OOt'llrullit1g interest at par Yalue of CNY 1 ea,:h, Consequent to the transfer, 1he proportiori.ite .amou11t or 

retained eau'llngs and Foreign currency tr1ns!Ation rese1\les had been added to Non.,controlling li'ltt-rest and reduced from retained eAmings .ind ro,elgu curre11cy 
tran,1:itlon reserves balance of l't'!e Como~ny 

Nat<Ate and p11rpose or rcHerves: 

UJ Ca,iUal Rtdtmption Re-serve· The Company has ,ecognised Capit~I Rfl:demi,tion Reserve on buybad: of equitv shares from i~ relc1incd e.arnings the amount in C..~tal 
Redemption Rfl:SeNe is equal tu numlnal amount of the equity st1,res bought back. 

(2) Capital Rtterve · This caJ)ital ,eset\1e is generated out of the ACq1.1isition of .i stt:p down subsidiary ie ShandOl'lt Rin;:mi Rongon Cement Company Limited, 

U) Gen1ral RtstNe • The Company h::ts tr~nsferrt-d a po1tion of the net profit of ttle Com9.any before dccla,ing dividend to gener~I reserve purwant to the tl'lrlie:r 
fJtovfsfons. of Compani~t l\<=t 19S6. ll .also Includes I.Jie interesl accrued amounting to Rs 292(1 2/ t..akhs on the 1~0,000,000 .Q,5,% C.:1.tmulallve Kcdcemable Prcr~rcf'l(C! 
Share, of Rs. 100 each W3S wal\led by the shareholders, 

(4) f'o,eign Currency Traru.latlon RUtNe - E•change dlrfcrei'lces reia1ing to the translation or the re,ulls and nt-t ~ssets of the Group's fo,eign operations from thefr 
run<tfoNI currcn<ies to the Group's present.iition <Um::ncv H.e4 R'S.) are aorumuJated in foreig11 curr~ncy translation reserve. 

IS) Equity oompone'1t of Compound Instrument (Non-cutn1,Jlalfvt Pttferenn ShuuJ · Equity component of Compound lnstru,nt-nt reprcsenls difference between 
(Onsfdci,,.iron re,eived and falr value of li.abilitv,net off in<.0me t.iix effect. on inllfctl racognition of Compound ln:strument. 

Note no.· 14 
80,rowlnu tNon-Cum1ncl 

PARflCULARS 

Term LOans (A~,t~r sub-t10te no.1 fl 2J 
from Bank 

Secured 

Financial lnsliturions 

Sewred 
Unsecured 

less: C1.1rrent M.iturltlts of long term Debts (refer nole no. 19) 

Other unsf<"ttd loJn$ (lteitr iub·note na. 3) 

6,002,000 0 Ill% Non·cumul.ilive redeemable Preference Sliares of Rs. 100/· each foliy 
p3id·UJ) • 

TOTAL 

IWn; 

ASitt 

31st Mitt~ 2019 

2,69,963,10 

(6h00) 

2,69. 284.10 

1,99,884.50 

8,500.00 

l"'-l•Lakh>I 
A$ill 

31st Man:~. 2018 

S9,0S5.4b 

2,08,311'150 

(2.94,867.371 

873.]) 

3,44S.72 

(1) Secured by first mortg~ge ctnd charge on all the immovable properties prest-nt and future, first charie by w~y of hypothccation on all mo'lable assefS pre~eot 011d 
futur·i,, 

Lu.an from HOf'C Bank limited i:( Rep~yJble in 76 quct1h.:rlv installment beginning febr11,uv 2020: 1 Yr moratorium, Vear 2: t %, Ve::t, 3 ro 5': 3% per 'yc4fr, Year 6 & 7: '1~ per 

'f(?ar, Vear 8: 4.5%, Yt:.ir 9 & 10: S%s,~r ye.ar, Yea, 11: S..5%, Vear 1;>: 6%, YeM]) & 14: 6.~%per year, Year ts to 19: 7%per ye.ar, Year 20:8%, 
lotert>st Rate: HOFC 8anlt 3 month MCLR -1 spread of 15 bps. 

{2J The liabilities of fin::tnci;)I creditor~ alung wtth interest wherever appliub1e havt" been fully dis<harged as per ARP Anc1 all the mon.ag.age, charge, hypolheticat:ion and 
pledge ovei all 3s~e~. sh.arcs has been released, 

(3) 0.01% Non-(umulitive redeem11>!1 P,eference Shares : 

ti) 6,00l.000 (Previous ye.ar 6,002,000J O 01% fllon-cumubtive redet>mable Preference Shares o( Rs \00/- e,ch fully .:,aid-up held by Binani Industries t imited, 

(UJ 6,002,000 - 0,01% Nnn-OJmul~tive Redeemable t,1,ererence Shares of Rs 100 e:>ch, ru11.,. paid up, have been issued and allotted, for ca~h at t,1.ar, to 8inani lnd,atrioi 
UmJtcd in me fiMncktl Year 2Ul4 l~. 

I run H.e<on<iliation of number of ihan,soomi1"din1 at tho bf:o.mnfnw. and ,1t lht, end of the yrar 
Na. of shatt$ 

Outr.t.,nc1llle at lhe beeinnine of the ve.ar 
l\dd : ls~uM. Suhs.c,ib~d arid f'aid uo durine the vear 
Less: Cancelled .is per Approved Re-sutuUon Plan 

I .......... .-.-.Jt- ·--•'" _ ..... ._ 

(iv) Terms/ Rights attached to prelerenGt" ,-hares 

Holder of the Stiare, shJII be entitled to dividend~ O 01% per _.nnum from the datt> of allotment. 

60,02.000 

60,Q7/V"1 

IRs. in Lakhsl .. 
6 001,00 

6,002.00 

No. of sharQ-S (Rt, in La~h$J •• 

&O OJOno 6 OOMO 

lVln It n,n-, M 

The pret~rence ,;hctres are non-participatin,t ::tnd r.auy 3 prete,entl.,11lght vis,il-vi'S £quitv Shares 'll the Co111pany, with respect to p.a•,ment of dividend and repayinc111 In 
c;,ise of a winding upor repayment of capital ancJ sh.;,11 cauy voling rights asper u,e provisions c,f Set.lion 47(2)of the Compa11ies A(:1. 2013. 

l"he preference $hares a,e Rcdct:mable for c~sh at par, at me end of lO yeJr fro1n the date of aUotment witti .in option to the Company to redeem any time eaflie, • 

.. Represents ;imortised oost of 1he preference shares 
•• Represents bee v~lue of prefert-noe shares. 

Other Fln11nc.lal lii1bditles fNon-CunenO 

l'ARrtCUUIRS 

Trade Oeposits (Ref~, no1e no. 41~ 

TOTAL 

Not•no. • 16 
Provliions Non•Cutrtnt 

PARTIC\JLARS 

FOf' Gr;1tul~y (Reifer note no, 43) 

or La ave Enc:ilt'imcnt (Rofor no1cr no. 43) 
01hur lte-UrtimeMQbUgonJons 
Mu\{!i R.@l.to,ration 

TOTAL 

PARTICULARS 

Opening Salance 
Add: Provision during the ye.ar 

Add: Unwi11din9 of discount on Mine Restoration Prov;sion 

Closing 8t1lance 

281.5\ 

4 Z4 .40 

As it 
l .lstMlt<ll 2.01!I 

Atilt 

31.>t ll,1,r(b W.19 

705,91 

70S.'1 

AsJt 
31st Marc 2£119 

39>.96 
)1.44 

Jl9.>I 

259.42 

401.27 

(Rs. in lakhl) 
AS it 

31st Morch 2018 

3,744.57 

3 744.Sl 

Rs.. in U kh1 
Ut 

31st March. 2018 

990.26 

990.lJ', 

Rs. In ukh> 
AUi 

J!St MJrch. 2.018 



Bortowfn.•1 fO:urf:ntl (R>. In Llkh1I 

PARTIQJUIRS AJU AUt 
ll.tt_M.Uc~ mu 31st March 201& 

loins itpayable on dtm1'1d 

From Banks (Rete, f\Ole no~ 14(2)) 

Secure<I (indUdC's ovt-rdraft Hs~nil tPrevious Year Rs. 2792.01 Lakhi)l )5,62182 

from rt-lated party 

Unse<ured 1,79,975 00 

F,omOtht-rs 

Unscc.:urcd 2,6~066 

Other toani hom fin1nclal ln!tltutlon (Rtfer note t10. 14.(ZJ) 

$ecured 339 73 
Ur.secured 4.348.l.~ 4,68812 

TOTAL l,79,97S.OO lU00,60 

Notu: 
11 The sc.:cured loan from banlc!i. ,epay-'ble on <lem~md is as Lmdc-r-

.Se<uritv Clause 
AHi AJlt 

3bit Mar<_h , 2019 llSt Ma,(h 2011 
Ultratech Nathdwat3 Cement Limited Not<! no. \4/21 2,792 01 
Oln~ni Cemt'nl fadory UC Note no. 11f2l :>,3:>3 64 
Shandong Binani RonR'.an Cemenl Comp,rnv Ltd. Noleno 170) U 476.17 

25 621.&2 

(2) 81nk facllille~ a,e secured by charge oyer stock, plant and m~thlnery (production line no. 3) and recelvable\. These lacililies. are furttler secured by assignment of 
IMUrin<c policies <overing sto<b and pl~nt and m~chiue,y, li\.!n over margin depo:(its and subordlt1.itlun of long term loan. 

(l) the Loan is seoored by clinker produ(lion lines 1 ~fld .2 equipment, fand and '1lining rights. The l~fm loan ,epaymen• is s<hedul~d from 20.09 2UUS lo 12 lO 2020, 

Trade o,1vabte1 

PARrlCULARS 

Crt-ditoa for trade and other elCpenses (fnclu<lei Rs. 17.21 Lakhs (l'rC'vious Year Rs. nil) 
f,om Holding CompanvU 

TOTAL 

Other f in1nci1l ll1bilitit1 (0..uenl) 

PARflCUUIRS 

Current maturities of long term debt (Rc..•fcr note no. 14) 
OeriYative li<lbilitv 
lntere-.:t accrued but not due on borrnwif'l..g!i. 

rnterest a<erued and dut- on borrowl,,gs/ olht-rs 

I iability for (()rporate/ bank: guarantee (Refer note no. 45(1)) 

u,,pald dividends 

TOTAL 

Other current llabllUfos 

PARTICULAAS 

Creditors for <.apilal prc,Je<.ls 

St,Uutor~ OLJes l'ayable 

Advan<e from customer:( {rnc:ludes Rs. S,SOU Lakhs (P,evious Period Rs.. nil) r,om 

I lulJ,11g_ Cvt111>JI 1~) 

fo, employee be11eflu 
Gr.ahtlty (Refo, note: no. 43) 

TOTAL 

tc:."e EnrushJJ:'ont (Rt-.fornou, no. i13) 

TOTAL 

&7S 00 

IS 28 
3,15~.21 

4,Sll.J6 

6,757.20 
8,7G8.36 

35Jl2 

AJlt 

31U Mardl 2019 

J.4S6470 

7,456.70 

Alitl 

lbt March 2019 

3,11,740.86 

148 20 
L,4/,2~2.13 

66,690 86 

8.357.85 2.80 

8.3S7.8S 

Asilt 
!lttM.,c:J, 2D1S 

56 16 
29,102 69 

15,52S 56 L0.2~~.89 

1S S2S.S6 

As at 
31:it Mardi. 2019 

17(i. 78 

35 02 1----~29~.3~1; 

3$.0Z 

(R>. In Lalilal 
Atat 

31.U Mltch 2018 

79,252 01 

7',2SL02 

(R<. In L>khll 
As~t 

31.sLMarch, 2018 

S,2S,ij348:> 

S,?SB1US 

{RJ, In Ltkhsl 
As1t 

31st Muell, 2018 

39.,157 74 

39 457.74 

.lb. in 1.tkhs 

Asat 

JU1 Matth., 20lJI 

206 09 

20&.09 



UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Limited 
(formerly known as Binani Cement Limited) 

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019 

Note no. 22A 

Revenue from operations 

PARTICULARS 

Sale of Products 
Cement 

Clinker 

GGBFS 

Other operating revenues . scrap sales 

Note no.22B 

Other Income 

PARTICULARS 

Exchange Gain (net) 

TOTAL 

Fair Value movement in Forward Contracts 
Interest Income 
Profit on Sales of Investment (Current) 

Provision no longer required written back 

Other Miscellaneous Income 

TOTAL 

Note no. 23 
Cost of materials consumed 

PARTICULARS 

Opening Stock 

Add : Purchases 

Less : Closing Stock 

Less: Reclassified to assets held for sale (refer note no. 46) 

TOTAL 

Note no. 24 

31st March, 2019 

1,15,371.16 

1,134.82 

252.15 

1,16,758.13 

31st March, 2019 

1,084.96 

2,917.80 
S48.24 

1,315.66 

137.71 

6,004.37 

31st March, 2019 

3,184.99 

18,939.58 

191.49 

2,857.92 

19,075.16 

Changes In inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade 

PARTICULARS 

(Increase)/ Decrease in Work-in-Process 

Opening Stock 

Add/ (less) : Exchange rate fluctuation on account of average rate 

I Decrease in Finished Stocks 

tock 

) : Exchange rate fluctuation on account of average rate 

d to currency translation reserve 

losing Stock 

-....:~-,-:,;:::r;~s ; Reclassified to assets held for sale (refer note no. 46) 

TOTAL 

31st March, 2019 

1,514.60 

3,261.09 

434.50 

(2,180.99) 

2,133.88 

1,007.18 

836.29 

290.41 

(1,890.58) 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

31st March, 2018 

1,07,578.45 

30,938.83 

21,128.56 

347.51 

1,59,993.35 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

31st March, 2018 

. 
-

366.84 
. 

638.00 

607.3S 

1,612.19 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

31st March, 2018 

4,807.08 

38,655.44 

3,184.99 

-
40,277.53 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

31st March, 2018 

912.78 

(10.92) 

1,514.60 

(612.73) 

1,394.19 

(28.79) 

2,133.88 

(768.49) 

(1,381.22) 



Note no. 25 
Employee benefit expense 

PARTICULARS 

Salaries and Wages 
Contribution to Provident and other Funds 

Gratuity Expenses 

Workmen and Staff Welfare Expenses 

Note no. 26 
Finance Costs 

PARTICULARS 

Interest expenses 

Unwinding of discount 

shares 

TOTAL 

on 0.01% Non-cumulative preference 

Interest on 8.5% cumulative redeemable Preference Shares 

Unwinding of discount on Mine Restoration Provision 

Other borrowing costs 

TOTAL 

Note no.27 A 
Freight and Forwarding Expenses 

PARTICULARS 

On Finished Products 

On Clinker Transfer 

Note no. 27 B 
Other expenses 

PARTICULARS 

Packing Materials 

TOTAL 

Consumption of Stores and Spares 

ncpoir3 ond Maintenance 

Buildings 

Plant and Machinery 

Others 

Other Operating Expenses 

Rent 

Insurance 

Rates and Taxes 

Exchange Fluctuation (net) 

Advertisement and Sales Promotion 

Directors Fee 
Assets/ pre-operative expenses written off 

Provision for doubtful debts/ Receivables 

TOTAL 

(Rs. In lakhs) 

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 

4,274.45 7,597.96 
293.85 297.90 
123.74 137.13 
284.19 1,076.51 

4,976.23 9,109.50 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 

43,243.07 S0,300.13 
66.88 93.55 

2,920.27 . 

31.44 . 
12.34 391.95 

46,274.00 50,785.63 

(Rs in lakhs) 

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 

17,880.49 16,898.81 
2,241.22 1,442.32 

20,121.71 18,341.13 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

3ht March, 2019 31st March, 2018 

5,325.82 3,547.87 
4,176.SS 2,814.37 

99.58 68.72 
623.67 1,390.52 

1,221.08 1,024.55 
3,173.24 2,095.27 

192.88 515.14 
187.03 261.38 
333.36 554.67 

45.98 
16.12 230.36 

3.34 
2,459.30 8.293.68 

117.28 60,049.47 
736.02 692.95 

9,298.00 
3.60 1.53 

5.091.11 6,442.89 

23,756.63 97,330.68 



ULTRATECH NATHDWAAA CEMENT UMITEO 
(FORMERtY KNOWN AS llll'IANI Cl:MtNI UMtrEO) 

NOUS TO CO/fSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS fOA THE YEAfl ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

28 ta, C.OMP4NY OVERVIEW 

UltraTech Nathdwara Cement limited (the Holding Company) is a Public Limited Company Incorporated 1n India having its registered office at Kolkata, India. The Holding Comp,,ny and 
its subsidiaries are engaged In tile manufacturing and sellin9 of Cement and Cement related products. The Holding Company, its subsidiaries, and joint venture together referred as 
"the Company" or ·ttie Group". 

The name of the Comoanv has beeo chan9ed to 'UlttaTech Nathdwara Cement limited' (UNCL) from 'Binani Cement Limited' w.e.f. 13th December, 2018. 

(B) IMPACT OF APPROVED PESOLUTION PLAN (ARP) BY NCLAT 

Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) has been completed vide National Compirny L.aw Appellate (NCLAT) order dated Hlh November 2018. The Resolution plan submitted 
by one of the applicants UltraTech Cement Limited (UTCL) has been approved by NCI.AT. Subsequent to NCLAT order, Board of Olrectors (Board) of the Company has been 
reconstituted on 20th Novffllber 2018. Toe reconstituted Board In Its meeting held on 20 Novffllber 201B, has approved allotment of Rs. 150,000 takhs Equity shares of Rs, 10/· each 
fully paid and Rs, 190,000 Lakhs 8.5% OJmulative Redeemable Preference shares or Rs. 100 each fully paid to IITCL and Company become 100% subsidiary or UTCt with effect from 
that date. Subsequently, tllese preference shares have been converted into fully paid equity shares of Rs. 10/· each. 

29 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNnNG POLICIES 

l BASIS OF PREPARAnON, MEASUREMENT ANO SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
The principal accounting policies applied in the prep.oration of these standalone financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all tile 
years presented, unless otllerwise stated. 

1.1 Basis of Preparation 

(a) Compliance with Indian Accounting Standards 
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in acoordance with Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind ASi no~fied under the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant provisions of the Comp,,nies Act, 2013 ("tile Act"). 

(b) Principle ofCon50lidation illnd fquitv accounting 
The financial statements of tl1e Company and Its subsidiary companies are consolidated on a line-by-line Item basis by adding together the book values of like items of assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses, after fully eliminating intra-group balances and intra-group transactlons In accordance with Ind AS 110 · 'Consolidated Financial Statements". 

Interest in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity metllod after initially being recognised at cost in consolidated balance sheet. Under the equity method of 
accounting, the Investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted therearter to recognise the group's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in 
profit and loss, and tile group's share of otl1er comprehensive income of the investee In otller comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable from associates and joint 
ventures are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount or ttle investment. When the group's share of lo=s in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its 
interest In the entity, including any other unsecured long•term receivables, the group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on 
behalf of the other entity. Unrealised gains on transactions between 111e group and its jOint ventures are eliminated to the extent or the group's Interest In these entities. 
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless tile transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have 
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the group. The carrying amount of equity accounted Investments are tested for impainnent. 

In case of financial statements of an non-integral foreign operation, the asse~ and liabilities are translated at the closing rate. Income and e,pense items are !Tanslated at 
exct>aoge rates at an average rates and all resulllng exchange differences are accumulated in a foreign currency translation reserve on COnS()lidation until the disposal of the 
net investment. 

Non-controlling interests in tl1e results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately are shown separately in tile conS()lidated statement of profit and loss, statement of 
changes in equity and balance sheet respectively. 

Non-controlling interest's share or net assets of consolidated subsidiaries iS identiffed and presented in the consolidated financial Statement separate from liabilities and the 
equity of the group's shareholders. 

(c) Current and non•currentctasslftcatlon 
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the company's normal operating cycle (twelve months} and other criteria set out In Ille Schedule 
III to the Act. 

ldl The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for employee's Defined aene~t Plan as per act\lanal valuation. 

(e) The nnanclal statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is tile Functional currency of the Company and the C\lrrency of the primary economic environment in which 111e 
Company operates. 

(f) Rounding of amounts 
The financial st.!tements are presented io INR. which is also the Companv's functional curreocy and all ;,mounts are rounded to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise stated. 

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNnNG POLICIES 

Toe financial stat.!ments have been prepared using the sigomcant ae<:ounting policies and measurement basis summarised below. These were used throughout all periods 
presented in the financial statements. 

2.1 foreign c11rrencv tr.ar1sl~tion 

a) fQrl:iAn ~ · The assets and liabilities or Foreign operations Including goodwill are translated into INR, the runctional currency of the Company, at the exchange rates 
at the reportino d~re. TM inr.001e and expen~s of forP.ion onP.tAliOns AN' tr~nslMPrl iMn lllR ~t t~P pvr~•noP r,,itPs ~t t~p f!AtPs r,f rhP rrAns~ttinns or ~n a•eraoe rate if thP. 
average rate approximates the ar:tllal rate at the date of the transaction. hchange differences are recognized in OCI and accumulated equity (as exchange differences on 
translating the financial statements of a foreign operation), except to the e,tent that the exchange dilferences are allocated to NCI. 
When a foreign operation is disposed of In Its entirety or partially such t~at control, significant innuence or joint control Is lost, the cumulative amount of exchange differences 
related to that foreign operation rei:ognlzed in OCI iS reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal. If the Group disposes of part of its 
interest in a subsfdlarv but retains control, then the relevant proportion of the cumulabve amount is re-allocated to NCI. When the Group disposes of only a part of its ioterest 
in an associate or a joint venture while retaining significant influence or joint oontrol, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reclassmed to Statement or Profit and 
Inc;~. 

b) lllilii1 recggnition · Foreign currency transactions are recorded in tl1e functional currenc.y, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the 
functional currency and the fo,einn currency at the date of the transaction. 

C,mversjgn · Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated us,ng the exc~an9e rate preva1hng at ttle reporting date. Non-monetary Items, which are measured in temis of 
lstorlcal cost denominated in a foreign currency, are repo,ttd using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction and non-monetary Items which are carried at fair value 

lnated in a Foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates tllat existed when tile values were determ,ned. 

diffe«:as;e:& · Exchange dilferences arising on tile settlement of monetary items or on reporting such monetary items of Company at rates different from those at 
lch they were initially recorded during the year, or reported In previous financial statements, are recognised as income or as expenses In the year in which they arise. The 



2,2 Fair Value Measurement 

Fair value is the p,ice that would be recelYed to sell an asset or c,a1d to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market partlclpants at the measurement date. The 
l\,ir value measull!lllent is based on lhe presumplion that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

• In the principal market for the asset or liability Or 
• In the absence of a P1i11cipal market, in the most advantageous marlcet for the asset or liability 

The Company must be able to access the principal or the most advantageous marl<.et at the measurement date. 
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use wheo pricing the asset or liability, assuming ttrat marl<.et 
participants act In their economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's abllll:Y to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use 
or by selling It to another market p;srticipant tlrat would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

ll!e Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstance5 and for whicll sufficient data are available to measure fair valve, maximising the use of 
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs significant to the fair value mea.urement as a whole: 

Level I - Quoted (unadjusted) market p11ces In active marlcets for identical assets or liabilities 
Level 2 - Valuation te<:hniques for which tire lowest level input tllat is significant to the fair value measurement iS directlv or indirectly observable 
level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level ingut tl1at iS significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the oomp.ny determines whether transfers have occurred between levels In the 
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation {based on the lowest level Input that IS significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 
Valuation process and assumption used to measure the rair value or Assets and Liabilities is disclosed. 

2,J Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are lnlllally recognize(! at cost, net of r«overab!e taxes and duties, trade discoonts and rebates, less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
of loss, if any. The cost of Tangible Assets comprises of its purchase price, borrowing costs and adjustment arising ror exchange rate variations attributable to tile assets, 
including any cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to their working condition for their intended use. 

E~penditure incurred on assets which are not ready for their intended use comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and attributable borrowing cost (net or revenues 
during constructions) are disclosed under capital Worl<-in-Progress. 

Spare parts are recogni~ as property, plant and equipment {PPE) when they meet the definition of PPE, otherwise, such items are classified as inventory. 

In case of SBRCC, Fixed Ai.sets lndude assets related to the operation of the Company having useful life over one year. Fixed assets also Include eQulp,nent other than 111e 
main production equipment with Individual values of over RMB 5,000 equivalent to Rs. 51.473/· and useful lives in excess of 2 years. 

Depreciation/ Amortisation: 

The Company depreciatES ii$ p~rty, plant and equipment (including assets constructed on land not owned by the Company) over the useful life in the manner prescribed in 
Schedule 11 to the Act or as per t«hnic;,I assessment. Buildings &. Roads inside plant are treated as Factory Bulld1ngs and depreciation iS charged accordingly. 

Estimated usoeful lives, residual values and depreciation methoos are reviewed at each balance sheet dale, taking into account commercial and te<:hnological obsolescence as 
well as normal wear and tear and adjusted prospectively, If appropriate. 

Lease hold land is amortized on a straight line basis over the lease peri()d. 

Mobile phones are charged to revenue considering their useful life to be less than one year. 

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to Its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated reooverab(e amount. Gains and 
losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are included in statement of profit and loss. 

In case of certain classes of PPE, the Company uses different useful lives than those prescribed in Schedule ll to the Act. The useful lives t>ave been assessed based on 
technical advice, taking Into account the nature of the PPE and the estimated usage of the asset on the basis of management's best estimation of obtaining economic benefits 
from those classies of assets. 

Such classes of assets and their estimated useful lives/ basis of amortisation are as under: 

Sr. No. Nature Useful Ure l Basis or amortisation 
l Bulld,no 3-60 Years 
2 Plant a Machinery ll·JOYears 
3 Leasehold Land Over the lease aoreement 
4 Office EQuioment 4-7 Years 
5 Furniture & Fl,tures 4·7Years 
6 Company Vehicle 5 Years 
7 Servers and Networks 3 Years 
8 Stores and Spares in tile nature of PP£ 2-30 Years 
9 Assets lndivlduallv costioo less than or eoual to Rs. 10000 Fullv n...,reclated m the vear of_purchase 

In c.ise of SBRCC, PT Anggana Energy ReS(lurces and subsidiaries of Binani Cement Factory llC (BCfllC), the depreciation on fixed assets and inbmgible assets is provided for 
on SLM basis over the estimated useful life at rates permissible under applicable local laws. 

In case or BCFLlC, cost of each assets is depreciated over the estimated useful lives on straight line basis except In respect of Plant and Machinery (Main) where tile methoo of 
depreciation Is unit of production method, 

2,4 Intangible assets 

Intangible assets acouired are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. 

Expenditure Incurred on acQuiSiliOn of intangible assets which are not ready to use at lhe reporting date Is dlsclosed under "intangible assets under develogment ". 

Amortization is charged on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives. llre estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each annual 
reporting period, with the effect of any chanqes lo the estimate beinq accounted for on a orcsDective basi&. 

Computer soltware Is amortised over an estimated useful life of 5 years. 
The total expenditure on mine exploration and development is amortized in 1ne ratio of ore extracted to the total e,cploitable reserves. 

2,5 Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs Include costs that are anCillary and rei)uired 3S per the tenms or agreement. Borrowing cos.ts that are attributable IO the acquisition or construction of Qualifying 
assets are capitalised as part of the cost of such assets. A Qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for ils intended use. All other 
borrowing costs are charged to the Statement or Profit and loss in the period in which they are Incurred. 

2.6 Impairment of non-financial assets 

Assets that are subject to depreciation or amortisation are reviewed ror impainment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be 
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's or cash gene,ating unit's carrying amount exoeeds its recoverable amount and is reeognised 
in the Statement of Pro~t and Loss. 

tories 

Material, Fuel (except ror coal lying at Port), Packing material5, Stores&. Spares are valued at lower of moving weighted average cost (net of input tax credit) and net 
sable value. Coal lying at Port is valued at lower of cost on specific consignment basis plus custom duty and net realisable value. loose Tools are charged over a period of 

ee years. However, materials held for use In the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which tflev are used and expected 10 
sold at or above cost. 



2,8 Non-current assets held-tor-sale 

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as held for sare if their carrying amount will be reoovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through 
continuing use and a sate is considered highly probable. Non-current assets and disposal group classified as held for sale are measured at lower of tl1elr carrying amount and 
fair value less c0&t to sell. Non-current assets classified as held ror sale are not depreciated or amortised from tl1e date when they are classified as held for sale. 

Non-current assets cli)ssified as held for sale and the assets and liabilities of a dlsposal group classified as held for sale are presented separately from the other assets and 
liabllltles In the Balance Sheet. 

A discontinued operation is a component or the entity that has been disposed of or Is dasslfled as held for sale and that represents a separote major line of business or 
geographlcal area of opef1ltions and is part or a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business or area of operations. 

2.9 Trade Receivable 

Trade <e<:eivables are amounts due from cu!.lomers for sale of goods or services perfonned in the ordinary course of business. Trade re<:elvables are re<:ognized initially at fair 
value. They are subSeQuently measured at amortlsed CO&t using tl1e effective interest method, net of provision for impairment. The car,ytng value less Impairment provision of 
trade receivables, are assumed to be approximate to their ralr values. 

2.10 Cash and cash equivalents 

cash and cash equivalems Include cash at bank and in hand and deposits held at call with banks. For the purpose of the cash Hows statements, cash and cash eQuivalents 
consist of cash and short-term deposits with maturity less than 3 months net of outstanding bank OYerdralts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash 
management. In the balance sheet, bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities. 

2.11 lnvestmenl in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures 

Toe CompanV's Investment in its subsidiaries. associates and Joint Ventu,es are carried at cost net of lmo.alrment losses, if anv. 

2. 12 Financial Inslruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company becomes a party to the controctual prOYisions of the instruments. 

(a) Initial Recognition 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair valve. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or Issue of financial assets and 
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and flnancial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and ancillary costs related to borrowings) are added to or deducted 
from the fair value of tile financial assets or ftnanclal liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transactioo com directly attributable to tile acquisition of financial assets 
or financial liabilities at fair value through proftt or ross a,e amortised OYer the tenor of the financial liability. 

(b) Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Financial A$$8ts 
The Company classi~es financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income ("FVOCI") or Fair Value tllrough Proftt 
or Loss ("FVTPL") on the basis of rollowing: 

• the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and 
• the contractual cash now characteristics of the financial asset. 

Amortised Cost: 
A financial asset shall be classified and measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met: 

• the financial asset is held wltl11n a business model whose Objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash Rows and 
• the contractl/al temls of the ftnanclal asset give rise on specified dates to cash nows that are solely payments of principal and Interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

In case of ftnanclal assets classified and measured at amortised cost, anv interest income, foreign e~change gains or losses and impairment are reco9nised in the Statement of 
ProRt and Loss. 

Fair Value through OCJ: 
A financial asset shall be classified and measured at fair value through OCI if botll of the following conditions are met: 

• the flnanc1al asset iS held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and 
• the contractual tenms of the financial as.5et give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments or principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Fair Value through Prnnt or Loss: 
A financial asset shall be classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it iS measured at amortised cost or at fair value through OCI. 

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured In their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets. 

For financial assets at FVTPL, net gains or losses, including any interest or dividend income, are re<:ognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(c:) Classification and Subsequent Measurement: financial liabilllles 
Financial llabllltles are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or 'other financial liabilities·. 

Financial Liabilities at FVTPL: 
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTl'l when the financial liability is held for trading or is a derivative (except for elfectlve hedge) or are designated upon in~ial 
re<:ognition as Ml'L. 

Gains or Losses, including any interest expense on liabilities held for trading are re<:ognised in the Statement of Profit and I.Qss. 
other Financial Liabilities: 
Other final\tial liabilities (including borrowings and trade and otfler p;iyables) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that rorm an Integral part of the 
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other preroiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the 
amortised cost on initial recognition. 

Interest expense (based on tl1e effective interest method), foreign exc1iange gains and losses, and any gain or loss on dereccgnltlon Is recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss. 
Impairment of financial assets: 
E~perted credit losses are recognized for all financial assets subsequent to initial recognition other than financials asset5 in FVTPL category. For financial assets other than 

t:!Q tratle receivables, as per Ind AS 109, the Company recognises 12 month expected credit losses for all originated or acquired financial assets ,fat the reporting date tile credit 
~Sill C/,4>-, of the financial asset has not increased significantly since its initial r<!<:OQnitlon. The expected credit losses are measured as l1fet1me expected credit losses 1f the credit risk 

ancial asset increases significantly since Its in1t1al recognition. 

~ rllr! pany's trade receivables do not contain slgnlneant fonanc,ng component and as pe, s,mphflecl approach, lo5s allowances on trade receivables are measured us1n9 

2 
r~ matnx at an amount equal to Ille time expected losses ,.e. expected cash shortfall. 
~ 

• T)ll! lrmentlosses and reversals are reoogn,sed in Statement of Prot.t and Loss. 
(\ "' . ( 

~ ~ Crc-r • , ' • ~ 
~ ~ / ~ 



(d) Derecoonltlon of f!nanclal usets and flnanclal liabilities 
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual tights to the cash fiows from tl1e asset expire, or when it transfers the financial a"5et and substantially all tile 
risks and rewards of ownership of ttle asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to 
control Ille transferred asset, Ille Company re009nises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts It 111ay ha•e to pay. II the Company ret.iins 
substantially all the 1lsks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises an associated 
liability for amounts It has to pay. 

On de,ecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset's car,ying amount and the sum of the oonsideration received and receivable and tne cumulative gain or 
loss that had been recognised in OCI and accumulated In equity is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

The Company de-recognises financial liabilrties when and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged. cancelled or have expired. The ditrerence between the canying 
amount of the financial liabilitv de-recoonised and Ille consideraUon paid and payable Is recoonised in the statement of orofit and loss. 

2.13 Fipancial liabilities and equity instr<1mentis: 
• Classilicat<on as debt or equity 
Debt and equity instruments issued by !tie Compaoy are classified as either financial llabllltles or as equity in accordance with the subSt3nce of the contractual arrangements 
and tile definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. 
• Eoull:v Instruments 
An equity instrument is any cootract that evide11ces a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. EQvity iosll\Jments issued by a Company are 
recognised at the proceeds received. 

2,14 Derivative financial instruments: 
TIie company ente,s into denvvtive rinancial instniments mainly foreign exchange forward contracts to manage its exposure to foreign exchane risks. The company does not 
hold derivative rinancial inst,uments for speculative purposes. 

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contrat.:s are entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their rair value at the end of each 
reporting period. Toe resulting gain or loss is recognised In profit and loss immediately. 

2.15 1noome tax 

Income Tax expenses comprise current tax and deferred tax charge or credit. 

Current fax ls measured on the basis of estimated taxable income for the current accounting period in accordance witll the applicable tax ,ates and the provisions of the 
Income-tax Act, 1961 and other applicable tax laws. 

Deferred tax is provided, on all temporary differences at tile reporting date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting 
purposes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when tlley reverse, based on the laws 
that have been enacted or sub<stantively enacted at the reporting date. Tax relating to items n!(09AiSed dir«tfy in eQUity or OCI is n!(ognised in eQUity or OCI and not in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. Miff Credits are in tile form of unused tax credits that are carrieo forward by Ille Company for a specified period of time, hence it is grouped with 
Defer,ed Tax Asset. MAT is recognised as an asset only when and to Ille extent there is (()nvinCing evidence tllat tile Company will pay normal income tax during tile specified 
oeriod. 
Deferred t.>x assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enfor~able right to offset current taX llabllltles and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same 
tax authority, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or tllelr tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously. 

A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that ruture tax.able profits will be a•ailable against which the temporary difference am be utilised. Deferred 
tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that It Is no longer probable. 

In c.,se of foreign subsidiary & step down subsidiary companies Income Tax/ Defe,red Tax have been provided in accordance with laws of oountry in which !tie Company is 
operating. 

2,16 Employee Benefits 

(a) Short-term I long term obligations 
All employee benefits payable wholly wltlun twelve months of rendering the service including performance incentives and compensated absences are classified as snort term 
employee benefits. The undlscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the servlce1. rendered by employees are charged off to the 
Statement of Profit and LOss. The employee bener.15 which are not expected to occur witllin twelve months are classlfled as long term benefits and are rec09nised as liability at 
the net present value. 

(b) Defined (Ontribution pl~n 
Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as provident fund and superannuation are charged off to the Statement of Profit and Loss, during the year In which the 
employee renders the related service. 

(c) Defined benefit plan 
The derined benefit plans of the Company in tile form of retirement benefits include gratuity and leave encashment. Leave encashment is payable to eligible employees who 
have earned teaves, during the employment and / or on separation as per the Company policy. 

The defined benefit obligation Is calculated annually by independent actuaries using tile projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation Is 
determined by dlscounUng the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of government bond and that have te,ms to maturity approximating to the terms of the 
related gratuity and leave encashment liability. 

Remeasurements, compri~lng of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, exduding amounts included in net interest on tile net defined benent llablllty and the 
return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net deflned benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding 
debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not redassified to pront or loss In subsequent periods. 

Net interest is calculated bv applying tile discount rate to the net defined benefit liability ex asset. 

2.17 Provisions and contingent liabilities 

~ • Provi6ions ilre recogni£ed when the Company hac a pra:cnt obligation (lcgol or con;tructivc) oc o ~ult of a p;,~ event and it i$ probable that an outflow of 
resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be reQuired to senle such an obligation. 

If tile effect of the time valve of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash nows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax 
discount rate that renects current marl(et asses.sfTlents of tile time value or money and, whe,e appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Unwinding of the discount is 
recognis,:,:J in the Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. 

Minos llestgratjpn frJll!:l.,ilm - An obligation for restoration, rehabilitation and environmental costs arises when environmental distvrtance is caused by tile development o, 
ongoing extraction from mines. Costs arising from restoration at closure of tile mines and other Site preparation work are provided for based on t'1eir discounted net present 
value, with a cortesponding amount being capitalised at the start of each project. The amount provided for is recognised. as soon as tl1e obligation to incur such costs arises. 
These costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and loss over the life of the operation through the depreciation of tile asset and the unwinding of the discount on the 
provision. The costs are reviewed periodically and are adjusted to refiect known developments which may have an impact on the cost or life of operations. The cost of the 
related asset Is adjusted for changes In the provision due to factors such as updated cost estimates, new disturbance and revisions to discount rates. The adjusted cost of the 
asset is depreciated prospectively over the lives of the assets to which they relate. The unwinding of tile discount is shown as a finance cost in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. 

s against the Company where the possibility of any outflow of ,esources in settlement is remote, are no< disclosed as contingent 11abllltles. 

nue Recognition 

venue is recognized on the basis of approved contracts regarding the transfer of goods or services to a customer ror an amount that refiects the consideration to wh1c.h the 
entity expects to be entitled In exchange for those goods or services. 

a) Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or re~ivable taking into account the amount of discounts, ,olume rebates, outgoin9 taxes on sales. Alty 
amount receivable from the customer and are recognised aller the control of the goods sold are transferred. 

b) Dividend income is ao:ounted for when the riQht to receive the income is established. 

c) Difference between the sale price a11d carrying value or investment is recognised as profit or loss on ( / redemption on investment on trade date of transaction. 

Other Revenue Is recognized as follow: ~ 



I 

fi.!!l!.ru:t ~ - Finance income is recognized as It accrues using the Effective Inte~t Rate (EIR) metllod. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated Mure c:.ish 
payment or receipts cr,,er the e,i:,e,:ted life of the financial instruments or a shorter periOd, where appropriate, to the net cauying amount of the nnanc1a1 asset or liability. 
Finance Income Is Included in other income in the statement of profit &. Loss. 

2.19 leas'!$ 

al As a lesse.1> (Operatln; lease): 
Leilses in which a siQnificant portion or the risks and rewards or owrtership are not transferted to tile Company as lessee are classlfled as operating leases. Payments made 
under operating leases are charged to statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line 
with expecte<;I general inffation to compensate for the Lessor's expected inflationary cost increases. 

bl As a lessor (finance lease) : 
The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease Is l>ilsed on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the tease. The arrangement is, or 
contains, a lease If fulfilme<it of the ar<angement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or asse~ and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, e-,en if 
that ri9ht is not explicitly speci~ed in an arrangement. 

The Company's assessment of whether an ar<angement contains a lease is made at the inception of the arrangement, with reassessment occurring In the event of limited 
changes in circumstances as specified by Appendix C to Ind AS 17 'Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease'. 

In c.ise of finance leases, where assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value of the lease recei1>ts is recognised as a finance lease receivable. 
For a finance lease, each lease receipt Is allocated between the receivable and finance income so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The interest 
element or the lease receipt is recognised 1n statement of profit and loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of 
the ,eceivable ror each period. 

2,20 Segment Reporting 

An oper.iling segment is a component of lhe Company that engages in bvsiness activities from which it may eam revenues and Incur expenses, whose operating results are 
regularly reviewed by the company's chief operating declslOn maker to make decisions for which discrete financial lnfonnatlon is available. Based on the management approach 
as defined in Ind AS 108, the chief operatlng decision maker evaluates the Company's performance and alloc.ates resources based OIi an analysis of various performance 
indicators by business segments and geographic segments. 

2.21 Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit or loss by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding durin9 the year. Earnings considered in 
ascertaining the Company's earnings per share are the net proflt lor the year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year and for all years 
presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, otller than tile conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, 
witllout a corresponding change in resour<:es. For me purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, tile net prom or loss for the ye.ir attributable to equity shareholders 
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during tile year is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential eciuity shares. 

2.22 Cash now statement 

cash Rows are reported using 111e Indirect method, whereby profit before ta• is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and anv deferrals or accruals of past 
or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available information. 

2.23 rnterest In Other Entities 

Subsidiaries / step down subsidiaries and Joint Venture considered for consolidation : 

The nnaneial statements of all Indian Subsidiaries induding Indian Step down subsidiaries and Joint venture are coosolidated on the basis of their stand alone/ consolidated accounts 
available for the yea, ended 31st March, 2019 

The Consolidatecl Financial Statements Include the Rnancial statE>nents of the followino overseas/ Indian subsidiaries and overseas step down subsidiaties: 

owner's interest held bv the Group Ownership interest 
Principal 

Name or company Country of held by Relat.on with 
activities lncorpor<1tion 

31st March 2019 31st March 2018 
non-controlling Holding Companv 

interests 
Krishna Holdings Pte ltd. (KHL) $ Singapore BCl-55.54% BCL-SS.54% Subsidiary of UNCl Investment Holding 

MHL-44.46% MHL-44.46% &. General Wholesale 
Trade 

Muran ttoldings Limited (MUHL) $ British llirg1n 100% 100% . -do- Investment holding 
Islands 

Mukundan Holdings ltd. (MHL) $ Brltlsh Virgin 100% 100% ·do- Investment holding 
Islands 

Swiss Merchandise Infrastructure ltd. India 100% 100% -do- Commercial and 
Industrial 

Merit Plaza Ltd. India 100% 100% . -do- Commercial and 
Industrial 

Binani Readyrnix Concrete Limired (RMC) India 100% 100% -do- Commercial and 
Industrial 

Blnani Energy Private Ltd, India 100% 100% . -do- Commercial and 
Industrial 

Bhum1 Resources ( Singapore ) rn Ltd $ Singapore 100% 100% - -do- Investment Holding 
I\ (;pOf>IJll WhnlP<alP 

Trade including 
Trading in Mines, 

rnn<ullinn 
I'!' Anggana Energy Resources $ Indonesia 100% 100% Step-down Subsldlar'( General Import 

of UNCl (Subsidiary of E•port/ Trading and 
Bhumt Resources Mining Support 
(Singapore) Pte Ltd), Services 

Shandong 6inani Ron9'an Cement Cl>ina 92.5% 95% 7.50% Stepdown Subsidiary Manuracture and 
Company Ltd.(SBRCC) $ of UNCL.(SubSldiary of Sale of concrete 

KHL) admixture (excluding 
Hazardous chemical 
products), Cement, 

' - Cement Products, 

,.,~~~,f) Cement Cllrtker, 

{. 
Mining for llrnestone 

~~ 
products and Electric 

power production 71 r ent Factory LLC. (BCF) $ United Arab MUHL- 51% •• MUHL- 51% •• step-down Subsidiary Manufacturlrtg of 
Emirates MHl- 49% MHL-49% of UNCL (Subsidiary of Cemertt and 

.~/) 
MHl & MUHL) cementitious oroduct ·~ ~~ delink Urnited $ Tanzania 100% 100% step-down Subsidiary Trading of Cement 

it•,terd ~ of Ul'-ICL (Subsidiary of ~---· BCF UCI 
Binaoi Cement Tanz.ania lid. $ Tanzania 100% 100% -do· Tradlr,g of Cement 

Binani Cement (Uganda) ltd • $ Uganda 100% 100% -do- Trading of Cement • 
Under LiQuidation 

Binanl Cement FuJa1rah LlC # $ United Arab BCF LlC - 80% ·do· Cement Project -
Emirates I Work 1n orooress 



i) l!>int Venture: Blnanl Aspire lLC (Joint Venb.Jre between Binani Cement Factory lLC, UAE and Galfar Aspire Readymix LLC, Oman). As per Board Resolution dated 30 May 2016, 
the shareholders or Binanl Aspire LLC have resolved to liquidate the company. As per letter received from the liquidator dared 29 October 2017 Ille liquidation is completed and 
the capital is received on 22.04.2018. 

$ As.sets of foreign subsidiaries classified as held for sale. 
The company iS under liquidation during tile year. •• Beneficial Interest. f The license has been cancelled and tlle Compnay is wound up w.e.f. 17.02.2019. 

J CRmCAl ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 

P<eparing the nnancial statements under Ind AS requites management to take decisions and ITlilke estimates and assumptions that may impact the value or revenues, costs, 
assets and liabilities and the related disclosures concerning the Items Involved as well as oontingent assets and liabilities at the balance she.!t date. Estimates and judgements 
are oontinually evaluated and are based on historical e,,perience and otller ractors, including exp«t.'!tions of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances. 
The Company make estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The 
estimates an<I assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are 
discussed below: 

(a) Impairment of 1nv8'tmer1tsand other ftn~ncial assets 
The recoverable amount or an investment and otller financial assets Is detennlned based on the valuation techniques and involved significant managemenrs assumptions and 
estimates. 

(bl Defined ~enefit obligations 
The present value of the defined benefit obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The 
assumptions used in determining the net cost (inoome) for post employments plans Include the discount rate. Any changes In these assumptions will impact the carrying 
amount of such obli~ations. 

The Company determines the appropriate disoount rate at the end of each year. This is tile interest rate that should be used to determine the present •alue of estimated fuwre 
cash outflows expected to be required to settle the defined benefit obligations. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the Company oonsiders the interest rates of 
government bonds of matvrity approximating the terms or the related plan liability. 

Cc) Income taxes 
There are transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain and would get finalized on completiOn of assessment by t.ix authorities. Where the 
final tax outcome is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact tlle income ta• and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such 
determination is made. 

Deferred tax on temporary differences reversing within tile tax holiday period is measured at tlle tax rates that are expected to apply during the tax holiday period, which is the 
lower tax rate or the nil tax rate. Oererred tax on temporary ditterences reversing after the tax holiday period is measured at the enacted or substantively enacted tax rates 
that are expected to apply alter tile tax holiday period. 

Cd) Provision 
Estimates of the amounts of provisions recognised are based on current legal and oonstructive requirements, technology and price levels. Because actual outflows can differ 
rrom estimates due to changes in laws, regulations, public expectations, technology, prices and conditions, and can take place many years In tlle future, the c.,rrying amounts 
of provisions are regularly re•iewed and adjusted to take account of such changes. 

(e) Mines Restoration Obligation 
In determining the fair value of the Mines Restoration Obligation, assumptions and estimates are made in relatiOn to discount rates, the expected oost of mines restoration and 
tile expected timing of those <0sts. 

(f) Useful Lives of Property, Plant&. fquipment 
The Company uses Its technical etpertlse along with histoncal and indust,y trends for determining the economic lire of an asset/component or an asset. The userul lives are 
reviewed by management periodically an(I reviSEd, if appropriate. In case of a revision, the unamortised depreciable amount is cha1ged over the remaining useful life of the 
assets. In case of certqin mining rights the amortisation is based on the extracted quantity to the total mineral reserve. 

The Judgements tllat have a significant risk of causino a fllilterial adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below: 
al when substantially all the signincant risks and rewards of ownership of rinancial assets and lease assets are transferred to other entities 
ti) whett>er an asset should be classified as held·ror-sale or an operation meets the definition of a discontinued operation 
c) whether multiple assets should be grouped to form a single cash·generating unit (where this would affect whether an impaimient is recognised). 

4 IND AS ISSUED BUT KOT YET EFFECTIVE 

Ind AS 116 - on 30th March 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019, notifying Ind A5116 
"leases", which replaces Ind AS 17 'Leases". The new standard introduces a single on·balance sheet lease accounting model for less€€. This will result in the company 
recognising right of use assets & lease liability in the books. 

The Company is in the pro<:A!ss or analyzing the impact of lndAS 116 on its financials. 

The amendment will come into force from April 01, 2019. 

30 Estimated amounts of coot@cts and commitments cemainTno to be executed and not oro·vld@d tor (net of ;,dvances); 

Particulars 

The estimated amount of contracts and commitments remaining to be executed on capital aC(ount not provided tor 

31 a) CONTINGENT l1A8Il1TY 

Particulars 

Conlincient liabilities not provid0d for:-

al Claims against the Companies not acknowledged as Cebts in respect of various Tax matters: 
Customs 
Excise 
E'ntrv Tax 
Income Tax 
Land Tax 
Value Added Tax (Various States) 
Rajasthan Sates Tax Incentive 

Rs. In Lakhs 

31st March 20l9 31st March 2018 

17,398.48 15,005.96 

(Rs. In Lakhs 

31st March 2019 31st March 2018 

3,146.46 
3,047.10 
1,169.43 
2,997.80 
1,987.50 
2,550.84 

37 948.88 
52,8•18.0Z 

16,732.00 16,732.00 
338.35 

156,745.01 

16,732.00 226,663.38 

7he Company had filed appeals aga,nst the order of the Compet,t,on Comm,ss1on of India ("CCI"} dated August 31, 2016. Upon the National Companv law Tribunal ("NCLAr) 
disallowing Its appeal against tile ca order dated 31/08/2016. aggrieved by the NCLAT order, the company had riled an appeal before the Hon'ble Supreme Court. The Hon't>le 
Supreme Court has, by ,ts order date<l 18/01/2019, granted a stay against the NCLAT order. Consequently, the Company has deposited an amount of Rs. 1673 lakhs equivalent to 
10% of tlle penalty amount. 

Based on the legal opinion t.iken at UltraTech Cement Umited level, Ille Company believes that it has a good case In this matter. Considering the uncertainty relatiny to tlle outcome 
of tllis matter, no provision has been oonsidered in the books or accounts. 



31(b} llle Hoo'ble SUp,eme Court of India ("SC") by tl1eir order dated February 28, 2019, in the case of Surya Roshani Limited&. ott\ers v/s EPFO, set out the principles based on which 
allowances paid to tfie employees should be Identified for lnduslon In basic wages for Ille purposes of computation or Provident Fund oontrlbution. Subsequently, a review petition 
against this decision has been filed and is pending berore tile SC for disl)OISal. 

Pending decision on Ille subject review petition and directions from tile EPFO, the impact, If any, Is not ascertainable and consequently no effect has been given in the accounts 

32 During the year, the Company has changed the method or depreciation fro,n wov to SLM and also changed tile useful lire or certain assets prospectively. ACCOrdingly, the depreciation 
is lower by Rs. 222.78 L.akhs and the net asset ts higher by Rs. 222.78 Lakhs. 

33 Fair value measurements 

llle fair values of the financial assets and llabllltles are Included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a curre,1t transaction betWeen willing parties, otller than 
in a forced or liquidation sale. 

nie following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values: 
I. Fair value of cash and short-teno deposits, security deposit, trade and other short term r,:,:eivabres, trade payables, other current liabilities, short tenm loans from banks and other 
<inancial institutions approximate tfieir carrying amounts largely due to short term maturities of these instruments. 

2. Fioancial instruments witll fixed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates and lndlVldual credit wonhlness of the 
counterparty. eased on this evaluation, allowances are taken to account for expee!Ed losses of these receivables. Accordingly, fair value of such ln!:!ruments Is not materially different 
from their carrying amounts. 

There is no signiticant variations in rate of Interest applicable on Non-current borrowings and current borrowing rate. Hence, fair value of these borrowing approximates to thei, 
carrvino ;:,mounh.. 

financial instruments at amortised cost by category : 
IRs. t.akhsl 

Particulars 31st March 2019 31st Man:h 2018 
Cllrnrlna Value Fair Value carnrlna Value FalrValue 

Financial assets (Non-Current) 
Loans 1,00,09:0,56 1,0D,095,56 1,704.49 1,704.49 
Other financial assets 16.79 16.79 17.68 17.68 

Financial assets (Current) 
Tracie receivables 497,65 497.65 22,32S.43 22,325.43 
Cash and cash equivalents 722.30 722.30 9,720.95 9,720.95 
Sank balances other lllan cash and cash eQuivatems 6,516.29 6,516.29 1,949.74 1,949.74 
Loa~s 6,396.84 6,396.84 304.51 304.51 
Other Financial Assets 155,92 255.92 1,896.05 1,896.05 

Fair Value Derivative Instruments 
Derivative Assets 2,933.08 2,933.08 

rout financial a"-•ets 1.17iU4.4:1 1.1.7 334,43 37.918.95 37.Q!R,A< 

Financial liabilities (Non-Current) 
Borrowings 2,69,288.10 2,69,288.10 3,445.72 3,445.72 
Other financial liabilities - - 3,744.57 3,744.57 

financial liabilities (Current) 
Borrowings 1,79,975,00 1,79,975.00 33,000.60 33,000.60 
Trade payables 7,510.83 7,510.83 79,252.02 79,252.02 
Other Financial Liabilities 8,342,57 8,342.57 5,25,834.8S 5,25,834.85 

Fair Value Derivative Instruments 
oerlvatl>e liability 15.28 15.28 

fA>•I finan~ial liahiliti ... 465 n1.1a 4,65131,78 6 45.277.76 645 277.76 

34 Remuneration to Auditor.. (excludinci taxes) 
/Rs in Lai<hsl 

P.articufarc list March 2019 31st M•rch 2018 

Statutory Auditors 
For Audit Fees l6,00 41.00 
For Audit Fees - otl1er auditors 44.49 32.33 
For tlx audit l.00 3.00 
For other semces 5.23 
For certifications/ others 3,75 0.91 
Reimbursement of expenses 0.47 2.32 

Total 87.71 84.79 
Cost Auditors 

As Auditor 1.00 1.00 
For oertifica~ons / others 0.23 0,14 
For l(etmbursement or exoenses 0.22 tl.51 

Total 1.45 1.65 

35 ClRPCost 
During tile CIRP process tile company has incurred the following expenses pertaining to tile payment made to resQ1ut1on professional. legal counsels, consultants and advisors 
aoPOinteo oursuant to the same: 

Particulars 

l.e<lal and Professiooal Fees 
AdvertlslnQ and Business Promotion Exoenses 
Travellinq and Convevance Expenses 
Insurance Exoenses 
Other E~oenses 

TOTAL 

0<mation as oe, tile reauirement or Section 22 of llle Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Oevelopment Act, 2006 : 

Particulars 

(i) llle principal amourtt remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of aocounting year included In trade payables 
(ii) Interest due on above 
The total of (i) &. {ii) 
The amount of interest paid by the buyer m terms or section 16 of the Act 
The amount of the payment made to the supplie, beyond toe appointed day during the accounting year 
The amounts of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end or financial yea, 

(e) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the due 
date during the year) but without adding tile interest specified under this Act. 

31st March 2019 

1.355.87 
3,97 

14.08 
13.04 

54,13 

54.13 

The above infomiation has been determined to tile el<tent such parties have been ldet1tlfied and the Company is in the process of further identifying MSME parties as per the ('The 
Micro Small & Medium Enterprises Oevelopment Act 2006') and accordingly no provision or interest h;,s been made during the year, (previous year nil) In the books of accounts. 

( 

~ 



37 Income tam 

I. The iax effect or significant timing differences that has resulted in del'erred tax usets and liabilities are gl,en below: 

A. 111•r"T~<oh N•thdwara rA-en• limited !Rs In t.akhs\ 

Particulars 31st March 2019 31st March 2018 

a) Deferred nix Liability 
Taoaible and lntmoible Assets 35,483.60 19,404.55 

Total /al 35,483,60 19.404.55 

b) Deferred Tax ASset 
unabsorbed Dec>reo,tion and Business (79,768.25) (135,893.90) 
Allowances ror Exoected Credit Losses {21,302.05) -
Olsallowance under Income Tax Act. 1961 (1,417.68) 

Total (bl (102,487.99) (135,893.90) 

~rerred Tav liabillty/ /Assets) - /a+bl • 

Recoanised in P&L for the vear - liability/ (Assets)* 

. Dererred tax assets ha•e not been re,:ogn,sed ,n respect of allowances fO{ expecre<I credit losses, business losses, Olher d,sallowances under Income Tax Act, 1961 and unabsorbed 
depreciation aggregavn9 to Rs. 67,004.39 Lakhs as at 31st March 2019, where it is not probable that sufficient 1.1,able income will be available in the future against which such 
deferred tax assets can be realised in the normal course of business. 

8. Merit Plaza Limited !Rs in t.akhS\ 

Particulars 3Ut March 2019 31st March 2018 

a) Deferred Tilx Liability 
Deferred tax liability on fair valuation or freehold land 87.87 Ll6.06 

Total (a) 87.87 116.06 

b) Deferred Tax Asset 

MAT Credit Entitlement 

Total (b) 

Deferred Tax liabilitv/ (Assets) · ta+b) 87,87 116.06 
Less: Provided uoto la!.t vear - Liabilitv / (Assetsl U6,n6 143.93 
Deferred Tax ror the vear - Liabllrtv / (ASsetsl (28 ,u (27.871 

R•oonnised In P&L for.-~ •""r - Li~hilitv, , ••• ~., (28.>II rn.07, 

III. Unrecognised temporary differences: 
Certain subsidiaries of the group have undistributed earnings which, if p,id out as dividends, would be subject to tax in tile hands or the recipient. An assessable wnporary difference 
exists, but no deferred tax liability has been recognised as the p,rent entity is able to control the timing of disttibutions from this subsidiary and is not expected to distribute these 
profits in the foreseeable future. 

38 The Company is engaged in only one segment vlt "Manufacturing or Cement & Clinke( and as su<h, there is no separate reportable segment as per Ind AS 108 'Operating Segmeots'. 
Presently, the Company's operations are predominantly conrined in India. 

Rs ln lakhsl 
'"""ment Revenue Within Indta Outside India tt Tot.It 

Sales 116.7S8.ll 107,624.13 224.382.26 
(80.!<14.41) (79,848.94) (1S9.993.35) 

Other Income 6,004.37 232.82 6,237.19 
11.094.00) (518.18) (l.612.19) 

Total Income 122,762.50 107,856.95 230,619.45 
/Al 2111411 1•n 3,;7_1?' Cl6160S 54) 

Particulars Within India Outside India # TOTAL 

Non-Current Se<1ment ASsets• 169,340.06 59.014.50 228,354.56 
, •• ,. '04.75) IOS 275.6A\ ( 279 980.43) 

• fxcrudes Tax Assets and Financial ASsets. 
/Fioures in bracket oertain to orevious vear) 

II Assets or roreion subsicliaries classified as held for sale /refer note no. 46). 

Information about major customers : Re.enue from the Holdln9 Company- UltraTech Cement limited represents Rs. 35,900.31 laklls (31% of tile total turnover) for the ye.,r 
31st March, 2019. 

39 financial Risk Manaaement 

Bill! management framework · The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's primary risk 
management rocus is to minimiie potential adverse effects of market risk on its financial perfonmance. The Company's risk management assessment and policies and processes are 
established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor such risks and compliance With s.,me. Risk assessment 
and management policies and processes are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The eoard or Directors and the Aud~ Committee 
is responsible ror overseeing the Company's risk as.sessrnent and management policies and processes. 
The group has exposure to tl1e following risks arising ffom financial inst<uments: 

• Credit risk, 
• Liquidity risk and 
• Mar1<et risk 

-~~~~t~~~tcail.llte(¢.XP1lle.i..1UJ®!Jl!TU)l~ a~ 
As at 31s t March 2019· 

Agin; Unit 0·90 days past 
due. 

Gross carrying amount Rs./ Lakhs 4S9.47 

Expected credit losses (Loss allowance Rs./ Lakhs 
provision) 
Cc1rryin11 amount of trade receivables As./ lakhs 459,47 
(net of impairment) 

91 • 180 days past 181 - 365 days More than 365 dar, Total 
due n.!11.r.•due 11au due 

4S.44 5.75 61,930.40 62,441.06 

11.73 5.75 61,925.93 61,943.41 

33.71 - 4.47 4!17.6S 



As at ltst March 2018· 

Aging Unit 0-90 days past 91 - 180 days jlilst 181 - 365 davs More then 365 days 
Total due dua oastdue oastdue 

Gross carrying amount RS./ ukhs 14,657.10 4,848.10 4,214.24 60,477.53 84,196.97 

Expected credit rosses {Loss allowance Rs./ Lakhs 3,848.77 58,022.77 61,871.54 
·-· • ·i..,.n\ 

Canying amount of lrade receivables Rs./ Lakhs 14,657.10 4,848.10 365.47 2,454.76 22,325.43 
.(net.l2Unulalun ••• , 

(11) Movement In provisions of doobtful debts -Trade re<:eivables • 
!Rs In laklls) 

Reconciliation or loss allowance 31st Mar,;b .2D19 31st March 2018 
Opening Provision 61,775.74 3.042.80 
Add; Additional provision made 167.117 58.732.94 
Less: Provision write off . 
Clo5ina Provision 61943.41 61,775.74 

(B) Liquidity risk 

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining suN'1dent cash and marketable setvrities and the availabmty of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit 
facilities to meet obligations when due and to close out market positions. Ove to "1e dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, Company's treasury maintains flexibllllY In fonding 
by maintaining availability under committed credit lines. 

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position (comprising the undrawn borrowi119 facilities below) and cash and cash equivalents on tile basis of expected 
cash nows. This is generally catried oot at local level in the operating companies of the group in accordance with practice and limits set by "1e group.These limits vary by location to 
take into account tile liquidity of the market in which the entity operates. In addition, the Company's liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows in major currencies 
and considering "1e level of liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt 
financing plans. 
ill..flrut11'1.l!fl..ar@~ 
The group had access to "1e following undrav,n borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period: 

HI<. , Akh<\ 
Particulars 31st March 2019 31st March 201.3 

Floating rate 
Expiring within one year {bank overdraft and othe, facilities) S.488.50 
••olrlna bevorld one vear (baok lllaos) - -

Total 5488.SO 

Clil Matur<tfes or financial UablJit!ei..: 
The tables below analyse the group's financial liabilities into relevant matority groupings based on their cootractual maturities for: 
• all non-derivative r.nancial liabilities, and 
• net and gross settled derivative financial instruments for which the contractual maturities are essential for an unde~nding of the timing of the c.,sh flows. 
The amounts diS(losed in the table are the contractlJal undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal tlleir carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not 
significant. 

As at 31st March 201Q: IRS. Lakhsl 
Contractual maturities of financial !;abmlies Less than 1 '""'' 1 toS Years Bevond 5 Years Total 

Non-derivatives 
Borrowings (lncludln9 current maturities of long term debts) 1.80,650.00 29,025.00 2.40.263.10 4.49.938. LO 
Toade payables 7,510.83 7,510.83 
Interest accrued on borrowings/ others 3.155.21 . 3.(55,21 
liability for COIJ)0'1lte/ bank guarantee 4.S12.36 - 4.512.36 

Derivative Uabililv LS.28 - - 15.28 
Total 195 843.68 29025,00 240 263,10 465.131.78 

As at 31st March 2018: IRs. Lakhsl 
Contractual maturities of financial llabllltles less than 1 vear 1 to4 Years Bevond 7 Years Total 

Non-derivatives 
Borrowings {including current maturities of long term debts) 3,44,741.46 2,572.59 873.13 J.<18.187.18 
Trade payables 79.252.02 - 79,252.02 
Interest accrued on borrowings/ others 1.47.400.33 - 1.47.400.33 
Liability for corporate/ b.lnk guarantee 66.690.86 66.690.66 
Others 2,80 3 7'l4.S7 l 747.37 

Total 6 38 087.47 2 572.S9 4617.70 6 45.277.76 

{Cl Market rjsk 
(i) Foreign currency risk 

Forelg,1 curtency risk Is the risk of impact related to fair valve or Mure cash nows of an exposure in foreign currency, whidl ffuctuate due to changes in foreign excllange rates. TIie 
Company's exl)Osure 10 the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relares primarily to "1e foreign currency borrowings, Import of fuels, raw materials & spare parts, capital 
ewpenditure, e,rports of cement and the Company's net investments in foreign sub<sidiaries. 

When a derivative is entered into for the purpose of being a hedge, the Company negotiates tile terms of those deriva11,es to matth the terms of the hedged exposure. 

The Company evaluates exchange ,ate exposure arising from foreign currency transactions. The Company follows est.abllshed risk management policies and standard operating 
procedures. It uses derivative instruments like foreign currency swaps and forwards to hedge exposure to foreign currency risk. 

•· Foreign currency risk exposure: 
llts. lakhSI 

Particulars Currencv 31st March 2019 31stMarch 7018 
(I) Trade Payables 

Coal USO - 6,066.61 
Machinerv USO - 8.52 
Soares USO - 0.10 
Services USO 188,03 

b. Sensitivitv: 
A change of 5% in Foreign currency would have following lmoact on profit before tax · 

CRs. Lakhsl 
Particulars lmoact on orolit befre tax 

31St March 2019 JI.St March 2018 
Foreign Currency Sensitivity 

INRI ForeiQn Currency · Increase by 5% (9.40) (303.76) 
INR/ Foreign Currency · De.:rease by 5% 9.40 303.76 

c. Derlvatl•es for hedging currency out$t.anding are as under : 

Particulars Jlst March. 2018 
USO 

rd Contracts USO 
EURO 

ash now and fair value interest rate risk 
pany'$ main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which expose tile Company to cash flow Interest rate risk. During 31 March 2019, the 
pany's borrowings at variable rate were mainly denominated in INR. 

• The Company's ffxed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are "1erefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined In lnd AS 107, since neltller the carrying amoont nor 
the future cash flows will fluctuate bec.,use of a change in market interest rates. 

In order to optimize the Company's position with regards to interest income and interest expenses and to manage the interest rate risk, tieasury performs a comprehensive corporate 
Interest rate risk management by balancing the proportion of ffxed rate and floating rate financial instruments io its total portfolio. 



I 

a. Interest rate risk exoosure1 
The exposure of the group's bo!T(lwing to interest rate changes at the end of tile rePOrting period are as follows: 

Pat1lcul~rs 
Variable rate borrowinQs 
Fix 

T 

40 Caoital Manaaement 

Kil!! maoiloerneot - Toe group's objectillt!S when managing capital are to safeguard the group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders 
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain 0< adjust tile capital structure, the group may adjust 
tlle amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. 
Consistent with othm In the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ~tio is calculated as net debt divided by tot.ii capital. Net debt is calculateO 
as total borrowings (including 'current mahJrities of long term deblS' .lS shown in the balance sheet) net of c.ish and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as 'equity' as shown in 
the balance sheet plus net debt. 

The gea,lng ratios as at tile petiod eoos were as follows: 

Partic11lars Unit Jtst March 2019 31st Marcl'I 2018 

Net Debt (i) Fis./ Lakhs 4,49,21~.so 4.85,866.56 
Total Equity (ii) .. {1,24,157.75) (),39,810.88) 
over all ~nancing (ill) = (il + (ii) " 3,25,0S8.05 1,46,055.68 
Oebt/ EQuity Ratio (iv) = (il / (ii) Times (3.62) (1.43) 
Gearino Ratio (v) = (i) / (iii) . 1,38 3.33 

41 Related Party disclosure as per Ind AS 24 "Related Party Dlsclosures" : 

The group has entered into transactions in ordlna,v course of business with related parties at arms length as oer details below : 
IR< In Lakh<I 

Kev Management 
Personnel (KMP)/ 

Pat1iculars Holding Company Fellow Subsidiary Enterprl,es where 
Total Key Management 

Personnel has got 
slgnlncant infl11ence 

A. TAAN~A!J]Q!f~ 

Equity Share Issued aaainst Conversion of Preference Shares 
UltraTech Cement Limited 1,90,000.00 . . 1,90,000.00 

Inter CorPOrate Depei;its Re<:el•ed 
UltraTech Cement limited 1,83,475.00 - - 1,113,475.00 

. -

Inter CQrperate Dei,osit:s Repaid 
UltraTech Cement Limited 3,500.00 . 3,500.00 

- . 

Interest E'Kpen,e on Inter Corporate DePOSits 
UltraTech Cement Ultlited 5,534.49 . . 5,534.49 

. . 

Purchase of Raw Materials, F11el, Stores and Spares, and C..pital Items 
UltraTech Cement limited . . . 

Raw Materials 6,096.33 6,096.33 
Fuel 12,252.04 U,252.04 
Stores &. Spares 465,59 465.59 
Capital Assets 27.06 27.06 . - - . 

Star Cement Co LLC 182.12 182.12 . 

Office Rent, Amenity and Other Charges 
UltraTech Cement Limited 9.7B . . 9,78 

. 

Sare of Cement and Clinker 
Ult,aTech Cement Limited 45,952.40 - - 45,952.40 

- - . 

Interest Expen,e on cumulative redeemable preference shares 
UltraTech Cement Limited 2,920.27 . 2,920,27 . 

Corporate Guarantees gi•en by Holding Company 
UltraTech Cement Limited 3,05,000.00 . 3,05,000,00 

- -

Service Charges for office racllities/ vehicle etc. 
T rlton T ,adina Co. Pvt. - . 

. - (162.20) (162.20) 

-

~~ 
Seniice Ch~rge5 for office facllltles/ vehicle etc. 

Binani Industries limited . . 
(upto 24th July, 2017) (8.46) - . (9.46) 

(J) o/? • 
2 I f;ervlce Charges for Advertisement/ Sales Promotion, etc. 

Asian & Media Maglx (Div. of Binani Industries ltd.) . . ~ (upto 24th July. 2017) (11.67) - - (11.67) (1 \ ' ~. ~--" 'r11,f!f'. • r.<": ,, 
Execution of transportation / other services contract . .. C>haneshawar Solution · A Division of Blnani InduSt<ies Ltd • . 

(upto 24th July, 201'7) (967.25) - (967.25) 



Particulars 

Interest Expenses 
Binani Industries Limited 
( upto 24th July, 2017) 

Service Charves for Manpower Supplv 
tllrbhay Management Services Private limited 
(upto mo July, 2017) 

Directors Sitting Fees 
Mr. 6raj Binani 

Mr. S. Sridhar 

Mts. Sudha Navandar 

Or. (Mrs.) Sanaeeta Pandit 

Remuneration to KMPs 
Mr. oarshan 1...11 · fxecutive Director & Whole·time Director 

Mr. P. K. Dad· Additional Director 

M,s. Vaisllali Yyas . Company Secretary 

Mr. Umesh Latlli • Chief Financial Officer 

Mr. Oevendra Mehta • Chief Financial Offie<!r 

Mr. Vijay Kumar V. Iyer· Resolution Pr<:1/essional 

Mr. Rajendra Vijay · Chief Financial Officer 

8. BALANCE AS ON 31,03,2019 
l&cc:nc 

Trade Receivables 
Ult,aTech C<!ment Limited 

!;!llllD: II Lll!lll[UIIE~ 

Equity Share Capital 
UltraTech Cement Limited 

Inter Corporate Deposits 
UltraTech Cement limited 

Interest payable 
Ult,aTech Cement Limited 

Trade payables 
UltraT ech Cement Limited 

Star Cement Co LLC 

Advance from Customers 
UltraTech Cement Limited 

(Figures In bracket pertain to Previous Year) 

~e~ 
Names of related parties and desc,iption of relationship: 
Ultimate Holding Comoanv : Grasim Industries Limited (w.e.f. 20 November 2018) 
Holding Company: UltraTech Cement Limited (w.e.f. 20 November 2018) 

Holding Company 

(31.27) 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

459.47 

3,40,000.00 

1,79,975.00 

1,183.10 

17.21 . 
. 
. 

5,500.00 

IR< In , •khs\ 

Ker Management 
Personnel {KHP)/ 

Fellow Subsidiary 
Enterprises where 

Total Key Management 
Personnel llas got 

significant lnnuence 

. . 

. (31.27) 

. 
(169.77) (169.77) 

(0,50) (0.50) 

(0.60) (0,60) 

. . 
(0.85) (0.85) 

(Q.95) (0.95) 

63,14 63.14 
(127.13) (127.13) 

2.46 2.46 

2.13 2.13 
(15.31) (15.31) 

49.67 49.67 
(19.55) (19.55) 

(8.78) (B.78) 

. 306.17 306.17 
(270.00l (270.00) 

11,30 11.30 . 

. 459.47 
. 

3,40,000.00 . 

1,79,975,00 
. 

1,183.10 . . 

. . 17,21 

. . 
180.80 180.80 

. 

. . 5,500.00 

. . . 

Pursuant to the commencement of Corporate Insolvency and Resolution Process (CIRP) in acto<dance with the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC) w.e.f 25th July 
2017, e1nani Industries limited lost control over the operational and financial decision making power over Ille Company and ceases 10 be the holding company. As per Ille 
prOVisions of !BC, powers of the Board of Directors were suspended and vested with Resolutioo Professional w.e.f 25111 July 2017. 
eased on NCLAT order dated 14 November 2018 and ARP, tlle Company has become wholly owned subsidiary or Ultra Tech Cement Limited. 

Subsidiaries/ step down subsidiaries where oonttol exists : Krishna Holdings pte limited, Mukundan Holdings Limited, Mura,1 Holdings Limited, Swiss Merchandise lnfrastructute 
Lttl., Merit Plaza ltd., Bhumi Resources {Singapore) Pte Limited, Bahar Ready Mix Concrete Limited (formerly lulown as Binani Ready Mix Concrete Limited), BC Tradellnk 
Limited. Binani Cement Tanzania Ltd., Blnanl Cement (Uganda) Ltd.*, l'T Anggana Energy Resources, Shandong Blnani Ron9'an Cement Company Limited (SBRCC), Blnanl 
Cement Facto,y llC (BCF), Smooth Energy Pllt. ltd. (formerly known as Binani Energy Pvt. Ltd.), Binani Cement Fujairah LLC. 

c) Kev Management Personnel (with whom there were transactions): Mr. Da,shan Lal (uplo 13.09.2018), Mr. P. K. Oad (rrom 31.10.2018 to 19.11.2019), Mrs. Vaisha!i Vyas (upto 
06.04.2018}, Mr. oevend,a Mehta (upto 26.04.2017), Mr. Umesh lathl (upto 19.11.2018) and Mr. Rajendra Vijay (from 20.11.2018). 

d) Resolution Professional: Mr. Vijaykumar V. Iyer (from 25.07.2017 to 19.11.2018), 

e) Other Related Parties (wi!h whom tllere were transactions) : Nirbhay Management Services Private Limited {fellow subsidiary uplo 24.07.2017) and Triton Trading Co. Pvt. 
limited (entity controlled by Kev Management Personnel in previous ye.ir). 



42 Consolidated EaminQ oer share Is calculated as follows : 

Partlculars 31st March 2019 31st Marci\ 2"'" 

A. Net Profit after lax attributable to equity shareholder ( Rs In Lakhs) (1,25,554.03) (3,87,469.52) 
8. E'qulty shares outstanding as at Ille period end (in Nos.) 1,00,64,22,183 18,86,01,274 
c. Weiahte<! averaae number of Eauitv Shares uSE!<I as denomlnalor for calculatina Basic&. Diluted Earn1na Pe, Share (in Nos. l 1,00,64.:U.183 18.86.01.274 
D. Nominal Value per Equity Share (in Rs.) 10.00 10.00 
E. Earning Per Share (Basic and DIiuted) (In Rs.) (12.48) (205.44) 

43 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS : 

al Defined Contribution Plans: 
During lhe year the Companv has recognised Rs. 265.25 takhs (Previous Year Rs. 270.86 Lakhs) In lhe Profit and LO<Ss Account on account of derined contribution plans i.e. £mplovers 
Contriblltlon to Pre>vident Funds. Superannuatioo Fund and ESIC. 

ll UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Limited 
al Defined benefit plan,: as oer actuarial valuation on Jllh March. 2019 

fil ~ : The Company provides for gratllity to employees as per the payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continous se,vlce for a period of 5 years are eligible 
for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retiremenv termination Is the employees last dtawn basic salary !)er month computed prol)Ortlonately for 15 days salary mufliplled for 
the number of years of ser;ice. The gratuity plan is a funded plan and the Company makes contributions to recognised nmds in India. 

The amoonts recognised in the balance sheet ancl the movemen~ in the defined obllgatie>n and plan assets for the years are as follov;s: 

U Mnvement In Plan Assets an.t Ohl(naflnn• /De, La"" •' 
3 1st March 2019 31<t March 2018 

Particulars Present value Fair value of plan 
Net amount Present value of Fair value of plan 

u, ----~ nhlia.,;M ··-·· Net amount 
llalance as on I st April 863.01 356.66 506.35 892.60 362.07 530.53 
Current Service cost 84,10 . 84.10 93.83 . 93.83 
(nte ........ ~ exnPn•n,//ln'"""""'' r,7 c,7 n7,Q'U .. 0,65 64.27 r25,n7, ••.>n 
Total amount reco0nised in the Statement 151.67 (27.93) 123.74 IS8.10 (26.07) IJ2.03 
of Profit & Loss 

Remeasurements 
Return on i>lan assets. exclu. amount included In 4.45 
interest exp./(income) 

(4.45) 1.64 1.64 

(Gain)/ loss rrom change In de,n0graphic - . 
assuml)tions 
(Gain)/ IO<Ss from change In r,nancial assumptions 3.33 3.33 (53.97) - (S3.97) 

Elcperience (gains)/ losses (29.11) - (29.11) (38.60) . (JS.60) 
Total amount recognised in other 
comnrehensiwe income 

(25.79) 4.45 {J0.24) (92.57) 1.64 (94.21) 

Employer contributions 967.12 (967.12) 62.00 (62.00) 
lll<>nefit n>uments 163 "" (63 .•• , . (QS,12) (95.121 . 
ICl<><lnn Ralan"" 925.71 1 2G,.9R '367. 271 863.0l 3S6.~~ 50635 

JU. Malnr cat""'C>"' nt nlan assets are as follows: IRs, LakhSl 

Particulars ~1st M: r<h 2019 11st March 20111 
% Amowtt 

Unquoted 
% I Amount 

insurance Fund 1000/o 1292.')8 t00% 356.66 
Tota1 1000/o I 292.98 100%1 156.f;I; 

JV. Slnnfncant ..,.,1m~1es: Actuarial assumntinns are~• f- 11-ws : 
I Particulars I 3, .. M> .... h 2019 I 3 tst March 2n 1 A 
1;~ount Rate 7.79% 7.83% 

or increase 1n oomr:,ensation levels 7.000/o 7.00% 
"f "Q'urn on Plan Assets 7.790/o 7.Q3% 

V. Oemo0raphic Assumptions 
Moitallty in Service: Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006·08) Ultimate table Mortality in Retirement : UC New Group Gratuity Cash Aa:umulation Plan (NGGCA). 

+1 0/o/·1 .,. 
+1% ·1% 

31st March 2018 

+I %/·1 % 
+I• ·I 'II 

The above sensitivitv analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all otiler assump~ons conslant. In practice, this is unlikely co oo:ur, and changes in some of ttie 
assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the senslUvlty of the deRned benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions tM same method (present value of tile defined 
benefit obligation calculated .,ith the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting pe1ioo) has bee• applied as when calculaling the defined benefit liability recognised in 
Ille balance sheet. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to tile prior period. 



II) Binani Cement Factory LLC 
limelQvoes 1egn1oa1 bonoms 
For &mployees terminal benefit provision, actuattal calculations are nol made and also it is unfunded. Hence, provision i, made on the assumpUon thal a!I employees were to leave as ot lh& em::t of th& 
reponing period since this provides, in management's opinion, a reasonable estimate of lhe present value of the terminal benefits Ouflr,g lhe period. ths Company has recognised Rs4 22.40 Lakh& 
(Previouo Year Rs. 27.04 Lakhs) in tile statemenl al Profil and Loos on account of employees ts1111inal b•m•fit provision and as at the balance sheet date Iha liability towards the same is Rs 389 70 Lakhs 
(Previous Year Rs 336 41 Lakhs) disclosed under 'Olher Retirement Obligations' in nol• no 16 

44 A OPERATING LEASE 

a) f'ulure Lease Rental payments 

Pal'lleulars 3111 March 2019 
I) Not later than one year 2.20 
Ii) Later than one yea, end not later than five 
1ii) Lather than five years 

I>) OperatlnQ lease payment recognised In lho statement or P1ofi1 & loss amounting to Rs. t 95.14 Lakhs (Provfous Year Rs. 415,~6 LakhS), 
c) General descfii:>lion of th& leasing arrangement: 

j) Leased As.~ets: Ca,, Godowns and Office~ 
i1) Future lease rentals are determined on the basis of agreed tenns. 
iii) At the expiry of the lease term. the Company 

44 e Coneolldated Statement of Net Assets and total comprehensive Income roryea,ended 31st March, 2018 

Name or the entity Net Aasets, I.e., total assets Sharo In pro.flt or loss 
minus total liabilftias 

Aa%of Amount Aa'A,of Amount 
consolidated (Rs.lL.akh91 coneolldated (Rs.lLakllsJ 

net assets profit or 1011 

2 3 4 5 
Parent 

Binani Cement Limited 152.67% (169,552.08) 62.05% (102,599.22) 

Subsldlarlos 
Indian 

1 Swiss Merchandise lnrrastruclure Pvt Lid -4,84% 6,01366 046% (599 72) 
2 Malit Plaza Ltd, ·3,67% 4,553 64 120% (1,494 95) 
3 Binani Energy Pvt. Ltd. Q,00% 312 000% 007 
4 Binani Ready Mix Concrete limited 000% 350 000% (025) 

Foreign 
1 S/\andong Binani Rong'en Cement Company Ltd ,3263% 40.506.76 ,241% 3,007 52 
2 Binani Cement Factory LLC (BCF) -10.94% 13.579.22 14.03% (17,547 63) 
3 BC Tradelin~ Limited ,0.01% 6,64 0.00% 
4 Binani Cement Tanzania Limited ·0.32% 401 .43 1.06% (1,33167) 
5 Binani Cement (Uganda) Ltd 000% 1.09 000% 
6 Kfishna Holdings Pte Limited 0 063% 1,034.96 005% (60 74) 
7 Mukundan Hofdings Urnited 000% (1 . 17) -065% 81180 
8 Mu,ari Holdings limited 016% (225,09) 041% (51644) 
9 Shumi Resoucces (Singapore) Ple limitoo 039% (48338) 335% (4,18849) 
10 PT Anggana Energy Resources 000% (0,49) 042% (521 35) 
11 Binani Cement Fujairah LLC 000% 000% 

100,00% 124 157.75 100.00% 125 041.07 

Shate In other 
comprehonelve Income 

Aa%of Amount 
consolidated (lb,/Lakhs) 
profit orion 

6 7 

941% (91 58) 

000% 
000% 
000% 
000% 

48695% (4,739 22) 
46398% (4,51565) 
·1198% 116 59 

318% (31.00) 
·001% 0 06 

-193 66% 1,684 74 
-19648% 1,912 19 
-361 99% 3,717 67 

-7110% 691 97 
-832% 80 97 
000% 

100.00% 973.24 

(Rs Lakhsl 
31st Marcil 2018 

25,92 
1 01 

. 

Share in total 
comprehensive Income 

As% or Amount 
consolidated (R&JL.akho) 
pront or loss 

a 8 

61.49% (102,690,80) 

048% (599 72) 
119% (1,494 95) 
000% 007 
000% (0.25) 

1.37% (1,731 .71) 
17 51% (22,06328) 
·009% 116 59 
L OB% (1,36267) 
0.00% 006 
-145% 1,624 00 
-216% 2,724 00 
-254% 3,20123 
277% (3,496.51) 
0.35% (440,37) 
000% 

100.00·~ 126 014,,32 

presented the corresponding year figures with respect to di~conlinued opetalions in accordance v.ilh Ind AS 105 'Non.current assets held for sate and discontinued operation' as the 
to the same ;snot readily available 



4S The financial impact of ARP [except for the issuance of shares to UTCL and cancellation of shares held by erstwhile shareholders as per ARP] has been given in books of aocouots in 
respect of the following: 

1. Exceptiortal Items (upto 19th No~ember 2018) 
(a) Corporate guaran~ issued to 1081 Bank Limite<l by the Company for loans prOVided to the principal borrower. i.e. 38 8inani Glass Fibre S.A.R.l. and JB Fibre Norway A.S. 

amounting to Rs. 171,533.49 l..lkhs (USO 2369.25 Lakhs) has been paid by the Company as per the ARP and all the rights and obligations over the securities issued by the 
Company st.lnd released and said portion of the loan amount is deemed to be subrogated to the Company with all rights, tittle, interest, securities and benefits as available to 
JOBI Bank Limited. Aocordingly, the Company has recognised tile liability of Rs. 171,533.48 Lakhs (USO 2369.25 Lakhs) and discharged tile liability of Rs. 161,103.91 Lakhs 
(USO 2304.00 Lakhs) and also recognised corresponding receivable at fair value of Rs. 1,10,000 Lakhs (USO 1,519.34 Lakhs) from 38 Binani Glass Fibre S.A.R.L. and 30 Fibre 
Norway A.S. as per Ille deed of assignment executed in favour of tile Company. The long term portion or receivable of Rs. 1,57,448.44 takhs has been disclosed in Note No. 2 
8 and short·term portion of receivable or Rs. 6,396.84 t.,khs has been disclosed in Note No. 9. However, having regard to the financial condition of 3B Binani Glass Fibre 
S.A.R.l. and 38 Fibre Norway A.S. and based on the equity value detemnined by indel)endent valuation expert, Ille difference of Rs. 61,533.48 Lakhs (USO 849.91 lakhs) 
between the liability dl9Cllarged and receivable recognised has been ao:ounted as provision for expected credit loss and disclosed under the head 'E,ceptional iten', 

(b) The Company has provided liabilities during tile year March 31, 2018 With resl)E(l to corporate guarantee issued to Ille Bank by the Company for loans provided to &nani 
Industries Limited amounting to Rs. 66,319.04 lakhs. The company has provided for the interest on such guarantees for the current year amounting to Rs. 4,314.92 Lakhs and 
shown under 'Exceptional item.' On approval of ARP the company has all rights and obligations of the bank deemed to be subnogated to the Company. However, having re9ard 
to the ~nancial condition of Binani Industries limited, the Company has determined the fair value of receivable to be Rs. nil. 

(c) The Company has taken write back of liabilities for the operational trade ctedltors, statutory creditors and related parties whose claims was not verified/ admitted by tM 
resolution professional or not payable as per ARP. The aggregate amount of write back with respect to these liabilities is Rs. 16,411.76 Lakhs. Further, the Company has 
written back excess provision of Rs. 76. 75 L..aklls towards the liability of bank guarantee and Rs. 295.-07 Lakhs towards the liability of corporate guarantee and disclosed the 
same under 'E•ceptional item' and profit from di=ntinuing operations repectlvely. 

(d) Doring tile process of implementation of ARP, the Company has Jdentlfled assets which are no longe, recoverable for which the Company has made provision for Impairment. 
Accordingly, the Company has made provision for doubtful C!pital advances amounting to Rs. 8,000 ~akhs, for payments made under protest to statutory authorities amounting 
to RS. 4,057.42 Lakhs and for tax assets (net} amounting to Rs. 2,080.05 l.21khs. The same iS disclosed under 'Exceptional item'. 

(e) Assets relating to foreign subsidiaries assessed for impairment and conside,ing the likely eoonomic beoefit, Ille companv has accounted an impairment of Rs. 20,564.89 lacs 
and disclosed under exceptional lte,n. 

(fl During Ille ye.ir, the Companv has written off Rs. 8,629.08 Laklrs (eQuivalent to 45,375,599 AED) towards pre-operative e•pen<!iture incurred for establishing integrated cement 
plant at FuJalrah, since tile project is calloo off due to global uncertainties and impending trade tariff barriers and disclosed under proijt from diS<:ontinuing operations. 

2. Others 
(a} The Company has also made prO',/isron for interest payable to financial creditors for the period in accordance with ARP amounting to Rs 28,128.20 t;,khs and disclosed under 

finance cost for the period. 

(b) As per the ARP plan, upon discharge and payment of resolution amount, all contingent liabilltles, and claims against the Company, shall stand fully discharged on the transfer 
date without anv payment and there shall be no recourse to the Company. 

46 Discontinued operation: 

(a) Disposal of operations in China and UAE: 

The Company is having operation In China and UAE through its step·de>wn subsidiaries. The Board or Directors of the Companv have decided to sell these subsidiaries and 
active programme to locate a buver has been initiated. The sale is expected to be completed in next 12 months. The Company has classified these investments as held for sale 
as they meet the criteria !aid down under Ind AS· 105. 

(b) Analysis or pro!lt/ (loss) ror the year from discontinued operation 

(Rs l.akhS) 
Profit/ (loss) for the year from discontinued operation 31st March 2019 
Revenue rrom operation Including Other income 107,856.95 
Expenses 105,812.40 
Pront before tax 2,044.55 
Tax expenses 1,531.59 
Profit after tax 512.96 

(c) Major classu of assets and llabllltle.s classified as held for sale 
(Rs Lakhs) 

Particulars 31st March 2019 
Assets 
Property, Plant and Equipment (Incl CWIP & Intangibles) 58,944.66 
Financial assets 31,385,12 
O!ller assets 13,389.77 
Assets Classlfle:d as held for s.ile 103,719.56 

liabilities 
Financial liabilities 45,078.12 
Other liabilities J,821.44 
liabilities Classified as held tor sale 48,899.56 
Net assets directly associated with discontinued oper-,tio" 54,820.00 

(d) Net cashflow attributable to the disc;intinue<I operation 
(Rs Lakhs) 

Particular$ 31st March 2019 
Opening Cash & Cash Equivalents 2,393.76 
Net c.ish (outflows)/ innows from operating activities 5,754.69 
Net cash used in investing activities (5,494.04) 
Net cash (outnows)/ innows from financing activities 91.84 
Netcash Inflows/ (outflo=) 352.48 
Closlng Cash & Cash Equivalents 2,746.24 

(e) The fair value of the China and UAE operations (disposal group) done bv ao Independent valuer and determined based on the 'Enterprise Value (EV)' of the Companies, 
using Comparable Company Multiple (CCM) method. The fair value measurement 1s categorised as level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. The Enterprise Value (EV) of subsidiary at 
UAE is determined using average or multiples (EV/EBITOA) (Enterprise value/Earning Before Interest Tax Depreciation and Amortisation} calculated of comparable liSted 
companies operating in the cement industry in UAE. The Enterprise Value (EV) of subsidiary at China is determined using average of multiples (EV/EBITDA) (Enterprise value/ 
Earning Before Interest Tax Depreciation and Amonlsation) and (EV/Revenue) calculated of comparable listed companies operating In the cement Industry 10 China. The EV is 
based on 3 months volume weighted average price as at balance sheet elate. EV is considered after making adjustments for debt, preferred stock, minority interest and cash 
and cash eQuivalent. Operating EB.rrt>A was based on latest results for trailinQ twelve·month period. 



47 Trade deposits Includes deposlt5 mainly rrom Dealers and Market Organllers, have classlfled as a tong term liability, keeping In the view me arranget11ent with tllet11 considering tong 
rerm business associations. 

48 IndAS 1 IS - Revenue from Contracts with Customets, mandatory for reportinp periods beginning on or after I April, 201S replaces the earlier Revenoe recognition standard,. The 
appllcatlon of IndAS 115 is prospective and did not have any sl<Jnl~nt 1mpacton tile financials of tile Company. 

49 The Board of 01.-rs 1n ii$ meeting held Oil 20th Ncwembei 2018 de<:lded to sell its investments in rorelgn subsidiaries. The Companv iS C1Jrrent1y nndlng the buyer and salE'/ transfer 
Is subject to rea!lpt of acce¢able offer and other ll!quiSite approval. • 

50 Due to continuous losses in the previous three finandal years, tile Company is not required to spent any additional amount towards CSR activities during the current year. 

5l The f,gvres or previous vear are not compa~ble to the cutrent ~r as the assets or rore1gn subsidiaries have been dassifle<I as held for sale. 

52 Previous year figures have been regrvul)Ed / rearranged wherever necessary to conform with the figures of tlle current period. 
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